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To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2025 (the “Year").

This Year marked a significant milestone in our strategic journey, as the
Group successfully completed our first full year of operating our own
casino (the “Casino”) since taking it over from Philippine Amusement and
Gaming Corporation (“PAGCOR") on 9 May 2024. The Group achieved
remarkable growth in revenue of 146.4% to approximately HK$566.2
million during the Year, up from approximately HK$229.8 million in the
year ended 30 June 2024 (the "Previous Year"). Gross profit surged by
approximately 106.3% to approximately HK$273.2 million, as compared
with approximately HK$132.4 million in the Previous Year.

Against the backdrop of a robust global economic recovery in the travel
and entertainment sectors and favorable growth in the Philippine gaming
and tourism industry, this achievement was made possible with the tireless
efforts of our dedicated management and employees to capitalize on
emerging opportunities and capture growth.

During the Year, the Philippines has continued to solidify its position as a
premier hub for gaming and tourism. Strategically located at the heart of
Asia with a robust international transport network, the country provides
easy access for visitors across the region. This advantageous position is
bolstered by the government’s proactive policies, including streamlined
regulations and investment incentives, which foster a secure, compliant,
and dynamic business environment.

The World Travel & Tourism Council (WTTC) projects that the tourism
sector will contribute PHP5.9 trillion to the Philippine economy in 2025,
representing 21% of the national GDP, driven by a record PHP709.2 billion
in international visitor spending. Meanwhile, the country’s gross gaming
revenue increased 26% year-on-year to PHP214.8 billion in the first half of
2025, according to PAGCOR data. The Philippines’ exit from the Financial
Action Task Force (FATF) Grey List in 2025 has further strengthened
this positive trajectory, enhancing investor confidence and signaling a
transformative outlook for the gaming industry, with industry projections
indicating sustained expansion in 2026 and beyond.

Our long-term growth strategy is perfectly aligned with the government’s
vision to establish the Philippines as a leading global destination. We are
uniquely positioned to capitalize on these favorable conditions in Asia’s
dynamic gaming and entertainment market.
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As part of our strategic plan to enhance our long-term competitive edge
and guest experience, we have initiated a comprehensive upgrade of
our casino and hotel facilities. The renovations temporarily reduced our
operating capacity, and the demolishment of leasehold improvements
on the ground floor of the casino resulted in a one-time written-off of
property, plant and equipment amounting to HKD109.9M during the
Year. These, coupled with the higher operating costs incurred, including
increased staff costs, selling and marketing expenses associated with the
transition to managing our own Casino, led to a greater net loss of HKD
282.1M. Despite the short-term impact of these transformations on our
bottom line, we believe they are essential investments for driving future
growth.

The coming financial year will see the gradual completion of our
renovation works, culminating in the grand opening of our spectacular
new ground-floor casino. The expanded area for more gaming tables and
slot machines will significantly enhance our gaming capacity, allowing us
to accommodate a larger number of players and capture a greater share of
the thriving market.

Meanwhile, building on our strong land-based casino gaming revenue, we
have diversified our revenue streams by leasing gaming venues to a junket
operator starting this Year. Given our strong revenue growth momentum,
we are optimistic about making significant progress toward sustained and
enhanced profitability in the future.

With the phased completion of our facility upgrades and grand opening
of the renovated ground-floor casino in coming financial year, we are
well-positioned to capture opportunities in the flourishing market. We
are confident that our strategic initiatives will enable us to achieve strong
financial results as we resume full operational capacity. The foundation we
laid this year has set the stage for accelerated growth and enhanced value
creation in the year ahead.

In closing, on behalf of the Board, | extend my heartfelt gratitude to our
Directors for their strategic insight and leadership, which have guided
our success. Our management team and employees deserve special
recognition for their relentless dedication to excellence. Finally, | express
deep appreciation to our shareholders, customers, and business partners
for their continued trust and support in our vision and endeavors.

HO Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 September 2025
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According to market research, the casino gambling market in the
Philippines is projected to reach USD3,749.4 million by 2033, growing at
a compound annual growth rate of 9.2% from 2023 to 2033. Key drivers
include the rise in dual-income households, which has boosted local
customers’ spending power, and rising disposable income in developed
countries, enabling greater spending on leisure activities. This trend has
been further fueled by the increasing use of social media marketing by
casino operators. This marketing is attracting and engaging customers by
positioning casino gaming as a status symbol for high-income individuals,
thereby contributing to the continuous expansion of the market.

The growth of the Philippine casino gambling market can also be
attributed to the increasing popularity of integrated resorts, which offer a
wide range of gaming options and non-gaming amenities, attracting both
local and foreign tourists. During the Year, various supportive government
policies aimed at boosting the tourism industry led to the Philippines
being increasingly recognised as a premier destination for international
tourists. According to the Department of Tourism and information released
by PAGCOR, the tourism sector is projected to generate PHP2.7 trillion for
the Philippine economy in 2025, compared with PHP2.35 trillion in 2024.
For the first six months of 2025, PAGCOR reported net income of PHP10.79
billion (USD187.5 million), an increase of approximately 64.3% compared
with the corresponding period of 2024.

Benefiting from the sustained robust growth of the Philippine casino
gaming industry and the Group's assumption of the casino operation on
9 May 2024 under the provisional license (the “Provisional License”)
granted by PAGCOR on 27 September 2023, the Group's total revenue for
the Year increased significantly from approximately HK$229.8 million for the
Previous Year to approximately HK$566.2 million for the Year. This increase
was primarily due to the recognition of gross gaming revenue under the
Provisional License versus the sharing of net gaming revenue prior to
the takeover of casino operation in May 2024. The Group's revenue from
the gaming operation for the Year increased significantly by 200.0% from
approximately HK$170.0 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$509.9 million for the Year. However, due to the temporary closure
of certain hotel rooms for renovation during the Year, the Group’s hotel
operation revenue for the Year was approximately HK$56.2 million, a slight
decrease of 6.1% compared with approximately HK$59.8 million for the
Previous Year.

During the Year, the Group reported gross profit of approximately
HKS$273.2 million, as compared with approximately HK$132.4 million in the
Previous Year. Gross profit margin for the Year was approximately 48.3%, as
compared with gross profit margin of approximately 57.6% for the Previous
Year. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the gaming
tax and licensing fee incurred after the takeover of casino operation in May
2024.
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The Group's other income for the Year was approximately HK$44.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 147.3%, as compared with
approximately HK$17.9 million for the Previous Year. This was mainly due
to the increase in interest income during the Year.

The Group's other net loss mainly comprise (i) loss on written-off of
property, plant and equipment; and (i) net foreign exchange gain or loss.
The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$82.6 million for the
Year as compared with approximately HK$15.5 million for the Previous
Year. This significant increase is mainly attributable to a one-off written-
off of property, plant, and equipment due to the demolition of leasehold
improvements on the ground floor of the Casino, which was resulted
from the renovation works carried out at the Casino under the Phase | and
Phase Il construction contracts dated 14 February 2025, and 30 May 2025,
respectively.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HKS$0.5 million on changes in
the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during
the Year, as compared with a loss of approximately HK$0.7 million during
the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$3.2 million on changes in
the fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the
Year, as compared with approximately HK$1.4 million for the Previous Year,
representing an increase of approximately 131.6%.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties has been determined
based on a valuation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited ("JLL"), an independent professional valuer not
affiliated with the Group. The fair value loss for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$23.3 million, as compared with approximately HKS$14.1
million for the Previous Year.

During the Year, the Group recorded a gain of approximately HKS$5.7 million
from the results of its associates, as compared with a loss of approximately
HKS4.1 million from its associates for the Previous Year.

The Group's selling and marketing expenses increased by approximately
1,665.3% to approximately HK$74.5 million for the Year, up from
approximately HK$4.2 million for the Previous Year. This significant
increase was mainly attributable to the higher costs incurred for marketing
campaigns and promotional activities during the first full year of casino
operations aimed at enhancing the attractiveness and competitiveness of
the Casino offerings.
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The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 59.6%, from approximately HK$204.6 million for the Previous
Year to approximately HK$326.6 million for the Year. During the Year,
approximately 46.8% and 7.6% of the general and administrative expenses
were related staff costs and utility expenses, respectively. Staff costs for
the Year amounted to approximately HK$152.9 million, representing an
increase of around 77.6%, as compared with approximately HK$86.1 million
during the Previous Year. This significant increase was mainly attributable
to the recruitment of additional staff by the Group to operate and manage
the casino under the Provisional License. Additionally, due to the expansion
of the Group's casino operation, utility expenses for the Year were
approximately HK$25.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
83.4% compared with the approximately HK$13.6 million recorded for the
Previous Year.

The Group's finance costs for the Year amounted to approximately HK$91.8
million, representing an increase of approximately 30.0%, as compared
with approximately HK$70.6 million for the Previous Year. This increase was
mainly due to the rise in interest on bank borrowings of approximately
HKS$24.9 million, as the Group obtained new bank borrowings during the
Year for the operation of the casino and the development of an integrated
resort under the Provisional License.

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately HK$9.2
million for the Year, as compared with an income tax credit of
approximately HK$30.3 million during the Previous Year.

Consequently, the Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$282.1
million for the Year, as compared with a loss of approximately HK$132.0

million for the Previous Year.

The loss per share for the Year amounted to approximately 20.61 HK cents,
as compared with approximately 9.64 HK cents for the Previous Year.
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The Group's principal activities comprise gaming operations, hotel
operations and live events.

1.

Gaming operation

The “gaming operation” segment represents participation in gaming
operations under the Provisional License and the leasing of gaming
venues to a tenant for authorised gaming operation.

Revenue from the gaming operation segment for the Year was
approximately HK$509.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 200.0%, as compared with revenue of approximately
HKS$170.0 million for the Previous Year. The increase was mainly due
to the recognition of gross gaming revenue under the Provisional
License versus the sharing of net gaming revenue prior to the
takeover of casino operation in May 2024. As the Philippines
continues to solidify its position as a premier hub for gaming and
tourism, the performance of this segment has shown significant
improvement. The segment contributed approximately 90.1% of the
Group's revenue during the Year (Previous Year: 74.0%).

Hotel operation

Revenue from the hotel operation segment mainly includes room
revenue, food and beverage revenue, and income from other
hotel services. The Group's hotel is located in Manila City, a tourist
destination with churches, historical sites, and various night spots
catering to tourists, and one of the major tourist destinations in the
Philippines.

Hotel operation revenue for the Year was approximately HK$56.2
million, representing a slight decrease of approximately 6.1%, as
compared with approximately HK$59.8 million for the Previous
Year. Of this, approximately HK$37.2 million, or 66.2%, was room
revenue (Previous Year: HK$42.2 million or 70.5%). The decrease in
total revenue was mainly due to the renovations to upgrade the
hotel rooms. During the Year, revenue from food and beverages
was approximately HK$16.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 0.6%, as compared with approximately HK$16.2
million for the Previous Year.

Live events

Revenue from this segment is derived from sponsorships and
entrance fees for live poker events. However, no live poker events
were held during the Year.
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The casino gambling industry in the Philippines has a lot of potential for
growth. The gaming industry is well positioned to draw both domestic and
foreign tourists due to its wide range of gaming establishments, including
integrated resorts, entertainment complexes, and smaller-scale casinos.
The casino industry’s prospects are aided by the country’s advantageous
geographical position in Southeast Asia and its popularity as a travel
destination.

The Philippines is increasingly being recognised as a premier destination
for international tourists, thanks to the government’s supportive policies
aimed at boosting the tourism industry. According to the Department of
Tourism'’s report for January to December 2024, the Philippines welcomed
nearly six million international visitors during the period, with foreign
tourists accounting for approximately 91.4% of the total. The total number
of international visitors in 2024 increased by 9.15% compared with 2023.
With the government’s economic support policies, the growth momentum
of the gaming and tourism industries is expected to continue, potentially
even surpassing other Asian countries in the near term. The Directors
believe that the influx of tourists to the Philippines will boost the economy
and benefit the gaming and entertainment industry.

As disclosed in the Company's announcements dated 27 September 2023
and 9 May 2024, the Group was granted a Provisional License by PAGCOR
to establish and operate a Casino. Pursuant to the Provisional License, the
Group is required to commit a total investment of no less than USD1.0
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$7.82 billion) and up to USD1.2
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$9.38 billion) for the establishment
and operation of the Casino and a Group hotel in Manila City (the “Hotel").
Operation of the Casino commenced in May 2024.
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To undertake casino and gaming operations, the Group plans to carry
out a series of renovations at the Hotel. It entered into construction
service agreements with a contractor during the Year to commence the
renovation work with the goal of maintaining the Hotel's good service and
condition, while upgrading its infrastructure and facilities to complement
the Casino’s operations. The Board believes that the implementation of
the renovations will improve the appearance and condition of the Hotel's
facilities, modernize outdated amenities, enhance its overall quality and
promote premium customer experiences at both the Casino and the
Hotel. In the long-term, this will increase the Hotel's occupancy rates and
encourage spending at the Casino and the Hotel. Moreover, the renovation
work will create additional gaming space on the ground floor of the Casino.
As a result, the maximum number of gaming tables will increase from
approximately 80 to over 110, and the maximum number of slot machines
will increase from approximately 500 to over 920 in coming financial year.
The Company is optimistic that the expansion of the Casino’s gaming
capacity will improve the future revenue of the Casino.

Regarding the future development of an integrated resort, the Board
will consider different financing methods, such as bank borrowing, debt
financing, and/or equity financing, to expand its business and maintain the
liquidity of the Group.

However, challenges such as geopolitical tensions may impact the
pace of the global economy’s recovery. The Group remains cautiously
optimistic about the outlook of the tourism and gaming industries in the
Philippines. The Group will continue to focus on its business operations
and investments in the Philippines, leveraging the business environment
to explore potential business opportunities.

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s net current assets of approximately
HK$524.6 million (as at 30 June 2024: HK$16.2 million). Current assets
amounted to approximately HK$762.9 million (as at 30 June 2024: HK$616.8
million), of which approximately HK$562.5 million was bank balances and
cash (as at 30 June 2024: HKS417.5 million).

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had current liabilities amounting to
approximately HK$238.3 million (as at 30 June 2024: HK$600.6 million).
During the Year, promissory notes (2025 PNs") of aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$468.0 million with maturity date on 31 March
2027 were issued to fully settle the previous promissory notes, please
refer to note 30 of the consolidated financial statements in this report for
further details. The entire 2025 PNs were classified as non-current liabilities
at 30 June 2025 (as at 30 June 2024: HK$441.3 million in current liabilities).
Convertible bonds of aggregate principal amount of approximately
HKS$53.0 million were settled by cash in full on the maturity date during the
Year (as at 30 June 2024: HK$56.1 million in current liabilities).
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The Group's bank balances and cash as at 30 June 2025 was mainly
denominated in Philippine Peso (“Peso(s)” or “PHP"), Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and United States dollars ("USD").

Net cash used in operating activities for the Year was approximately
HKS$15.2 million, while net cash used in operating activities was
approximately HK$30.5 million for the Previous Year. Net assets attributable
to the owners of the Company as at 30 June 2025 amounted to
approximately HK$773.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately
24.0 %, as compared with approximately HK$1,016.8 million as at 30 June
2024.

On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, the placing agent successfully placed an aggregate of
190,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company, each valued at HK$1.00, at a
placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further details are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 27 July 2017 and 10 August 2017. After
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable
by the Company, the net proceeds from the placing were approximately
HK$358.5 million. The net proceeds from the placing were intended for
the following (i) approximately HK$150.0 million for the renovation of the
Hotel; (ii) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of the land
parcels adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land"), including, but not
limited to, the construction of a carpark and amenities for the Hotel, and
the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the acquisition
of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for the potential
acquisition of, including but not limited to, land in the Philippines for the
construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the remaining proceeds
for the Group's general working capital.

Change in use of proceeds

In light of the grant of the Provisional License to the Group, the Group must
carry out upgrading renovation and construction works by entering into
the Construction Contract, as referenced in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 February 2025 in relation to a construction contract (the
“Construction Contract’) and change in use of proceeds. The Group is
required to make a significant total investment commitment of no less
than USD1.0 billion and up to USD1.2 billion pursuant to the Provisional
License. The Board has resolved to reallocate all unutilized net proceeds
from the Placing Agreement, amounting to approximately HK$117.4
million, to contribute to the contract price payment of the Construction
Contract, which is expected to be fully utilized by the end of 2025.
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Below is a summary of the utilization of the net proceeds as at 30 June

2025:

Renovation of the Hotel

Development of the New Hotel Land,
including but not limited to the

construction of a carpark and amenities

of the Hotel, and the provision of

a fadility to an independent third party
for the acquisition of the New Hotel

Land (Note 1)

Potential acquisition (the "Potential
Acquisition’) of, including but not

limited to, land in the Philippines for the
construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s)

General working capital of the Group

Contribution to the contract price

EABRABE

payment under the construction service = A 110 B A1 S IR 7%

agreement dated 14 February 2025
(Note 2)

Total

Revised
allocation
of the
net proceeds
as disclosed
in the
announcement
of the Company
dated
Intended use of 14 February
the net proceeds 2025
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Amount of the
net proceeds
utilized as at
30 June 2025

i
—ECEHE
~AA=tH

EBA
FiaHE
BELH
(HKS million)
(AgET)
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526

385

1034

3445
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Balance of the
net proceeds
unutilized as at
30 June 2025
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(HKS million)
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140

BREBFEL

Expected
timeline

for the
application of
the balance of
the net proceeds
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Notes:

1. Of the HK$52.6 million utilized, HK$51.9 million was a loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land, and
HK$0.7 million was for the payment of design and consultancy service fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new land to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land.

2. The aggregate contract price of PHP1,471.68 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$191.32 million) payable by New Coast Leisure Inc. ("NCLI") under the
Construction Service Agreement dated 14 February 2025 entered into by NCLI and

the contractor in respect of the phase 1 renovation and construction works at the

hotel to be carried out by the contractor pursuant to the Construction Contract.
(Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 14 February 2025 for details.)

During the Year, a bank loan of approximately HK$393.1 million was
obtained for the establishment and operation of a casino and the
development of an integrated resort under the Provisional License. Interest
is charged at 3.75% per annum. The Group does not currently hedge its
interest rate exposure, though it may consider doing so in the future.

For further details regarding the Group's indebtedness, please see notes
30 and 31 of the consolidated financial statements in this report, which
provide information on the types of debt facilities used, the maturity profile
of the debt, and the currency and interest rate structure.

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total capital (not applicable under
net cash position). Net cash or debt is calculated as total borrowings, which
includes outstanding promissory notes, outstanding bank borrowings and
outstanding convertible bonds, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position, less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as
total equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2025 was approximately 115.8% (as at 30
June 2024: 64.7%). For further details regarding the Group's gearing ratio,
please refer to note 40 of the consolidated financial statements in this
report.

During the Year, the Group financed its operations through internally
generated cash flows and bank loans.
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The Group’s Casino and Hotel face intense market
competition

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties due to
competition in the market in which it operates, as well as new competitors
which may increase competition in the future.

The Group's business is sensitive to economic uncertainty
and regulatory risk resulting from changes in laws and
regulations

The Group is sensitive to economic downturns and political and social
conditions. Changes in relevant laws and regulations in the places where
the Group operates may affect its gaming operations.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to tax disputes between certain
subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the Bureau of
Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR").

Save as otherwise mentioned in this report, the Group did not incur any
violations of relevant laws and regulations in its operating locations that
had a significant impact on its business operations during the Year.

As at 30 June 2025, the bank loan and the banking facility were secured
by the Group’s properties as classified under Properties, Plant and
Equipment (valued at approximately HK$518.7), certain bank balances of
the Group (valued at approximately HK$403.8), and certain land use rights
and condominiums of associates of the Group, together with financial
guarantees provided by associates of the Group.

On 30 May 2025, the Group entered into a construction service agreement
with a contractor for phase 2 renovation and construction works at
the hotel (“Phase 2 Construction Service Agreement’). Pursuant to
this agreement, NCLI agreed to engage the contractor to undertake
construction works with an aggregate contract price of PHP1,053.14 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$136.91 million). Details of the terms of
the Phase 2 Construction Service Agreement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 30 May 2025.
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On 14 February 2025, the Group entered into a construction service
agreement with a contractor for the phase 1 renovation and construction
works at the Hotel ("Phase 1 Construction Service Agreement”).
Pursuant to this agreement, NCLI agreed to engage the contractor
to undertake construction works with an aggregate contract price of
PHP1,471.68 million (equivalent to approximately HK$191.32 million).
Details of the terms of the Phase 1 Construction Service Agreement are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 14 February 2025.

On 27 September 2023, the Group entered into a Provisional License
Agreement pursuant to which PAGCOR has granted the Group’s
companies a Provisional License to establish and operate a casino and
develop an integrated resort in the City of Manila, Philippines. The validity
or term of the Provisional License and the Regular Casino Gaming License
shall coincide with the PAGCOR franchise, which shall be effective from the
date of the Provisional License Agreement until 11 July 2033. Pursuant to
the Provisional License Agreement, the Group will make a total investment
commitment of no less than USD1.0 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$7.82 billion) and up to USD1.2 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$9.38 billion) for the project under the Provisional License. The
total investment commitment comprises costs for land acquisition,
development rights acquisition, construction, equipment, development,
financing and all other expenses directly related to the completion of the
project. Details of the terms of the Provisional License Agreement are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 September 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there were no acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries or associated companies or significant investments by the
Group that would have been required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules for the Year and the Previous Year.

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities, including renovation plans to improve the Group's
properties and leasing premises, which could provide growth and
development potential, enhance profitability, and deliver better returns to
Shareholders.
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\ternational Entertainment Corporation BIfRIRZ4F R A F

Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is the Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors believe this is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and convenient for Shareholders.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD,
Pesos and euros. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS,
USD and Pesos, while primarily incurring costs and expenses in HK$ and
Pesos. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the Group's management will monitor foreign currency exposure
for each business segment and review the needs of each geographical area
and consider an appropriate hedging policy in the future when necessary.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(for the Previous Year: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 1,312 as at 30 June 2025
(as at 30 June 2024: 1,001). Staff costs for the Year were approximately
HK$158.0 million (Previous Year: HK$87.5 million), of which, HK$152.9
million (the Previous Year: HK$86.1 million) was included in general and
administrative expenses, and HKS5.1 million (Previous Year: HKS 1.4 million)
was included in cost of sales. The Company’s remuneration policy is
recommended by the Company’s remuneration committee. Directors’ and
employees’ remuneration is based on their performance and experience
and is determined with reference to the Group's performance, industry
remuneration benchmarks, and prevailing market conditions. In addition to
salaries, the Group's employees are entitled to benefits, including medical,
insurance and retirement benefits. The Group also regularly provides
internal and external training to meet needs of its employees.
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Mr. HO Wong Meng ("Mr. HO"), aged 53, joined the Company in
September 2020, and is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is also a member
and the Chairman of the executive committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. He is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. HO possesses more than 25 years of extensive experience and
exceptional expertise in the gaming and hospitality industry. He also has
a vast knowledge and experience in the establishment and operation of
casinos and integrated resorts throughout the industry. Mr. HO specialises
in and has deep understanding of the Asian gaming and hospitality
industries.

Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited partnership
established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands. The general partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is
Excite Investments Holdings Limited, an exempted company established
under the law of Cayman Islands and is solely owned by Mr. HO. As
such, Mr. HO is deemed to be interested in 260,000,000 shares of the
Company held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), representing
approximately 18.99% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. HO was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE (‘Mr. TABLANTE"), aged 59, joined the
Company in April 2022, and is an executive Director of the Company. He is
also a member of the executive committee of the Company, and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TABLANTE has been with the
Group since 2018, overseeing the strategic planning, overall operations and
corporate management affairs in the Subsidiaries Group in the Philippines.

Mr. TABLANTE holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial
Management Engineering from De La Salle University (DLSU), Manila,
Republic of the Philippines in 1986. He possesses more than 20 years of
senior management experience in hospitality industry.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. TABLANTE was not a director in any other
listed companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio ("Mr. LUK"), aged 36, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in September 2025. He is also a
member and the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member
of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr. LUK holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree in Accounting and
Finance from the University of East Anglia, United Kingdom and Juris
Doctor degree from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Luk was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2020 and in New South Wales,
Australia in 2022, and is currently a practising Hong Kong solicitor at a local
law firm.

Mr. LUK has over 8 years' experience in the legal sector and is experienced
in advising clients in respect of civil litigation, criminal litigation, family law
and wills and probate matters.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. LUK was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. CHENG Hong Wai ("Mr. CHENG"), aged 46, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2021. He is also a member
and the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. CHENG holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Commerce in Accounting from
Macquarie University in Australia. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public
Accountant and a member of CPA Australia who has over 15 years of
managerial experience in auditing, finance and accounting. Mr. CHENG
has extensive experience in financial and accounting as well as assurance
and advisory services in Hong Kong and Australia, where he has gained
expertise to a range of industries, including financial services, food and
beverage, software houses, hospitality, manufacturing and not-for-profits
organisations. He is also well experienced in internal auditing in various
leading financial institutions, including those related to internal controls
over financial reporting as well as daily operation procedures.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHENG was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG ("“Ms. LUMAWIG"), aged 30, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in December 2024.
She is also a member and the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company and a member of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company.

Ms. LUMAWIG holds a Bachelor of Science in Accountancy from Holy Angel
University and is a certified public accountant of the Philippines. With over
nine years of professional experience in accounting and auditing in the
Philippines, she specializes in financial reporting, regulatory compliance,
and internal controls. She currently serves as a director at a consulting firm.

Save a disclosed above, Ms. LUMAWIG was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2025.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Suites 1802-
1803, 18/F., Three Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 140 to 141 of this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(the Previous Year: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 17 of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 12% (the Previous Year:
53%) and 15% (the Previous Year: 60%) respectively of the Group's total
revenue for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has an interest in any of the
Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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ESEWRES

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 263 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 15
and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of principal properties of the Group are set out on page 264 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2025, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company’s
Articles of Association, amounted to approximately HKS$1,249.3 million
(2024: HK$979.9 million).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 144 of this annual report and Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Year, charitable donations of approximately HK$16,000 were
made by the Group (the Previous Year: Nil).
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The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio (appointed on 26 September 2025)
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai
Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG (appointed on 11 December 2024)

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (resigned on 11 December 2024)
Mr. LAU Ka Ho (resigned on 26 September 2025)

Pursuant to articles 84(1) and 84(2) of Second Amended and Restated
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. Mr. Ho Wong Meng will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
"AGM") and shall then be eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Ms. Danica Ramos
Lumawig, who has been appointed with effect from 11 December 2024,
and Mr. Luk Ching Kwan Corio, who has been appointed with effect from
26 September 2025 shall hold office until the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines under the Listing Rules, and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to
20 of this annual report.
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As at 30 June 2025, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which were required,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix C3 (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
and underlying shares of the Company:

RZZ-_RHFRA=1TH BEFEREARREET
BABRARRNERBEAE (E&RBEEBED

FNEBFELRBEEN((ESRBEHKEE])E
XVE8) Z B 1n *BF‘%W%ME%EP HEREE
S REEGEOEXNVIE7RESHBHEME AR
T&E BARXSMERAR (BT 2
75*(@?ﬂﬂ%}%%ﬁ%&%ﬂﬁﬂ%@l*ﬁf‘sﬁﬂ%i%&
f’ETﬁf’E%ﬁﬁZ%\ KRB BRBEEFK
Hﬁifwﬁu%zszﬂ 2,\HE§5~EA/ETEZ’§EEH%Z$%§
HEIKE i*ﬂﬂfﬁf@ﬁﬁ%@ﬁmﬁéﬂ/\%%
ETBEAFR MR ESR ([EEFA]) BH
RARMBRET 2 BRmIOAB T ¢

REQXARSG (RE) REBROZHFE

Number of Shares
R&H 8B

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital of
Name of Director interest interest Total the Company ete?
EALDRE BITRA
E=pE PN £ NEER et BAE D #E
Mr. HO Wong Meng = 260,000,000 260,000,000 18.99%

HO Wong Meng %t 4

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership
Law of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner) which was wholly-owned by Mr. HO, an executive Director.

) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

(Note 1) (Hfit 1)

Kt

(1) 2 % B 15 A Excite Opportunity Fund LP. (K & — 1R
BHREHEEREEREBEE IR INER RS
REBTE) A WHATESHOXELZEHRE
HJ Excite Investments Holdings Limited (1 & & i@ & %
A)ERR -

Q BHHUBRR-ZZE-ZAFAA=Zt+HZE#®
1,369,157,235 IR B B AEHEFTRTEH ©

TR

R EXFHEEIN R-F_RAFXA=1TH"

EEFHARBERTHRABBERARERE
HEEE (EEREFRMEHRGIEXVE) 2K
7~ AR REST  BAIREIERBARE

FBEREAEIEOIEIIGBRENBAREE 2 BT
i 2 E SRk A ME}FT%? E5TRIE B1TH

SRR A R R A2 A S

/)()E ©



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2025, the following persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) were interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company which were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules:
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Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Shares held the Company et
HARDNREBITRE
RRLE, BB BREME/ 56 HENRARE BT
Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. Beneficial owner 260,000,000 18.9904 (Notes 1and 2)
Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. BEREEA (H3E1 2)
Excite Investments Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.999 Metel)
Excite Investments Holdings Limited 324 UNCIPA S ()
Glorious Future Fund SPC Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18999, Mot
Glorious Future Fund SPC et VNG 2 (Rig2)
AG Investment Management Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18999 Moed)
AG Investment Management Company Limited 324 UNCIPA S (ht2)
Mr. TANG Yuk Fan Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18999, (Mot
BEFEE F IR A 2 2
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd Beneficial owner 131,800,000 9.63%
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd EmEEA
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Notes:

Q) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,, an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership
Law of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner). Accordingly, Excite Investments Holdings Limited was deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

) Glorious Future Fund SPC was the limited partner of Excite Opportunity Fund LP,,
whose management shares were held by AG Investment Management Company
Limited in its capacity as investment manager. AG Investment Management
Company Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. TANG Yuk Fan. Accordingly, each
of Glorious Future Fund SPC, AG Investment Management Company Limited
and Mr. TANG Yuk Fan was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Excite
Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, the Company had not been
notified by any person or company, other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company whose interests are set out in the section headed
“DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” in this report, who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”),
approved by the Shareholders on 1 November 2017, was terminated by
the Shareholders on 15 November 2024 (the “Termination Date”).

From 1 July 2024 until the Termination Date, no options of the Company
were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. The total number of shares
available for grant by the Company under the Share Option Scheme was
68,457,863 shares as at 1 July 2024 and that limit was cancelled by the
Shareholders on the Termination Date.
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The share award scheme of the Company (the “Share Award Scheme”)
was approved and adopted by the Shareholders on 15 November 2024.
A summary of the principal terms of the Share Award Scheme is set out
below. Further details are set out in the circular of the Company dated 22
October 2024.

1. Purpose

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to (a) recognise the
contributions by certain employees and individuals to the Group; (b)
provide the eligible participant(s) with additional incentives to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group;
and (c) attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group.

2. Duration

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of
ten (10) years commencing from the date the Share Award Scheme
becomes unconditional on 15 November 2024 (the "“Adoption
Date”) and ending on the business day immediately prior to the
tenth anniversary of the Adoption Date.

3. Administration

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the Share Award Scheme and where
applicable, the trust deed. A decision of the Board or the committee
of the Board or person to which the Board has delegated its authority
shall (save as otherwise provided herein and in the absence of
manifest error) be final and binding on all persons affected thereby.
Subject to the Share Award Scheme Rules, the Listing Rules and any
applicable law and regulations, the Board and the committee of the
Board or person to which the Board has delegated its authority shall
have the power, inter alia, from time to time to:

(@)  construe and interpret the rules set out therein relating to
the Share Award Scheme as amended from time to time (the
“Share Award Scheme Rules”) and the terms of the awards
granted under the Share Award Scheme;

(b)  make or vary such arrangements, guidelines, procedures
and/or regulations for the administration, interpretation,
implementation and operation of the Share Award Scheme,
provided that they are not inconsistent with the Share Award
Scheme Rules;
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Administration (Continued)

(@)

decide how the vesting of the share(s) (including treasury
shares) granted to any eligible participant(s) approved for
participation in the Share Award Scheme and who has been
granted any award pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (the
"Selected Participant’) in an award (the "Awarded Shares”)
will be settled pursuant to the Share Award Scheme Rules;

grant awards to eligible participants selected from time to time;

determine the terms and conditions of the awards;

determine the commencement or termination date of an eligible
participant's employment with any member of the Group;

establish and administer performance targets in respect of the
Share Award Scheme;

approve the form of a letter to be issued by the Company to
each Selected Participant specifying the date of the grant, the
number of awarded shares, the vesting criteria and conditions
and the vesting date of an award; and

take such other steps or actions to give effect to the terms and
intent of the Share Award Scheme Rules.

Participants

The eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme are the

director(s) (including executive Directors and non-executive

Directors but excluding independent non-executive Directors) and

full-time employee(s) of any member of the Group (the “Employee
Participant(s)”); and provided that the Board may, from time to
time, at its absolute discretion select any eligible participant to be

a Selected Participant. For the avoidance of doubt, awards will only

be granted to Employee Participant(s) after commencement of their

employment.
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Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Award
Scheme is 136,915,723 Shares, representing 10% of the Company's
issued shares as at the date of approval date of the Share Award
Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares awarded and to be awarded issued to
each eligible participant (other than the independent non-executive
Director, substantial Shareholders and any of their respective
associates) in any twelve (12) months period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. The total number
of shares awarded and to be awarded to each of the independent
non-executive Director, substantial Shareholders and any of their
respective associates in any twelve (12) months period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the Shares in issue.

Vesting period of the award

An award granted must be held by the grantee for at least twelve
(12) months before the Awarded Shares can vested. The Board (or
the remuneration committee of the Company where it relates to
grants of awards to an Employee Participant who is a Director and/
or senior manager of the Company) may at its discretion grant a
shorter vesting period to an Employee Participant in the following
circumstances:

(@)  grants of “make-whole” award(s) to new joiners to replace
the share awards they forfeited when leaving the previous
employers;

(b) grants to an Employee Participant whose employment is
terminated due to death or occurrence of any out of control
event;
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7.

Vesting period of the award (Continued)

() grants that are made in batches during a year for
administrative and compliance reasons, which include
awards that should have been granted earlier if not for such
administrative or compliance reasons but had to wait for
subsequent batch. In such case, the vesting period may be
shorter to reflect the time from which the award would have
been granted;

(d)  grants of awards with a mixed or accelerated vesting schedule
such as where the awards may vest evenly over a period of
twelve (12) months; or

(e)  grants with performance-based vesting conditions in lieu of
time-based vesting criteria.

Termination of the Share Award Scheme

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (a) the end
of the period of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption Date,
except in respect of any non-vested the Awarded Shares granted
prior to the expiration of the Share Award Scheme, for the purpose
of giving effect to their vesting; or (b) such date of early termination
as determined by the Board provided that such termination shall
not affect any subsisting rights of the Selected Participant; provided
further that for the avoidance of doubt, the change in the subsisting
rights of a Selected Participant in this provision refers solely to
any change in the rights in respect of the Awarded Shares already
granted.

For the period from the Adoption Date to 30 June 2025, no awards of the
Company were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. The total number
of shares available for grant by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme as at the Adoption Date and 30 June 2025 was 136,915,723 Shares,
representing approximately 10% of the Company's issued shares as at the
Adoption Date and 30 June 2025.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.7 of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out Appendix C1 (the “CG Code") of the Listing Rules and subject to the
provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of the duty of
his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Award Scheme as disclosed, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director’s connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.
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Change in composition of the Board

During the year, the changes in composition of the Board are set out
below:

(1) Mr. Leung Wai Tai has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee’) and a member of each
of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”), all with effect from 11 December 2024.

(2)  Ms. Danica Ramos Lumawig has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, all with effect from 11 December 2024.

(3)  Mr. Lau Ka Ho has resigned as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee, all with effect from 26 September 2025.

(4)  Mr. Luk Ching Kwan Corio has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, all with effect
from 26 September 2025.

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or in existence during the Year.

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the Year.

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
on pages 34 to 59 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are in line with the CG Code and the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report of annual
results, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company, or under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
Shareholders.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

HO Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 September 2025
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During the Year, the Company has applied the principles and complied
with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviation from the code provisions which are explained below.

Code Provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Ho currently assumes the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides the
Company with strong and consistent leadership, allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies,
and is beneficial to the business prospects and management of the Group.
Although Mr. Ho performs both the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established. These two roles are performed by
Mr. Ho distinctly.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors that is no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code. After specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the Company’s own code during the Year.

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises five Directors, of whom two are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The names
of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio (appointed on 26 September 2025)
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai

Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG (appointed on 11 December 2024)

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (resigned on 11 December 2024)
Mr. LAU Ka Ho (resigned on 26 September 2025)

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group. Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. Updated list of Directors identifying their role and
function are maintained on the websites of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at www.ientcorp.com.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established, and is responsible
for the management of the Board and ensures that all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief
Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group and oversight of the management. The management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
clearly established. In addition, the Company has established the executive
committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee with respective terms of reference to assist
the Board in focusing on specific matters, fulfill their roles and functions
delegated by the Board, and make any necessary recommendations of the
Board.

Presently, Mr. HO Wong Meng assumes the roles of both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer. The reasons for the deviation of the code
provision C.2.1 under the CG Code are set out in the section headed
“Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code”.

Board Independence

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure that independent views
are available to the Board. During the Year, the Board also reviewed and
considered the mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board. These mechanisms include:

the Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members being
independent non-executive Directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Further, independent non-executive
Directors will be appointed to Board Committees as required under
the Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure independent
views are available;
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Board Independence (Continued)

the Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the Nomination Policy
(as defined below) and Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
with regard to the nomination and appointment of independent
non-executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to ensure
that they can continually exercise independent judgments;

the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
entitled to obtain further information from the management on
the various matters to be discussed at Board meetings and, where
necessary, independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expense; and

the Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Company is of the view that all of the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are considered by the Board to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considers that each of the independent non-executive Directors
brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations. None
of the independent non-executive Directors has any business or financial
interests with the Group nor has any relationship with other Directors.
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Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of the Directors

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in B.2.2 of the CG Code all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.

Each of Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio, Mr. CHENG Hong Wai and Ms. Danica
Ramos LUMAWIG, who were appointed as independent non-executive
Directors, entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on the date of their appointment and
is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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Board Meetings

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to approve, among other things, the
financial results of the Company. Regular Board meetings are scheduled
in advance to give the Directors an opportunity to attend. All Directors are
invited to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. For all
other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given to Directors. Directors
can attend Board meetings either in person or by electronic means of
communication.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than by a written resolution. Independent non-executive Directors
who, have no material interest in the transaction will be present at such
Board meeting.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking minutes
of all Board and Board committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to
Board or Board committee members unless a conflict of interest arises and
the final version of minutes are open for inspection by the Directors upon
reasonable notice.

For the Year, four Board meetings and one annual general meeting were
held.

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 15 November 2024
to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.
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Board Meetings (Continued) ExgeR @)

Details of the attendance of directors are set out below. The attendance of B EHFES#H Z BN T - MR FRPRE
a Director is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his  ZEMEEM S * EHELHIZRBRETRTE
tenure if he was appointed part way during the Year. T e@FmREmaL o

Number of meetings during the Year

FRAERXHE
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE GEEHE
Annual General
Meeting held on
Board Meetings 15 November 2024
R-Z-MF
+—At+EHH
BITHRR
ExgER BEXRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board ~ HO Wong Meng 7t &
and Chief Executive Officer) (BEFoEEHTHBEE) 4/4 1/1
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE 5 4 4/4 11
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. LAU Ka Ho Mo BIR Z o A ) 3/4 1/1
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai BiER B4 3/4 1/1
Mr. LEUNG Wai Taj (ete NG Z S A M) 2/2 /1
Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG ®ere? Danica Ramos LUMAWIG %z =+ (##2) 2/2 N/A 7~ 3 A
Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio ete® B 1E 39 5 A (it N/A 73 A N/A 7 i A
Notes: Hat -
(1) Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai resigned as independent non-executive Director on 11 (1) PEFREER S _NF+_A+—BFTELIHF
December 2024. WITES -

(2) Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG was appointed as independent non-executive (2) Danica Ramos LUMAWIGZ TR ZZF ZMF + = A
Director on 11 December 2024. T —RAEEERBIIIFNTES -

3) Mr. LAU Ka Ho resigned as independent non-executive Director on 26 September  (3) ARZEENR _E_RAFAA - +/NBEMIIBIIE
2025. BITEE -

() Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio was appointed as independent non-executive Director ~ (4) BEEHEER - ZE-_AFAA -+ BEZTAEB
on 26 September 2025. VHHITES -
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Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each
of them will receive a Director’'s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board's committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They
will also receive the materials on the operations and business of the
Group. During the year ended 30 June 2025, Ms. Lumawig and Mr. Luk,
the newly appointed independent non-executive Directors, before their
appointments become effective, pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules: (1) they have obtained the legal advice from a firm of solicitors
qualified to advise on Hong Kong law regarding the requirements under
the Listing Rules applicable to them as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company and the possible consequences of making a
false declaration or providing false information to the Stock Exchange on
9 December 2024 and 23 September 2025, respectively,; and (2) they have
acknowledged that they understood their responsibilities as independent
non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group's
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records
for the Year and all of them had participated in continuing professional
development activities by attending the training courses, seminars,
workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the Year.
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During the Year, the Directors have participated in the following

continuous professional development to develop and refresh their

knowledge and skills:

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng %t 4
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE 5& 4=

Independent non-executive Directors B FEHITEE

Mr. LAU Ka Ho ®ere? B R 5 4 e (Hiar )

Mr. CHENG Hong Wai B EE LS

Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG ®ete %) Danica Ramos LUMAWIG %z = (¥
Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio et ? Bk 1F 35 9 A (a0

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai Nete? T A8 Zx b (Wiz2)

Notes:

m

Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio was appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 26 September 2025.

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai resigned as independent non-executive Director on 11
December 2024.

Mr. LAU Ka Ho resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 26
September 2025.

Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 11 December 2024.
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AEE BFCL2ETIFEIXRER  NER
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Type of continuous professional development

BESERRER
Attending seminars or Reading materials
giving talks relevant to the
of seminars/webinars/  directors’ duties and
conference/forums responsibilities
HEBEREHTE
mEme g8 FRESHER
wiEFBRIER BEZBEME
- v
- v
v v
v v
v v
N/A A3 A N/A 73 B
N/A A3 N/A 3 3

iz -

) EEARER_Z-_RFNAAZ+NBEEZERB
TIFHITES -

Q REREER-_Z-_NF+-_A+—HEEBEUHE
WiTES -

B BRFEAN-_ZE-_RAFNA-TNBEEBIIE
HYrrEE-

(4)  Danica Ramos LUMAWIGZ TR — T~ &+ — A
+—HEZTABIIENTES -



Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Executive Committee) and
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are, inter alia, to advise the
Board in formulating policies in relation to the business operations of the
Group, supervise the management to implement the policies laid down by
the Board, make recommendations to the Board as to the Group's business
plans, and oversee the management and the daily operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance with
Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision D.3.3 and D.3.7 of the CG Code.

As at the date of this annual report, following the resignation of Mr. LAU Ka
Ho and the appointment of Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio on 26 September
2025, the Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. CHENG Hong Wai (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio and Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG,
with written terms of reference which are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. At least one of the
members of the Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualification as defined under the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Audit Committee, comprising Mr. CHENG Hong Wai,
Mr. LAU Ka Ho and Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG, the primary duties of
the Audit Committee are, inter alia, (i) to oversee the relationship with the
external auditor, (ii) to review the financial information of the Group, and (iii)
to review and supervise the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal controls system of the Group.

During the Year, the Audit Committee met with the external auditor not
less than twice to discuss the financial reporting process to review the
effectiveness of risk management and the internal controls system and the
internal audit function of the Group and had reviewed the interim report of
the Company for the six months ended 31 December 2024 and the annual
report of the Company for the Previous Year. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as the Company’s external auditor subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company'’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

EREES (H)
FR BERLZBEEY ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ\’;a%% DAt &t AN 5=
EMBEREF ABERERAREERS A

MEAEEZ B - BHEALD T#&m,\ﬁﬁﬁ (8

BRAKREZPHR2FES) IS ZEED
ZHMEERGER  YRAEESREERREE -

ERZEERBZHFEREFINT

Committee meetings Attended/

Members of the Audit Committee Eligible to Attend

BHE HEER
BEREEERE HEZEEER
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai (Chairman) BB E (FE) 2/2
Mr. LAU Ka Ho ®ere IR F L E WD 22
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (ote B T e A (W) 11
Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG (e Danica Ramos LUMAWIG Zz = (##2) /1
Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio ®et# [ 1F 15 4 A (rize) N/A 38 A

Notes:

(1) Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai resigned as independent non-executive Director on 11
December 2024.

) Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 11 December 2024.

(3) Mr. LAU Ka Ho resigned as independent non-executive Director on 26 September
2025.

4) Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio was appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 26 September 2025.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.3.1 of the CG Code.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director,
namely Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. CHENG Hong Wai and Mr. HO Wong Meng, with written
terms of reference which are available on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the website of the Company.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, (i) to the
structure, size and diversity (including without limitation gender, age,
culture, educational background, skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually, assist the Board in maintaining a Board skills matrix
and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors having regards to the requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”); (iv) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman, the managing director
or the chief executive of the Company; (v) to do any such things to enable
the Committee to perform its powers and functions conferred on it by
the Board; (vi) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
applicable law; (vii) to review and assess regularly the time commitment
and contribution to the Board by each director as well as the Director’s
ability to discharge his or her responsibilities effectively; (viii) to support
the Company'’s regular evaluation of the Board's performance; and (ix)
to review the diversity policy of the Board, as appropriate, to review
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
diversity policy of the Board and the progress of achieving the objectives,
and to make disclosure of its review results in the corporate governance
report annually.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy’) setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural,
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company believes increasing diversity at the Board level as an
important element in achieving its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

When determining the Board's composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of perspectives including, but not limited to,
gender, age, culture and educational background, ethnicity, skills, language,
background, education knowledge, industry experience and professional
experience. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has actively identified individuals that are suitable and qualified
to become Board members to fulfill the Board Diversity Policy and enhance
gender diversity on the Board. As to develop a pipeline of potential
successors for the Board, the Company will also proactively provide internal
trainings to our senior managements and will take into account the factor
of gender diversity when accessing suitable candidates for our senior
management in the future.

The Company may also engage with recruitment agencies to identify
potential successors for the Board and enhance gender diversity in the
coming years, if necessary.

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the Board
annually in the corporate governance report contained in the Company’s
annual report and monitor the implementation of this Board Diversity
Policy. The Board considered that the Company has achieved the
measurable objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy for
the year ended 30 June 2025.

As at 30 June 2025, the Board comprised four male Directors and one
female Director, and the percentage of male and female employees of the
Group are approximately 54.6% and 45.4% respectively.

The Board considers that the Group’s workforce (including Directors) are
diverse in terms of gender. The Group will continue to apply the principle
of appointments based on merits with reference to the Board Diversity
Policy as a whole, and we have also taken, and will continue to take steps
to promote gender diversity at all levels of our Company.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the following
nomination procedures, criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors (the “Nomination Policy").

1.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

Characteristics of individual director

REZEES(H)

BEBR

SESCRMERBRE  EFHFIATES
REEEFENRZME STEMERF ((RAR
g’ -

L mgEE
RAZBENTHRIEESFERABS
2 B T B

) EBEFZBEARE

Integrity and accountability HMEREME
Informed judgment RIE H
Prudence and maturity FIE LA
Principled and professional ERAIRESE

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee

REZEERREE 2HEME

deems appropriate g
(i)  Competencies in the following areas to ensure the Board's iy RIUTEBZBERES  UWERES
overall suitability SEEBEREE
Accounting and finance grt R
Law . EE
Industry knowledge . TEH
Marketing . % & 88

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee REZEERABBEE ZEME
deems appropriate E&E

REAZBEETKER :

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:

the structure, size and composition of the Board; EEe B ABRERK
ESRHZBERENEEEE K
RESEERETERS

SFEeRURKE &L -A@E - F
EMBRZ T EAERFEE FE
BEZEMRMEZSZTIEERRE
BEE

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to
enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the
Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

RIE ATLE AR AR E & AE
ZEET ]

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time
and commitment to the role; and

BENREREBILE D -

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

1.

Selection Criteria (Continued)

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria
and recommend the most competent candidate to the Board. The
Nomination Committee shall also consider the number of board
positions they hold in other firms. After the Nomination Committee
reviewed and considered the candidates, the Nomination
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy. Detailed
background information in relation to potential candidate should
be provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board's approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter
to act as a Director.

Nomination Procedures

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules, (i) every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years, all retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (i) any Director appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next general meeting of
the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at
the general meeting of the Company.

For those who offered themselves for re-election at the AGM or
the other general meetings of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall take into account the fulfillment of duties,
contribution, and attendance of Board meetings and general
meetings. The Nomination Committee shall also access whether the
retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board.

Based on the recommendations made by the Nomination
Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at
the AGM or other general meetings of the Company, and provide
available biographical information of the retiring Directors in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules to enable
the Shareholders to make informed decision on the re-election of
such retiring Directors at the AGM or other general meetings of the
Company.

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

REZES (H)
RERE (&)

1.

BEIRE (B)
HERZEGRABBHE - BREAN S
ZESRREAHENETHE IWE
ZEHERRRABTIRNZEEA R
HERBEMHERIFEAREMARESL
ZEFERGHE REZEENEHK
EEREEANE REMREREARRLE
RERIEFENEINEZTGRIEES - B
EREZEAMBEIESERER AR T2
BEF UHREER -ENEFEHL
AREEQTERBREZBECAEREE
EEMZEBERRIE HAEL -
TEEFRARBHEEEZREE -

EHEF
REARFABERZANR EHARA 0
BREFHRAELE=FRESTE X
PIERTESEHTAERNBERRBSF
AREEEET RNEFEZT2ERNE
FEEBEARA TABRRERILE R
TEFHTAEBNARRBRRAGEE
-

HAEERBIRBFAGHARA MR
AREERETZEEME  REZEEH
ZEREMBETHRE  MIEHERMARR
EEZRMBERRGZHER -REE
BEe TSR TEEROEBNARH
ER - REZZEEHNEHNLEEREE
BEAZRIESE RNEFSRHEER
e

E=ZeRBERAZBEZHERBRESZ [
BREBZZNRRBFAGHAQAH
MRRAGEIBREZREIES LER
EHRAZRERBEAESZREESE
B ABBRRRERAEFAEHARAH
ERRAENEREARTESFEL NG

SRIE e



Nomination Committee (Continued) REZEEE (£

Nomination Policy (Continued) BEBE (&)

2. Nomination Procedures (Continued) 2. RBEEF (/%)
The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members REZEGR/TVEETGHELERE
possess the relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the PN S .%&%%ﬁ%% B iERE 2 8 &%HE@Z '
business operations of the Group with several of them also HAHETHEEEER - REZEER
possess professional qualifications. The Nomination Committee REEFESTSHERE K& M#E -
considers that an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, EREEZTANESEHS AT EAE
expertise and diversity on the Board is maintained and therefore no EgEREEcAE-

measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting, () to review ~ AFE - IRBEZE S BEBIT— XA 2H ' LOBF
the structure, size and composition of the Board; to assess the appropriate i%AE’] 2 - AR uﬂﬁ%%"%ﬁf@ =E57
mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on the Board; & MBE BEREZTECHERZES ;)
(ii) to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor its implementation; (i) *ﬁ NEFEZTIHBRLER %‘3\ BT (i
to review the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; B JEMITEZ 2 B 50 RivEEEAR R
and (iv) to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for ~ RIIRRBEFAGLRXB 2 EIEE 2 ERK -

election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are  IRZZEE €K 8 2 HF LS5 T -
set out below:

Committee meetings Attended/

Members of the Nomination Committee Eligible to Attended
BHE BRER
REZEEEHRE HEZEEER
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (Chairman) et RIS A (F ) a0 1
Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG ®ete2 Danica Ramos LUMAWIG % == ##2) N/A i3 A
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng %t 4 1
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai BFEE L E 11
Notes: Htat -
(1) Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai resigned as independent non-executive directoron 11 (1) ZREHRAENR T _NE+_A+—BHEEBELIE
December 2024. HITES o

(20 Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG was appointed as independent non-executive ~ (2)  Danica Ramos LUMAWIGK =R = — &+ — A
director on 11 December 2024. T —HAEEERBUIENTES -
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.

As at the date of this annual report, following the resignation of Mr. LAU Ka
Ho and the appointment of Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio on 26 September
2025, the Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. CHENG Hong Wai and Ms. Danica Ramos
LUMAWIG, with written terms of reference which are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. LAU
Ka Ho, Mr. CHENG Hong Wai and Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG, the
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
and on the establishment of a formal, transparent procedure for developing
the remuneration policy; (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and the remuneration of the non-executive
Directors; (iii) to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time; (iv) to review and approve compensation payable to
the executive Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (v) to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of the Directors
for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; (vi) to ensure that no Director
or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration; (vii)
to form a view and advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any
service contracts of the Directors that require shareholders’ approval under
Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules; (viii) to review and/or approve matters relating
to shares schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group's performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued) FMEEE(E)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee, held one meeting to review $¢f€* FMEZEGTRIT—RgE  AEHX
the remuneration policy of the Company and make recommendations A & 2 % BB - LA&E¢§$&$E EefEE
to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and the senior A BZ HMAEF T IREE

management of the Group.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee  HMEE &K 8 v HEREH I WOT ¢
are set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee Committee meeting Attended/
Eligible to Attend
FMEEERE BHE HEER
HEZEEER
Mr. LAU Ka Ho (Chairman) et BIRZ & (FE) WEs 1/1
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai BERELE 1/1
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (et 7 A& Tr o A D 1/1
Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG ®ete2 Danica Ramos LUMAWIG 2 == ##2) N/A 3 A
Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio ot Bk 1F 35 5 A (i) N/A 73
Notes: Mfet -
(1) Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai resigned as independent non-executive director on 11 (1) PREFREER_Z_NF+_A+—BEEELIFE
December 2024. HITESE -
(2) Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG was appointed as independent non-executive (2) Danica Ramos LUMAWIGZ TR ZZE WM F+ = A
director on 11 December 2024. +—HEZEABILIENTES -

(3)  Mr. LAU Ka Ho resigned as independent non-executive director on 26 September ~ (3)  BIRFAAER T _RAFNA -+ BEEBELIE
2025. BWITEE -

(4 Mr. LUK Ching Kwan Corio was appointed as independent non-executive director ~ (4) BEEHEER T _AFNAZ+HEZTAESE
on 26 September 2025. SIERITES -
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The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which include:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to
time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the
Group; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer, while all Directors have access to the advice and services of her/
him to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary is also responsible for
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that its policy and procedures are followed. They advise the
Board through the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer on corporate
governance matters and facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors.

During the year, Mr. WONG Wing Kit, the Company Secretary of the

Company, attended over 15 hours of professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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nternational Entertainment Corporation B4R €475 fR /A &)

Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and include the applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited,
with regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company's financial
statements is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration in relation to audit services paid or payable
to the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries was HK$3,100,000 and
HK$300,000 respectively and the remuneration in relation to non-audit
services (including agreed-upon procedures on interim results) paid or
payable to the auditor of the Company was HK$260,000.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established the (i) policy and measures to support anti-
corruption laws and regulations; and (ii) Whistleblowing Policy and
measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to raise serious
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Board about possible
improprieties in financial report or other matters of the Group. These
polities can promote high probity standards and ethical business practices.

Further details of the Group’s Anti-Corruption Policy and Whistleblowing
Policy, please refer to the Company’s website.
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The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company’s
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.

The Board will continue to review the dividend policy from time to time,
amend and/or modify the dividend policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are established in order to carry on the business of the entity
in an orderly and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management
policies, safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness
and accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage
the identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed
the significant risks in this annual report. The Group has developed and
adopted different risk management procedures and guidelines with
defined authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions, including gaming operations, hotel operations, food and
beverage, construction, finance, human resources, information technology.
In addition, the Group has adopted a policy to handle and disseminate the
inside information of the Group, which was designed based on “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm (the “External IC Expert’) to perform the internal audit function to
carry out the review on the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.
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The External IC Expert identifies and examines key issues in relation to the
hotel/casino management, strategic management, key operational and
financial processes, human resources management, regulatory compliance
and information security and provides its findings and recommendations
forimprovement. The internal audit function submitted its review report to
the Audit Committee with the key audit findings and recommendations to
improve the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
which were also presented at the Board meeting. The Board is not aware
of any material defect or weakness of the internal systems and controls in
relation to anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing which
would have an adverse impact on the operations of the Group; and
considered that the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared
by the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group's accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group'’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

The Board is committed to maintain an on-going and open dialogue
with current and prospective, and both individual and institutional
shareholders of the Company. A shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders Communication Policy’) was adopted throughout
the Year pursuant to the CG Code which aims at establishing two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

In summary, the Shareholders Communication Policy set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company in order to promote effective
communication with the Shareholders so as to enable them to engage
actively with the Company and exercise their rights as Shareholder in an
informed manner. The Shareholders Communication Policy is available on
the Company's website (www.ientcorp.com) and set out the maintenance
of an effective ongoing communication with the Shareholders.
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The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with its
shareholders through various means includes: (i) financial reports and other
corporate communications. The publication of the financial reports (interim
and annual reports) and other corporate communications including but
not limited to announcements, circulars, notices, proxy forms and other
regulatory disclosure will be provided to Shareholders in accordance with
the Listing Rules and any other relevant laws and regulations to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding; (i) Shareholders’ meetings (i.e. annual
general meeting, extraordinary general meeting or any other Shareholders’
meetings); and the members of the Board, in particular, either the chairmen
of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management
executives will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions in normal circumstances; and (iii) Company’s Website. The
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website
which is an effective communication platform to the shareholders and the
investors as well as the general public.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to its shareholders and investors and discloses information in compliance
with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy for enhancing
the investors relations, and the investors understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies.
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BRREMEADTDRRBBNAEZEF

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Company's Memorandum and ~ FAIFRFF/BZ AN A 404 =12 K40 S A0 Al 3 A
EDIROERR 2 BRI o

Articles of Association and applicable legislation and regulations.

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
sent to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
an EGM shall be held within two (2) months after the date of the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of the date
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the
Shareholder(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by such Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company
to such Shareholder(s).

The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning
the EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Pursuant to article 83(2) of the Articles of Association, subject to the Articles
of Association and the applicable law, the Company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director.

Pursuant to article 85 of Articles of Association, no person other than a
retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given,
shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed
at Shareholders’ meeting. There is no provision allowing Shareholders to
make proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands other than to
propose a person for election as a director. Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, follow the procedures set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company” under the section of
“Corporate Governance Report” of this Report written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for putting forward proposals at the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong, presently at Suites 1802-1803,
18/F., Three Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.
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International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) were principally involved
in hotel operations, operating the gaming business under provision
licence and leasing of gaming venues at the hotel complex of the
Group in Metro Manila in the Philippines to a tenant for authorized
gaming operation and live poker events in Macau. The Group strives
to maximise shareholder returns, which is one of the key elements
to reinforce the foundation of the Group for long-term development
and success. This is achieved not only through enhancing the
Group's financial strength, but also by fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility.

The Group believes sustainability is the key to success and has
integrated this concept into its business strategy. In order to pursue
a sustainable business model, the Group has adopted the principles
of sustainable development at operational levels, integrated
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") aspects into its
management system and taken corresponding measures in its
governance perspective.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”)
summarises the ESG initiatives, plans and performances of the Group
and demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

2.1 Reporting Period

This ESG Report covers the year ended 30 June 2025 (“2025"
or the “Reporting Period").

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25
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2.2

2.3

24

Reporting Boundary

The reporting boundary is determined based on the revenue
contribution of the operations under the Group's direct
operational control throughout the Reporting Period. The
reporting boundary includes the Group's head office in Hong
Kong and the Group’s operations in the Philippines and
Macau.

Nevertheless, considering that effective as of 9 May 2024, the
Group has taken over the casino operation that previously
managed by the Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation, the reporting boundary of this Report has been
expanded to include the operational details and related ESG
data of the Philippine gaming operations from the takeover
date to 30 June 2025. As a result, the coverage of this Report
differs from that of the previous years.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Reporting Guide”) in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Further Information

Your feedback will help the Group to continuously improve
its ESG work and performance. If you have any questions and/
or suggestions regarding this ESG Report and/or the Group’s
ESG work, please communicate with the Group via email to
enquiry@ientcorp.com.
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2.3
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The Group has adopted the following reporting principles, namely AEERERE HERERBREFIK
materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance in the preparation MUATIESRRA  -BNEEH 21 —
of the ESG Report. MR S o

Materiality: The Group determines the impact of various
ESG issues on the Group's operations and its stakeholders
through survey. Based on the results of the stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment survey, the Group
identifies material ESG issues and determines the appropriate
management approach and strategy.

For further details, please refer to the sections headed
"STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT” and "MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT".

Quantitative: The Group has established internal guidelines
and procedures with reference to industry practices,
guidelines of the Stock Exchange or relevant government
departments, as well as laws and regulations, to collect
environmental and social performance data from various
business departments, and to keep relevant monitoring
instrument records and supporting documents. Please refer
to the relevant sections in the ESG Report for the standards,
methodologies and assumptions (where applicable) for the
calculation of performance data.

Consistency: Where feasible, the Group uses consistent
statistical methods to collect ESG data, and the same
conversion methods are used. Relevant historical data has
been disclosed in this ESG Report. If there are any changes that
may affect comparison with previous reports, the Group will
add remarks to the corresponding content of the ESG Report.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to
compile the Report and highlights both achievement and
improvement areas of our ESG management to unbiasedly
disclose the environmental and social performances in the
Reporting Period with the support of pictures, charts and
presentation formats whenever appropriate to present
objective and transparent information and data for readers to
make sound decisions and judgments.
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Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am delighted to present our ESG report
this year. This report provides a showcase for our milestones in
environmental stewardship, social responsibility, and corporate
governance during the Reporting Period. Similar to the previous
reporting periods, we recognize sustainability as an evolutionary
journey that would require continuous improvement and this report
has documented our present position and roadmap to the future.
Through our continuous effort, our social impact initiatives has
permeated different dimensions of our Group's operations.

At the local level, we have actively participated in philanthropic
programs to fulfil our corporate social responsibility through
volunteer work and financial contributions to enhance the living
conditions and educational resources for the children and to provide
essential supplies for underprivileged families.

Besides contributions in the philanthropic programs, we also
understand the importance of effective community engagement
and value the voices of our local communities to shape our ESG
strategy. Our regular engagement with the locals through various
channels, including website updates, announcements or possibly
surveys enable us to identify those local communities that are
vulnerable or may be affected by our operations. In addition, to
support open communication, we provide accessible complaint,
such as designated mailboxes for the local community to voice
their concerns at any time and implement whistle-blowing policy
which enables all employees and third parties such as customers,
suppliers and contractors, to raise any concerns about improprieties,
misconducts, malpractices, wrongdoings, irregularities, fraud or
corruption to the management. Complaints will be promptly
addressed by the relevant departments to ensure appropriate
follow-up and resolution.
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And while we continue to make progress on the social dimensions
of sustainability, we recognise the urgent need to address the
unprecedented environmental challenges facing our planet with
clarity and commitment. As our resorts and gaming operations were
in location that may directly impacted by flooding and typhoon, we
have reinforced our commitment to include climate considerations
into our long-term strategy, that is to ensure the safety and
wellbeing of our guests and employees, while safeguarding the
continuity of our operations. We are advancing efforts to reduce
energy consumption, plastics and waste, including redesigning
room amenities and avoiding microplastics in food preparation.

Going forward, to raise awareness of energy consumption,
Greenhouse Gas ("“GHG") Emissions, hazardous/non-hazardous
waste and food waste among our employees, we would continuous
to provide tailored-training programs to our staffs to minimise the
above and to adopt a healthier, more sustainable lifestyle. Moreover,
all Board members and senior executives will receive training on ESG
and climate- and nature-related risks and opportunities, including
the latest climate science and regulatory changes. This training
enables our Board members to provide targeted insight into the
potential business impacts of such risks and opportunities.

Our sustainability is to build a better shared future by empowering
our people, uplifting local communities and holding ourselves
accountable to international ESG standards thus that we can serve
as good stewards of society and the environment. In the long run,
the Group will commit to operate in an economically, socially, and
environmentally sustainable manner while balancing the interests
of our diverse stakeholders in order to make a long-term positive
impact on our local communities.

| would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Board members,
the management team and all our employees for their hard work
and outstanding contributions. | also want to thank our stakeholders
for their continued support and trust. Together, we will continue to
advance our ESG initiatives, setting the standard for responsible and
sustainable business practices.

By order of the Board

International Entertainment Corporation

Ho Wong Meng

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 5.

Our governance framework fundamentally relies on effective risk
management protocols and internal control systems. Through
implemented policies and continuous monitoring of governance
performance, we maintain sustainable business operations while
building stakeholder confidence via high standard corporate
governance standards.

The Board of Directors holds supreme oversight within our ESG
governance hierarchy, overseeing the Group’s comprehensive
management strategy. Guided by the expressly defined Corporate
Governance Policy in the Director’s handbook, the Board consistently
prioritizes the Group's best interests while discharging its fiduciary
duties.

Senior management operate under top management to
supervise ESG measures, analyse relevant data, provide Board
recommendations, and cultivate organisational ESG awareness.
Through scheduled meetings, they systematically review and
enhance ESG outcomes, subsequently presenting detailed
assessments to the Board.
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ESG Governance Structure
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The Board EEXE
« Ultimate responsibility foroverseemg the company's ESG management and disclosure
- EERRESCERMBRARKAL
- Promote a culture of sustainable development from top to bottom
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- Setting ESG strategy and policy development
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« Risk and opportunity oversight
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« Reporting and disclosure
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Senior Management SR EEE
+ Implementin: (he ESG strategy set by the Board
- EEF R IENESGH
« Performance momtormg
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« Data collection and reporting to the Board
- BIRRETMEERRS
« Ensure effectiveness of the Groups' internal control system
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+ Collaboration with the Board
- REEENAE
+ Promoting company-wide awareness of ESG issues
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Operations Units &E BV
+ Implementation
- i
- Data collection and reporting to the senior management
- BIRRETASRERERS
+ ESG integration in operations
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A robust internal control system plays a vital role in driving
sustainable development and enhancing our ESG performance.
We systematically integrate our internal control mechanisms with
sustainability goals to achieve four primary outcomes: risk mitigation,
operational enhancement, regulatory compliance, and sustainable
value creation for stakeholders. Our internal control system is built
upon five fundamental pillars: validation, accuracy, completeness,
physical security, and maintenance. These components form the
essential infrastructure supporting our sustainable development
initiatives and transparent ESG disclosure practices.
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Basic Objectives of IEC Internal Control System
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Validation 5§ &%

-

Ensure the integrity of the information disclosed in our ESG report by validating the accuracy and
reliability of our data.

Accurate data provides a solid foundation for decision-making, goal-setting, and progress tracking.
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Accuracy ZEFE M

Emphasising accurate records, we establish controls and procedures to ensure data correctness
and reflects the true state of affairs which enhance the reliability of our financial and ESG
reporting.
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Completeness T2 1%

Our internal control system captures and reports all relevant ESG information, providing
stakeholders with a complete picture of our sustainability performance.
Comprehensive data helps identify areas for improvement, engage with stakeholders
meaningfully, and enhances information reliability for decision-making.
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Physical Security & %

Safeguard our physical assets, including data, facilities, and equipment, with security measures
such as access controls and surveillance systems.

These protections prevent unauthorised access, theft, damage, or loss, thereby securing critical
information and preventing data breaches.
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Maintenance #E3#

Regular reviews, updates, and enhancements of our internal control system ensure its
effectiveness and adaptability to changing regulations and sustainability risks.

Continuous improvements help us better identify, assess, and mitigate sustainability-related risks,
ensuring the accuracy and reliability of our ESG reports.
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We systematically collect and analyse stakeholders’ feedback across
multiple communication channels to identify key concerns and
expectations. This process enables continuous refinement of our ESG
policies and operational practices. By evaluating these interactions,
we pinpoint material issues specific to each business sector, ensuring
strategic alignment between our sustainability initiatives and
stakeholder priorities.

The table below summarises the key communication channels we
use and highlights the primary concerns and expectations of our
stakeholders.

Stakeholders Key Communication Channels
BoE FTEEBBRE
Shareholders/Investors - General meetings

Annual financial reports
Announcements and notices
Company website

RE REE . RERE
FREMB®mE
NE B
yNSIE

Customers . Customer service

Customer hotline and email
Customer satisfaction survey
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Concerns and Expectations

BEzSEERBE

Financial performance
Sustainable business development
Environmental responsibility
Accurate, complete and timely information
disclosure
Shareholders’ rights and interest
Corporate governance
IS AR
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Customers’ satisfaction
Protection of customers’ privacy
Environmental responsibility
Hotel safety and security
Complaint management
Emergency response
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6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HEBR®)
Stakeholders Key Communication Channels Concerns and Expectations
& TEBBERE BIcERARNE
Employees Regular performance appraisals Career development

68

)
pill

Suppliers

HER

Communities/
Non-governmental
organisations

MR, FEBUR A A
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Regular meetings
Training programs

EHIRI G
EHIE®
EAIERTE

Business meetings
Order/contract execution
Tele-conferences
EXia

TERE BAUEH

SN
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Donations and support to the
community

ESG reports

Mt RELRBRRRHIE
IRE g RERME

Occupational health and safety
Remuneration and benefits
Diversity and equal opportunity
EXER

BEERERZS
B N 4a A

Lt MFEEH e

Product quality

Fair and open procurement
Stable relationship
EmEE
YNSRYSYNEGET

B E B R

Contribution to society
Environmental responsibility

Compliance with laws and regulations
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6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group recognises that a comprehensive materiality
assessment constitutes an essential component of our
ESG strategy, serving to identify critical sustainability issues
affecting both our business operations and stakeholder
interests. To strengthen this process, we have engaged a
third-party ESG consultant to conduct benchmarking against
internationally recognised disclosure frameworks, while
systematically evaluating the relative significance of identified
ESG factors across our operations.

We have collated input from key stakeholder groups —
including management personnel, employees, supply chain
partners and hotel guests — to ascertain their priorities and
expectations regarding our sustainability performance. This
ensures our methodologies maintain alignment with evolving
stakeholder requirements whilst adhering to global best
practices.

The materiality assessment has undergone the following key
steps:

1. ESG Issues Identification

The Group conducted a comprehensive assessment of
industry-relevant ESG issues by benchmarking against
the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide, international rating
agencies, and peer analysis. This process identified 25
key ESG issues for stakeholder evaluation.

2.  Stakeholder Engagement

We implemented an online survey mechanism to gather
stakeholder perspectives on the identified ESG issues.
Participants evaluated both the significance of our
ESG actions and our historical performance, providing
actionable feedback that was subsequently reviewed by
management for continuous improvement.
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6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)
3.  Prioritisation and Materiality Assessment

A dual-dimensional assessment framework was applied,

measuring:
. Importance to stakeholder interests
. Impact on Group operations

The analysis produced a materiality matrix that informed
policy reviews and strategic decision-making.

4. Management

Through internal deliberations and stakeholder
consultations, management verified that all material ESG
categories align with business objectives and regulatory
requirements.

6.1

2025 ESG Issues Materiality Matrix

CECAFESGEREEEMEME

b High &

Responsible Gaming Practices
REHF
Staff Training and
Career Development
BITHIMBELRE

Community Charity
and Investment

Customer Experience
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Forced Labour RBRITR
FIFETMAEEST
Low & High &
>

IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP’S OPERATIONS
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RIE-HERE =
6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFHEZRHE®)
6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued) 6.1 EEMFMLE)
Level of ESG Issues
Importance LibraryNo.  ESGIssues Corresponding Section
EZRE HEERR ESGHE HEZH
3 Customer Information and Privacy Protection 185 Customer Privacy and Data
EFPEHNALRBRRE RPELMEE
High [ Anti-money Laundering 19. Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering
& RS REFRRESE
2 Customer Experience 18.2 Customer Satisfaction
XPRR ZPmEE
10 Anti-corruption Policy and Whistleblower Procedure  19. Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering
REPHRBERIERF REBRREE
6 Operate in a Credible and Compliant Manner All Sections
AEMNERNEE A 2HEH
8 Responsible Gaming Practices 186 Cultivating Responsible Gaming Culture
BEEBY BREARABY UL
Medium 13 Compliance Employment 12. Employment
i aRER (2%
14 Occupational Health and Safety 13. Health, Safety and Security
BEERERZZ BE 22NRE
15 Employee Remuneration and Benefits 12. Employment

BTHMERT

R
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6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

HEREARE

Level of ESG Issues
Importance LibraryNo.  ESGIssues Corresponding Section
EEEE BEEEY ESGHE HEEE
1 Product Safety and Service Quality 18.1 Service Quality
Emz2RREEE REEE
16 Staff Training and Career Development 14. Development and Training
ETHIINBRER EREL
Medium 19 Community Charity and Investment 16. Community Investment
f HREERRE HERE
7 Intellectual Property Rights Protection 184 Intellectual Property Rights
REANBER MBERE
9 Corporate Governance and Risk Management 5. Corporate Governance
CEERERBER TEER
12 Anti-Competitive Behaviour 19. Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering
REFITH RE[RREE
17 Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination 12 Employment
TFERE  STIARER &R
20 Climate Change Risks and Opportunities 11. Climate Change
RESHERMEE RIRE
Low
& 4 Reasonable Marketing and Publicity 18.3 Advertising and Labelling
BEELHRER BEERRE
5 Sustainable Supply Chain Management 17. Supply Chain Management
ARERERER HERER
18 Prohibit Child Labour and Forced Labour 15. Labour Standards
PIEETRAEHST B TR
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)
6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

Level of
Importance

EERE

Low

ESG Issues
Library No.

ERERR

23

21

24

22

25

ESG Issues
ESG#E

Renewable Energy

AELRR

Emissions and Waste Management

BHLERNER

Environment and Natural Resources

RERKRER

Resource Use

ERER

Environmental Stewardship

RAEHE

6. ﬁﬁ%ﬁ,\ (%)

6.1

B ()

Corresponding Section

HEZH
9. Use of Resource
BRER
7. Emission
Y
8. Waste Management
BEENER
10.  The Environment and Natural Resources

RENXAER

Use of Resource

ERER

The Environment and Natural Resources

BEMARER
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The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021,
the key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the

Group against the targets:

Key Topics
B ERRE

Air and Greenhouse
Gas Emissions

BER SO = R A HE

Hazardous Waste

BEEEY

Hazardous and
Non-hazardous Waste

BERERMNEZRE
3]

During the Reporting Period, the Group has remained in full
compliance with laws and regulations concerning air and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and the generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We adhere to various laws,
including, but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap.311) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.354) of Hong
Kong, the Environmental Law (Law No. 2/91/M) of Macau, Republic
Act No. 4850 of the Philippines, and The Philippine Clean Air Act

(Republic Act No. 8749).

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

TRIETAEER —T - —FEFIUH

BE HENEREENURAEEETER
BT HESHER

Defined Targets Progress in 2025
ERINER —E-hFEER
Reducing the intensities of GHG emissions by at  Achieved
least 5% by the end of FY2029/2030 compared to
FY2020/2021 baseline (96.06 tCO,e per million HKS
revenue)
&R KR ﬁﬁ“ﬁtﬁﬁl,\f T /" —HEREFE BEH
EHEERL TN =ZHRFEF
EH%;‘E%%%%FB&%&EHQ@Q\S% (96.06 M —
aitiEE BEBTHRA)
Reducing the intensity of hazardous waste produced  Achieved
by at least 5% by the end of FY2029/2030 compared
to the FY2020/2021 baseline (0.013 tonnes per million
HKS revenue)
Eﬁi:T BT -MREENEEMEL S BEZ

TECNZEUBEEFE AEEEY
Fii/ﬁQ\éé\s% (0.013ME, BEBTIA)
Maintain zero non-compliance with laws and  Achieved
regulations relating to the generation and disposal of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste
EETEHELANREREREZTERYNE CBEI

BRIRERTHERTERBR

EREHAN AEB—E2EETERE
RAARERE
MEEMEEEZEVELNERER &K
1F3L#R155£?$ ’@%EWEEA%E?MEﬁ

SHRE G (B3NE) -

1'71<1§U>>(% 354F) -
2/91/MSEE ) »
Act) BB 4850 - A R SE R BE(ZE BT A (H

BERR ~ 1A 7K A0 1 4 B BE BCA

BCREY R
<</iFEJ£Rit MEE) (5
JE &2 B H F B L (Republic

MBI 8749 1&)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
EMISSION (Continued)

The Group has implemented a comprehensive Environmental
Protection Policy designed to minimise our ecological impact while
ensuring strict adherence to all applicable environmental legislation.
This policy framework establishes clear operational guidelines
focusing on three key areas: the sustainable conservation of natural
resources and energy, waste management, and reductions in GHG
emissions.

7.1 Air Emissions

The Group’s main air emissions generate from vehicular fuel
consumption and emergency generator operations at our
Philippine hotel properties, comprising nitrogen oxides (NO,),
sulfur oxides (SO,), and particulate matter (PM).

The Group has implemented comprehensive measures to
reduce transport-related emissions across our operations.
For employee commuting, we actively promote carpooling
schemes and the reduction of private vehicle usage. Our hotel
transport services operate under strict protocols requiring
drivers to:

Switch off engines during all stationary periods to
eliminate idling emissions

Implement route optimisation software to ensure the
most fuel-efficient journeys

In our office operations, we promote the use of video and
telephone conferences, along with electronic communication
methods, to effectively limit business travel.

A.

RIE#®)
mm%ya

AEBEEREZENRBRERR B
[RIE AR 2 HHF‘W%L‘HE@I&R/%
oo LWIRERIEZRBIE] TEM M ZEE S
ERE-AGE  BAERERERNA
BN BFEYERIE  UNBERERSE -

7.1 BERBER
AEEFEEITEBKRE ERHLEE
ENFEREBEMENE2LERE

E - TJFE&%@AQ%M% NO) * i
1% (50,) R FERL ¥ (PM)

AEECBEREGBIURERE - &
HETREY ROBSHES LRSS
R LA EERE R B E B IR
BRISHITIA T AREE -

B SRS ZE R
RPN

P B R B AL R R BB M
A

ERAEEET  REERERGR

MEFEH  UREFAEMADA A
BROR D BB EIR
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7.2

Air Emissions (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group's air emissions:

Indicators™ 2 Unit
BE B
NO, emissions kg
RELWHENE =
SO, emissions kg
mEmEEnE Fr
PM emissions kg
BRYHEE Fr
Notes:

1. The air emission calculation is based on the emission factors in "How
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange.

2. The calculation of air emissions from diesel generators is based
on the emission factors in "AP-42: Compilation of Air Pollutant
Emissions Factors” published by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency.

GHG Emissions

The Group’s primary GHG emissions continue to originate from
fuel combustion and purchased electricity. These emission
sources specifically include fuel consumption by the Group's
vehicle fleet, emergency power generators, and restaurant
operations within our Philippine hotel properties. Additionally,
daily operational electricity usage across hotel, casino and
office facilities, combined with refrigerant applications in walk-
in freezer units and air conditioning systems, contributes to
our overall carbon footprint.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions
were approximately 14,200.89 tCO,e (2024: 7,764.57 tCO,e).
However, the total GHG emissions intensity was approximately
25.06 tCO,e per million HKS revenue (2024: 42.93 tCO,e per
million HKS revenue), representing a decrease of around 42%.
The rise in total emissions was primarily due to increased
electricity consumption during hotel renovations.
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7.2

BERBERR (48)
AT RBIIE T AR E R RERPERIE
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2025 2024 2023
EEE —ToNFE ZTI=FE
981.01 1,145.84 34721
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7.2

GHG Emissions (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s GHG emissions:

Indicators’ Unit

BE B

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions? tCO,e

B (BE-)RERBIHC BoE({tixE=E
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions®  tCO,e

selRfEE (BE ) RERBHIC M- tixE =
Total GHG emissions tCO,e
BERBHEREE W —E1t

Total GHG emissions intensity*

BERBHRBBERE"

Notes:

MG HER
BEBTHRA

GHG emission data are presented in terms of tCO,e and are based
on, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued
by the Stock Exchange, “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Industrial Purposes) in Hong Kong” issued by the
Environmental Protection Department and the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department, “2019-2021 National Grid
Emission Factor” from the Department of Energy of the Republic
of the Philippines and the “Global Warming Potential Values” from
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change Sixth Assessment
Report (AR6) (2021).

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions include emissions from fuel
combustion at mobile and stationary sources, as well as refrigerant

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions include emissions resulted

2.

consumption.
3.

from the Group’s purchased electricity.
4.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total revenue reached
approximately HK$566.2 million (2024: HK$229.8 million; 2023:
HK$207.2 million).

tCO,e/million HKS revenue

72 BERBHRE)
MT%W%&T$Elmf$ﬁ gk

S =

2025
“E-HEE

868.60
13,332.29
14,200.89

25.06

[t

2024 2023
—EoMEE —ZT-=FE
626.74 297.11
7,137.82 6,627.18
7,76457 6,924.29

4293 3342

BEREIRBEA—GLRESESR
o WERNBREERRAERE R
AR RAFERRE IR EE S
HHIEEREEEETE —bES
A RREIZE] - BR[0T
HEEFERE HERERERE — Wik
ZIREBRBESREZERES] -
BERESEIREIREZMNIE
BREEY (BE ETERDEABR)H
/Jm:cﬁ SHE MR R iR B RS 1R
5] FERBEHAMBEERBEAN=
%*ﬂii:%:fiﬁl%%m%&
Z 8 (2019-2021 National Grid Emission
Factor) ' A RBFERIEELLEME
BeF NS (AR6) (ZE=—%F)
B[ 2B L EREE] ©

BEER (BE)REREHNEEED
8 B TR M RR LA e R BUR BIRE
R (BE2) RERBIERE
AEBBEZENEENGEN -
EREHAN AEENBRADS

56625%5%7%(:%:@¢'2298§
BB T =F 207288 °
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The Group's hotel operations and office activities constitute our
primary waste generation sources, and we remain committed

to implementing waste reduction initiatives across these areas.

To achieve our waste reduction objectives, we have established

comprehensive measures while actively promoting employee
engagement in optimising equipment and material utilisation
throughout our operations.

8.1

Hazardous Waste Management

The Group's hotel operations generate multiple categories
of hazardous waste through routine activities, including
restaurant services and room maintenance. Primary
hazardous waste comprise engineering-related materials
such as fluorescent bulbs, chemical containers, grease waste,
industrial oils and sludge, lead compounds, and waste
electrical/electronic equipment (“WEEE"). Kitchen operations
additionally produce vegetable oil residues and sludge.

To address these waste, we prioritise the procurement of
high-quality electronic products to extend product lifespans
and reduce replacement frequency — particularly for high-
consumable items like lighting fixtures. All hazardous waste
is securely contained in designated, labeled storage areas
until professional handling by licensed third-party waste
management contractors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total hazardous
waste amounted to 6.58 tonnes (2024: 4.82 tonnes),
representing an increase of approximately 37%, while the
hazardous waste intensity decreased to 0.012 tonnes per
million HKS revenue (2024: 0.027 tonnes), a reduction of
56%. The rise in total waste was primarily driven by increased
headcount, leading to higher waste generation from staff
canteens.
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AEBENBEELERRRAETHRIEESR
YRR - BAIRFER NN HEITHBRERS
Mo RIEKBEREMRERR HMADHE
PEASR AREGRESHETIZ2HRELE
ERERE R RHERRE -

8.1

BERERNER
AEBBAELECRREPPELE
ZHRETERY BEERRFER
FHEEX T EREEEVMRIN
ETRBEMAME KB E LB
HAEREEY) - TE M MmES
-t MBEREERETRE
([ WEEE |) ~ B¥ 5 1F 3 55 EE £ 1B ¥
WA ETE

O ol B8R
oo & as o

S ELERY RMELERBERS R
EEFEMALERERSS  BEE
BER K EEAFSHEYS -
FMBAEREMDREFERNEER
TR BEEHREE=ZTEEVRE
EWEXKE -

EREHRN - AEEEENE ERE
EWMESRESSHE (Z T _IHF : 482
WE) - EILEIBANAI37% : A EEEY
BEAREEEESITWA0012ME (=
T DU - 0027M8) - BRIRIES6% o fBE
BYRe FATEHMNE TASUEM -
BYETEBEENEEYILS -



8.1

8.2

Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s hazardous waste

generation:

Indicators Unit

BE B

Total hazardous waste Tonnes

FEBEYELE 7]

Total hazardous waste intensity’ Tonnes/million HKS revenue
EEBENEBEERE" W, EERTRA

Notes:

1. For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction
target, the total hazardous waste intensities were rounded to 3
decimal places.

Non-hazardous Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste is generated from the daily activities of
the kitchens of the hotel restaurants and administrative work.
The major types of non-hazardous waste include daily office
operation wastes such as wastepaper and wastewater from
wastewater treatment plant of hotel operation.

The Group has implemented multiple environmental-friendly
initiatives to minimize waste from business operations,
including:

Promoting duplex printing to reduce paper
consumption

Segregating metal, paper and plastic waste for recycling
Conducting awareness campaigns and providing

convenient recycling stations to engage hotel guests
and staff

8.1 EEEEWMER (&)
IWTERBINETAEBELENEE
BEZWMIER
2025 2024 2023

“EREE —ToWFE T =FE
6.58 482 11.12
0.012 0027 0054
Hist
1. RERBHEREHESEITLE .

EEEEVRETENRAAS K
Bhi% 3
82 BMEBEEYER

BEFEVFERABEEEEEEN
AEESRITHRIE - BEEEEDH
FEHRBEARRAEELNESR
W00 BE 4R T 5 1B 4 89 BE K R R R Y
&K °

AEEEERZARRERARDE

BRERY B
HEREm T EIAR R R 3ROB 78
DHEEWEE MERZEBRE
=37

BREEBERPRREFENE WK
uh o BEERERE T 280U
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8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

Our Philippine hotel operation has enhanced its waste
management system by improving the collection of product
packaging materials such as palm oil cans, jasmine rice sacks
and soy sauce bottles. These materials are now carefully sorted
and collected by certified recycling partners.

All recyclable waste collected by the Group is processed by
accredited recyclers, supporting circular economy principles.
These efforts have yielded positive environmental results while
fostering a culture of sustainability among employees and
guests.

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated 10.07
tonnes of non-hazardous waste (2024: 7.24 tonnes),
representing a 39% year-on-year increase. The non-hazardous
waste intensity improved to 0.018 tonnes per million HKS
revenue (2024: 0.040 tonnes), representing a 56% reduction.

The total wastewater discharge reached 107,530 m?® (2024:
95,473 m?), reflecting a 13% year-on-year increase. Meanwhile,
the non-hazardous wastewater intensity significantly
decreased to 189.78 m? per million HK$ revenue (2024: 527.99
m?® per million HK$ revenue), reflecting a 64% year-on-year
decrease.

The total amount of non-hazardous waste and wastewater
increased primarily due to an increase in employee headcount,
leading to a corresponding increase in office and cafeteria
waste. Wastewater discharge also increased as a result of
higher water consumption.
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8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) 82 EERBRREYERH®E)

The following table sets out the Group’s non-hazardous waste NTREIE T AEBEEEANNES

generation: FEEMIER

Indicators Unit 2025 2024 2023

B B “E-HFE —ToNFE —T-=FE

Total non-hazardous waste' Tonnes 10.07 724 491

BREREYLE" Mg

Total non-hazardous waste intensity?> Tonnes/million HKS revenue 0.018 0.040 0.024

BEBEEYLEERE? W BEBITWRA

Total non-hazardous wastewater m? 107,530 95473 115,862

BEBKHAE 3 J7 K

Total non-hazardous wastewater? m?/million HKS revenue 189.78 527.99 559.13

BREBKBEERE? YEKRBEBITHA

Notes: Hfat -

1. Total non-hazardous waste includes only the amount of 1. BEBEYVREELEEEANEMBE R
wastepaper and other daily office operation waste generated. MANEBLEEEYHE -

2. For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction 2. AERERERSHEGETLE
target, the total hazardous waste intensity were rounded to 3 EEBRREYHBETENRAAEZ/NHK
decimal places. Zhig 3L -
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The Group's hotel operations involve significant consumption

of electricity and water resources. To address this, we have o Bl

implemented an Environmental Protection Policy that establishes
clear guidelines for responsible resource use. Our policy focuses
on optimising energy efficiency across all operational areas while
reducing unnecessary resource consumption. By setting these
standards, we aim to minimise the environmental impact of our

hotel operations while maintaining operational quality.

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021,

REEH

BEW R ARKEE HEKERHE
BMEIE T IRBREIR - &

VERTERERNPERE - RREH
EREERETSLERBNERERRE
RKFEFNEERBER BBELTEE
MRS - WA SRIE R IRF o E R R B -
RARERDBEXBHRENTE -

TRIMTAEBER —F - —FF] 2K H

the key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the T EENERZEALRAEEEERE

Group against the targets:

Key Topics
B ERE

Energy Consumption

BEIROH#E

Water Consumption

FEK

9.1 Energy Consumption

The hotel and gaming operations in the Philippines are the
main energy-consuming units of the Group. The types of
energy used mainly include purchased electricity for daily
hotel operation, liquefied petroleum gas (‘LPG") used in the
kitchen, diesel used for backup power generators during
power outages at the hotel, as well as diesel and gasoline used
for company vehicles, etc.
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125 mEE

Defined Targets
ERVYHNER

Reducing the intensities of total energy
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the
end of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline (166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue)
N2 /- HRFEEREEER
E%%@tﬁ%%ﬁ%kmwwuﬂ%'
R REREEREE D /JESZ’J\S% BHI-F
N =ZTHBFELE

Reducing the intensities of total water
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the
end of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline (1,184.19 m?* per million HKS revenue)

N T/ —HMHREFEERKEERE
R(BEBBTHKAII8419 FXK) - i FE
KBEREELRD% BEE-_T=-N/=
ZHBFREER -

HVHERR -

Progress in 2025
—ECRFEER

Achieved

Achieved

9.1 BERUH#E

REERFERENEEMER 2ER
Egmﬁb/ﬁ/ﬁ}%ifi @’Eﬁﬁﬂlﬂﬁwﬁxﬁ
AFZRFEARBEEEBENE S -
BEFERMREABR (TLPG)) B
IEiFERENEREERN S - A
RAEIEH AL BNTEE



9.1

Energy Consumption (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total energy
consumption reached 22,281.10 MWh (2024: 13,791.61 MWh),
a 62% year-on-year increase primarily from electricity usage.
The energy consumption intensity decreased significantly
to 39.32 MWh per million HKS revenue (2024: 76.27 MWh
per million HKS revenue), representing a 48% reduction. The
increase in total energy consumption was primarily due to
the hotel renovation works carried out during the Reporting
Period, which led to higher electricity demand.

We are continuously implementing energy-saving measures

include:

Lighting System Upgrade

FREA RS THAR

Equipment Efficiency Optimisation

Energy Usage Monitoring

BEJR &2 A S 12

Smart Environmental Control

B REIRB I

Staff Energy Management

9.1 BERHERE (&)

EREHE AEEBNBAERHER
EE2228110K B (- M4 :
1379161 K ELEF) » [ EL I8 hne2% - =
DREENEE -RERBEREEE
TRREEA&EETWMA3932IKER (=
ToNF - BEEBTKAT627KE
) - PRIBIE48% « KABLREFEE T+
FEHANBRERREITREREB IR
BT E S INFTE -

BB BRE SR 215

Replace fluorescent bulbs with energy-efficient LED lighting in all hotel
rooms, hallways and restaurant areas

EFMEBERR EMREER U LEDERRERZLEE

Install variable-frequency drives to precisely regulate motor power output
Conduct regular maintenance of kitchen burners to maximise LPG efficiency
Perform routine inspections of LPG pipelines to prevent leaks

LR IARE R ERFN BRI D

TEERAE R BT B 18 B DA & Kb LPG 2 A R

BIITRE LPGE R L REELTR

Conduct regular inspections to monitor any unusual energy usage, such as
maintain monthly electricity meter records in order to spot any unusual use
or loss of electricity

FHETREAENERRENRIRER  WRFT A ERLE
NBEREMEEEARBRNE

Preset the hotel room temperature at 23°C while the guest keycard is
inserted into the card slot, and maintain 27°C if keycard is remove
EEABEREARER A ERERREERRF23°C - REERER
Fr27°C

“Notice to Explain” will be issued to employees who are not using energy
according to the company guideline. They will be requested to provide
reasons for their actions, and potential penalties may apply

Encourage staff to drive less and carpool

HMRARIESIEAERNE THHMBERA] - ZRM R4
TRIEH AT REESIEE

SEETIRAIREBELHE
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9.1 Energy Consumption (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group's energy consumption:

Indicators Unit
& By
Direct energy consumption™? MWh
BERRRHERE JEFL B
Diesel consumption MWh
L ERE S KK
— Company vehicle MWh
L] JKEL B
— Emergency generator MWh
—E2ETH JEEL B
Gasoline consumption MWh
FUREREE K
LPG consumption MWh
BACAHREEE KB
Indirect energy consumption® MWh
RERERE’ JEFL B
Total energy consumption MWh
BERHEAR KELF
Total energy consumption intensity M\VWh/million HKS revenue
BREEAERE KEE,/ B &ETRA
Notes:

1. The unit conversion calculation is based on the conversion factors
in “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange
and the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International
Energy Agency.

2. The direct energy consumption includes diesel, liquefied petroleum
gas and diesel consumption of our Philippines operation.

3. The indirect energy consumption includes electricity consumption
of our Philippines operation and Hong Kong Headquarters.
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9.1 BERE¥E (&)
AEBMBER BN TR ¢

2025 2024 2023
SRCEFE —ToMFE —FT-ZFE

3,055.39 1,854.43 995.50
828.13 630.99 11947
685.66 46289 6893
142.47 168.10 50.54
671.18 138.09 40.05

1,556.08 108535 835.98

19,225.72 11937.18 11,082.85

22,281.10 13,791.61 12,078.35

39.32 7627 58.29
s -
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9.2 Water Consumption

The Group primarily sources water from local government
supplies across our operating locations, predominantly for
hotel operations and staff daily needs. While we maintain
reliable access to water sources, we fully acknowledge water
as a precious, finite shared resource. Our water management
approach delivers dual benefits of resource conservation and
operational efficiency gains, including cost reduction and
improved sustainability performance.

Our implemented water conservation measures include:

Cultivate water-saving awareness
water consciously

9.2

AXKE
AEBEXEERMTEHAE BT
HKEG  KEREZEANBIELE
METHEZK -EEBRKREE
BE  BMRARBIKERNEEHE
EERM - HKMAOKEREEERE
TRRERLBEBUS IR - BIEK AR
W R BB RES RS -

BITERKERER

Encourage all employees and guests to develop the habit of conserving

Displaying water conservation signage in strategic locations
Guide employees to use water reasonably

R EF R 15 R B fiKIRR

EolBE A EMKX

Infrastructure Maintenance

SRERBEERERENEBHORKNEE

Conducting routine inspections of water pipelines and cooling towers

Implementing prompt leak detection and repair protocols
12 AN R gt
FE 57 BB R 7K g R B 1 e )

AR e A - EHREHKEREK

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total water
consumption reached 173,882 m® (2024: 152,606 m?),
representing a 14% year-on-year increase. The water
consumption intensity improved significantly to 306.89 m’
per million HKS revenue (2024: 843.95 m? per million HK$
revenue), representing a 64% reduction. The rise in total
water consumption was primarily due to increased water
consumption during hotel renovations.

EREHBE AEBRAKEE
173,882 5 K (Z & Z O£ : 152,606
SAK) B AN14% o KGR [E
HEREZEA BB TR A30689L
FR(ZEZEE - 588 TKRA
843953 5 oK)  PRIRIE64% © FEKE
MW FERERZREBFAEEEE TR
BYHKE LT -
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9.2 Water Consumption (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s water consumption:

Indicators Unit

& By

Total water consumption m?

FEE 7K

Total water consumption intensity ~ m*/million HKS$ revenue
FKEERE NAK/BEETHA

9.3 Packaging Materials

Since the Group’s operations did not involve any industrial
productions, the Group did not consume a significant amount
of packaging materials during the Reporting Period. The
disclosure on the total packaging material used for finished
products does not apply to the Group's operations.

The Group maintains a proactive approach to environmental
stewardship through systematic implementation of sustainable
operational practices. Our comprehensive environmental
management framework focuses on minimising resource
consumption and emissions across all business units. The established
Environmental Protection Policy incorporates rigorous monitoring
protocols to track and control our ecological footprint.

The Group has implemented comprehensive operational guidelines
to promote sustainable resource utilisation among employees.
These measures include optimising the management of water and
paper consumption through targeted reduction initiatives, requiring
the preferential use of digital documentation systems across all
departments to minimise paper waste, and establishing standardised
procedures for the segregation of recyclable materials to enhance
recovery rates. This integrated approach ensures consistent
application of sustainability practices throughout our operations.

Our onsite wastewater treatment facility employs advanced
purification technology to ensure full compliance with effluent
quality standards mandated by the Laguna Lake Development
Authority (“LLDA"). The Group consistently fulfils regulatory
obligations under Republic Act 4850 through quarterly submission
of detailed environmental performance reports to the LLDA.

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

9.2 HKE(#E)
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2025 2024 2023
“BCREE —T-oNEE -—T-=4F
173,882.00

152,606.00 160,125.00

306.89 843.95 77273
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES (Continued)

Through strict adherence to all applicable environmental legislation,
we guarantee that our operations maintain negligible impact on
natural ecosystems. These sustainability measures generate dual
benefits encompassing both ecological conservation and enhanced
operational efficiency through cost optimisation and strengthened
corporate governance.

Our hotel operation is committed to implementing several
sustainability measures to enhance our environmental protection
efforts. These measures include:

Foamless

associated with traditional shampoo usage.

Sustainable packaging

and promote a circular economy.

Qs §24

10.
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We will adopt foamless shampoo to minimize chemical discharge and reduce the environmental impact

AR AEOREEKR - LWRAMEBEMEYN YR ERAEBERYRENTE -

We will replace individual plastic bottles of shampoo, conditioner, body wash, and water with shower
supplies dispensers and water glass bottles in all guest rooms. This initiative aims to reduce plastic waste

BHSAAETEANRER #EX AMABMNKNEBRZERBMERSERMAMEE KR -

Rl D28 B BE ) R TR IR AR

Y= (B 22 =
EBEE

Water-efficient toilets

hotel.

B 7K BT AT

As part of our commitment to water conservation, we will replace existing toilets with models that
consume less water. This step will contribute to a more sustainable water management system within our

ERRPAEHORKN -0 RAGAEKELHEFERIRVEORFA - EF KA R

BAEBEE N A HENKER RS

Through the systematic implementation of these sustainability
initiatives, the Group is actively reducing the ecological footprint of
our hotel operations. We remain steadfast in our commitment to
environmental stewardship, with established processes for ongoing
evaluation and enhancement of our sustainable practices.

BRARLERELAUFERRER &
SEEEGREEELENERRY - K
MFERTREEENAR YEIFHE
BREPE-ZAESS b $: 300 1K
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

11. CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change represents a critical global challenge affecting
ecosystems, economic stability and community welfare, with
direct consequences for the Group's business operations. Our

Philippine facilities face particular exposure to intensifying weather
extremes, including powerful typhoons and severe flooding
events. In response, we have prioritised climate action through
our Climate Change Policy, which articulates our commitment to
reducing climate-related risks and strengthening adaptive capacity.
By implementing focused initiatives, we work to decrease our

operational environmental footprint while developing solutions
to address evolving climate challenges. These efforts support both
our long-term business sustainability and broader environmental

conservation objectives.

11.1 Physical Risks

The Group's operations face material challenges from physical

climate risks, particularly in geographies vulnerable to extreme
weather phenomena. Our risk assessment process has
identified flooding and typhoons as the most consequential
hazards to business continuity. To address these operational
vulnerabilities, we have established structured management
protocols that provide clear guidance to personnel on risk

mitigation procedures. These include standardised emergency
response plans specifically tailored for flood and typhoon
scenarios, designed to protect both human resources and
physical assets while maintaining critical operations. Through
this proactive risk management approach, we safeguard
stakeholder interests and ensure operational resilience.

—_—

Flooding and typhoon physical risks

The Group's hotel operations in the Philippines are
particularly exposed to physical risks such as
flooding and typhoons due to the region'’s tropical
climate and geographical location.

oK e L B R L B
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Impacts on the Group

Frequent and intense weather events, including
heavy rainfall and strong winds, pose significant
threats to infrastructure, disrupt our hotel services,
and increase the potential for property damage
and operational downtime.
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Our response

The Group developed a set of arrangements for
extreme weather so that loss can be reduced or
avoided when extreme weather affects the Group’s
operating sites. In addition, the Group has purchased
insurance against risks of property loss. It is beieved that
the potential financial impacts can be mininised with
adequate preparations for extreme weather events.
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11.2 Transition Risks 11.2 E & @ b

Beyond the immediate climate-related issues impacting the BT EERSESENREEREREI
Group, we acknowledge that transition risks associated with M REINEREF CAEENEE

climate change could significantly affect our operations. ERAIgteBEELERMNES -

Transition Risk Impacts on the Group Our response

L2 Bich o HEKEENTE EMeEE
Regulatory Changes Increased compliance costs Proactive monitoring of climate policies

Potential legal liabilities

Regular scenario analysis for regulatory
developments

EREE BRI AN THERIRIRB R
EREEE EHRETEREHBTHEON
Market Shifts Changing customer preferences Reduction of single-use plastics
towards eco-friendly options Introduction of minimally packaged toiletries
Enhanced recycling programs
5 & B RIFERRREE WA —IRIEEEHRLHE A
R 2B LA @
Ans& @ W Et &
Operational Higher expenses for process Phased implementation of green solutions
Adjustments modifications and sustainable Staff training on sustainable practices
alternatives
EERE RBERARAIFEER TR DHEREMAZBRIRT R
Fr & G N BTIRFETERE
Reputation Growing stakeholder expectations - Transparent disclosure through ESG Reports
Management for climate action Pursuit of recognised environmental
certifications
BEE FpEHRERITESRAERA BIBESCREFARKE
RS RARRBE
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. E% iji (4E)
11. CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued) 11. ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ"ﬂﬁ
11.3 Emergency Response and Employee Support 11.3 E%gﬁﬁ BIXE

The Group maintains structured crisis management protocols
through its dedicated Crisis Management Team (“CMT")
and Emergency Response Team (“ERT"). These cross-
functional units consist of well trained from Safety & Security,
Engineering, Human Resources and Front Office departments,
operating under the direct supervision of the General
Manager. Their duty encompasses comprehensive emergency
preparedness for earthquake events, flooding incidents, fire

AEEEZBEFNEKEEBK
(TemT)) REZEHEK ((ERT) B
MRS B E RS o F LB ED
FIERRIRAERN L 2ERET T
B ANBEREAEFIMFAHAEMA
R ERRAEEEE EREGE
BREHHHE KR KK REMR
BEMMEL2EESER RIS

hazards and other emergencies, with dual focus on asset BERELEFNHEBRBM - LIREGEY
protection and stakeholder welfare. The integrated response HHIR SR E S L EHPIE L
mechanism draws upon diversified operational expertise BREFBZER T AEBIEHIRER - It
across hotel functions to ensure effective risk mitigation during SN BABIEHEREAKIERER
critical situations. Separately, the Hong Kong Headquarters mAREAGE T ABREEES -
has established specific operational guidelines for extreme

weather conditions such as typhoons and heavy rainstorms.
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11.3 Emergency Response and Employee Support

(Continued)

Structural Safety Measures

The hotel has implemented advanced earthquake monitoring
through floor-level seismic sensors that provide continuous
data collection. This information is systematically shared with
government authorities for analysis. Our post-earthquake
protocol mandates comprehensive building inspections by
qualified engineers, with minor repairs handled internally
while major structural assessments involve government civil
engineers to ensure full compliance with safety regulations.

Public Safety Communications

Recognising our duty of care to guests, we have developed
“Do’s and Don'ts” educational flyers that clearly outlined
proper responses during earthquakes and fire emergencies.
These informational materials ensure visitors remain well-
informed about critical safety procedures.

Employee Care During Extreme Weather Events

Extreme Weather Contingency Plan: The hotel has established
comprehensive support protocols for staff during severe
weather conditions. Our emergency response system provides
gender-segregated rest areas with 20 beds each, with
additional capacity created through conversion of function
rooms when required. All temporary accommodations are
equipped with proper bedding to ensure comfort during
extended stays.

Essential Support Services: We guarantee continuous meal
service for all affected employees throughout weather
emergencies, with provisions made for special dietary
requirements. Post-event recovery includes organized
transportation assistance to facilitate safe returns home,
demonstrating our commitment to staff welfare beyond the
immediate crisis period.
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The Group strictly follows the labour standards pursuant to
provisions of the Labour Code of the Philippines and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare. The relevant laws and regulations include, but not limited
to, Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong, Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of Hong Kong, the Labour Relations Law (Law
No. 7/2008) of Macau and the Labour Code of the Philippines.

The Group maintains an unwavering commitment to cultivating
a workplace culture founded on equality, diversity and mutual
respect. Our comprehensive employment policies, as detailed in
the Employee Handbook, explicitly prohibit discrimination across
all aspects of human resource management including recruitment,
remuneration, career advancement, working conditions and
cessation of employment. These policies strictly mandate that
employment-related decisions shall be based solely on job-related
criteria, without consideration of personal characteristics including
but not limited to age, gender, marital status, disability status,
ethnicity, religion or national origin.

The Group enforces a strict zero-tolerance stance against workplace
discrimination, harassment or abusive conduct of any nature.
Employees are actively encouraged to report concerns through
established channels, with assurance that all complaints will be
treated with utmost seriousness. A formal grievance mechanism
ensures all reported incidents of discrimination receive impartial
investigation and appropriate resolution. Substantiated violations
of these policies will result in disciplinary measures commensurate
with the severity of the offense, including potential legal referral for
criminal matters.
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During the Reporting Period, there were no incidents of EmEME REEEEREHNMRE -

discrimination being reported. The Group will continue to increase AREEBEEBIRSEIH IS TFEH
employees’ awareness of equal opportunity in the workplace. FHER -
12.1 The Group’s Workforce 121 SEEIBE
As at 30 June 2024, the total number of employees of the HE-_T-RAFA=1THLFE"
Group 1,312 (as at 30 June 2024: 1,001), all of whom were full- AEBEIRHERIZNAEZEZE
time employees. ZHWHFERAZTHIEFE 1001 A)
EREBET -
The following table sets out the Group's number of employees TRINEAEBEKIER - FERE -
by gender, age group and geographical region: REIDHE T AE:
As at As at As at
30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Indicators EE BZE S BHE
—EC-HE “ENF —Z-=F
~B=1+H ~NA=1H ~B=+H
tEE HEE LFE
Number of employees BT A¥ 1,312 1,001 240
By gender g
Female ogid 596 439 91
Male EEfia 716 562 149
By age group 12 F # 4 R
18-30 years old 18 5% -30 % 429 274 70
31-49 years old 315X 495K 795 650 143
50 years old or above 50B% 3 & 88 77 27
By geographical region RithE
Hong Kong and Macau BERRM 21 20 12
The Philippines JERE 1,291 981 228
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)
12. EMPLOYMENT (Continued)
12.2 Retaining Talents

B. #&(
12. BE#&)
122 RBAA

One of our key priorities at the Group is to attract and retain
top talent. We recognise the significance of providing
comprehensive benefits that promote work-life balance,
support overall well-being, and create a positive work
environment. In compliance with local labour laws and
regulations, we have established reasonable working hours
and holiday arrangements, clearly outlined in the Employee
Handbook and employment contracts. Also, the Group offers
a competitive remuneration package to each employee. The
remuneration packages provided for employees are reviewed
annually, where subsequent adjustments will be made based
on the employee’s performance, experiences and market
standards.

The Group places paramount importance on employee well-
being as a cornerstone of our organisational success. Our
comprehensive benefits package goes beyond statutory
requirements to offer meaningful support for staff members’
physical and mental health. Through carefully designed paid
leave policies and wellness initiatives, we enable employees
to achieve sustainable work-life integration while maintaining
high productivity levels.

Mandatory Provident Fund and Workers'
Investment and Saving Programme;

Professional Membership Fee Reimbursement
in supporting continuing professional
development

BHMERTE R RIS TRERFEE

EXEEBRAREATHRREERR
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Medical, dental, life, compensation, travel
insurance, medical check-up;

Set up a clinic at hotel with full time nurses
and two in-house doctor, enabling our
employees to enjoy free consultation
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A mix of mandatory and supplementary leave
entitlement, including annual leave, marriage
leave, maternity leave, examination leave, solo
parent leave, bereavement leave, family visit
leave, and birthday leave;

Various recreation and social activities
organised by the HR Department

S R AARBRERAEF - REFE
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12.2 Retaining Talents (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s number and rate of

employee turnover by gender, age group and geographical

122 REAF ()
ATERBIIH T RERER - FicE

Bl A0 303 2 55 ) B TR B B2 AN AL

region: =
As at As at As at
30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Indicators BE BZE BE BHE
—EBEC-HE —E-E —E-=F
~B=1+H ANAZ=TH NA=ZTH
LEE LEE EFE
Number and rate' (%) of ETEBAZMN
employee turnover BERE (%) 287 (17.39%) 195 (21.55%) 75 (23.01%)
By gender? RER?
Female egi3 141 (18.53%) 84 (23.40%) 27 (21.95%)
Male S 146 (16.42%) 111 (20.33%) 48 (23.65%)
By age group? BEERAR
18-30 years old 1857 -30 5% 86 (15.55%) 52 (20.08%) 16 (18.39%)
31-49 years old 31 5% -49 5% 149 (15.44%) 124 (21.53%) 55 (26.32%)
50 years old or above S0BR A £ 52 (39.39%) 19 (27.14%) 4(13.33%)
By geographical region? R E?
Hong Kong and Macau BB LR 7 (25.00%) 0 (0.00%) 4(23.53%)
The Philippines JEEE 280 (17.26%) 195 (22.06%) 71 (22.98%)
Notes: Hitat -

BIBBENTER L (FEAER
AB - (FHETAZR+FEFIEAZ)
X 100%) °

1. The calculation method of rate of employee turnover: (total 1.
number of departures in the year =+ (number of employee at the
beginning of the year + number of new hires in the year) X 100%.

REANFESITHBERNTE  (FE
ZIERI M ABER A - (% ER
WMET A+ EEZERNHEAZ
X 100%) ©

2. The calculation method of rate of employee turnover by category: 2.
(total number of departures in the category in the year = (number
of employee in the category at the beginning of the year + number
of new hires in the category in the year) X 100%.
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13.

26

HEREARE

SOCIAL (Continued)
HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

The Group prioritises the health and safety of both guests
and employees at all our hospitality establishments. We have
implemented robust policies including the Alcohol-free Workplace
Policy, Drug-free Workplace Policy, Smoke-free Workplace Policy,
along with policies on prevention of communicable diseases. Given
the occasional challenges posed by civil unrest, terrorism and
extreme weather events in the Philippines, we maintain vigilant
safety oversight. Our Health and Safety Committee conducts
regular reviews of all protective measures to ensure their continued
effectiveness. All procedures strictly adhere to both local regulations
and international occupational safety standards, providing
comprehensive protection against workplace hazards.

The Administration Department implements comprehensive
workplace safety measures through trained personnel who conduct
risk assessments to identify potential hazards. These efforts focus on
creating safer working conditions by systematically reducing and
controlling workplace risks. The department maintains ongoing
oversight of the safety management system, conducting regular
audits to evaluate health and safety performance. A complete set
of emergency procedures is kept up-to-date and tested through
regular drills as mandated by legal requirements. Additionally, the
department organises periodic safety training programs to ensure
employees possess the necessary knowledge and skills to work

13.
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Drug-free and Alcohol-free Workplace
EESRRETEEIFESH

positive result.

RIFREFRN - Aok ¥ H e BEITHMBRE YRR -

\

During working hours, the Group may conduct a random alcohol test or drug test with its employees, disciplinary actions will be taken accordingly if the test shows a

THRIAEREGM - FRIVARACEITE -

Smoke-free Workplace

BE TS
encouraged to advise guests and visitors to follow the policy.

BERAEBEANZILRE - SEHERAE - FRRAERE

Smoking is prohibited in the entire office premises covering enclosed offices, open office areas, conference rooms, pantries, toilets and lift lobbies. Employees are

BHE  JUKH  AFRNBHARE - ROIBEIESZHEANDFETEEK

Safety Inspections

ZERE
ensure the safety of employees.

EEEGARENERMEBERER -

The management team is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the policies related to health, safety and security periodically, and performing regular checks to

REMRTAMNER - WETERRE - UERERNRR -

Risk Assessment Training for Responsible Staff

B E ARG

work environment.

o) @ 0

W

Responsible persons are invited to attend risk assessment training, identify any actual and potential hazards and risks in workplace, and work towards a safe and hygienic

BEAERSNRBFEE - S5 TIES AT EREREERSMER - WY Z 2/ EN TIFRE
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SOCIAL (Continued)
HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards. The relevant laws and regulations
include, but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong, Employees” Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282) of Hong Kong, General Regulation on Health
and Safety in a non-industrial work environment (Decree-Law 37/89/
M) of Macau and Republic Act No. 11058 of the Philippines.

The Group is committed to building a safety-first culture and
avoiding workplace accidents. During the Reporting Period, the
number of lost days due to work injury was 38(2024:112). No work-
related fatalities occurred between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2025.
The rate of work-related fatalities occurred in the past three years
including 2025 was 0%.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group recognises that investing in human capital is fundamental
to sustainable business success. We provide structured learning
opportunities through comprehensive training programmes
designed to enhance professional competencies across all levels. Our
annual performance appraisal system delivers constructive feedback
to support individual career progression while aligning personal
development with organisational objectives.

B HEREARS
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14.1 Talent Management

The Group maintains a steadfast commitment to mutual
professional advancement, recognising that employee growth
directly contributes to organisational success. Our investment
in comprehensive training initiatives serves dual purposes:
enhancing operational competencies while embedding
sustainable business principles throughout our corporate
culture. This people-centric approach positions our workforce
as key drivers in achieving both operational excellence and
ESG objectives. We offer specialised hospitality training
programmes designed to elevate industry-specific skills and
knowledge across all hotel operations staff.

The Ways We Work Induction and Coaching
[RMHTHESTR] ABSEIMEHS
Application of the Ways We Work through
scenarios-based learning and practical application

BRENS=NEBNERER - BA [RMANITESR]

Safety and Security
Z2RE
To educate skills in maintaining a safe working
environment while enhancing safety consciousness

HERRRETFREMNRE - FFERR2EH

Job Orientation and Service Skills Training
REBR BRI
To equip new hires with proper job knowledge and procedural
knowhow to perform duties and deliver quality services
RIE TRHBEITERE RMRHEERGIFLN
BE TERABRIE P A
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Leading Highly Effective Team
RESHE
A developmental approach that
includes role plays, case studies,
ongoing support of mentoring, tea talk
sessions, workshops and assignments
to assist our team leaders in
understanding and developing their
ability to build, motivate and lead a
highly effective team and also in
sharpening their leadership skills.

—BERRL L BREAGHE -

VAR B E AP O B B SR TR
TR AR -
BEFEE — SR E AL -
eI EERE

ROIFFTE -
FHERIRER - e - i @ MIESE -
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Language Training
B = Al
Provide resources for learning languages based on
market needs and encourage our employees to
mprove language ability

RIEMSFRERETREER BB TRAEFEN

Cross Exposure Training
R X g
To experience other departments a To experience
other departments and/or sister hotels
in order to broaden their knowledge and skills

BESRE ML ERPIAN, I SRBIE - AR AL

Internal Cross Training
AEESE]
Encourage employees to gain exposure in related departments
or divisions to acquire new skills, and exchange knowledge
SR8 THAEARRE 0PTSRS -
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14.1 Talent Management (Continued) 141 AT EE (&)

The following table sets out the average training hours per AT RAEHIE TR B T RIE
employee and percentage of employees trained by gender DB E T FE IR EAE X
and employee category: MBI BDL -
As at As at As at
30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Indicators EE BE BZE BE
—E-RE —E-mF —Eo=F
~B=1+H ~NA=ZTtH ~NAZ=Z+H
LEE LEE EFE
Average hours of training per BB T HEHE
employee’ (hour(s)) and R (M) MES
percentage of employees BIMETI B D EE? (%)
trained? (%)
By gender 21 Bl
Female ogid 10.07 (80.68%) 3.39(5330%) 1.76 (19.78%)
Male Bk 10.09 (81.31%) 3.66 (60.14%) 0.81(10.07%)
By employee category EETER
Management g 10.65(78.95%) 258 (4140%)  1.17(13.38%)
General employees —M%ET 9.70 (82.39%) 4.26 (69.00%) 1.16 (14.46%)
Notes: Hiat
1. The calculation method of average training hours per employee 1. RERFESNE THFHEIIRH
by category: total training hours of employees in the category =+ K775 % BRI B T e AR5 3 R 8
number of employees in the category as at the end of the year. FERZEMNETIHAL -
2. The calculation method of the percentage of employees trained by 2. REANGFEEZEINEIAS LW
category: (number of employees trained in the category < number FE (ZEREREINEIHE -
of employees in the category as at the end of the year) X 100%. FRZARMNE T AZ) X 100% °
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The Group remains unwavering in its commitment to uphold
fundamental human rights and ethical labour practices across all
operations. We have institutionalised the Policy on Prohibition of
Child Labour alongside comprehensive employment policies that
explicitly forbid any form of child labour or forced labour. During
the recruitment process, our Human Resources Division implements
stringent verification protocols, including thorough examination of
identity documents and background checks, to ensure all candidates
meet legal employment requirements.

To maintain the highest standards of compliance, the Human
Resources Division conducts periodic reviews of the employment
practices and recruitment guidelines. These reviews serve to verify
continuous alignment with our established policies. In the event
that any breach of recruitment procedures leads to the identification
of child labour or forced labour cases, the Group will immediately
terminate such practices and initiate comprehensive investigations
to address root causes.

The Group places paramount importance on protecting employees’
basic rights. We guarantee that all employment relationships
are entered into voluntarily, and actively promote efficient work
practices that enable employees to complete their duties within
designated working hours. Furthermore, we strictly adhere to
statutory requirements by ensuring every employee receives at least
one rest day per week.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified or been
made aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations concerning the prevention of child labor and forced
labour. The legal frameworks we comply with include, but are not
limited to:

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong

Chief Executive Order No. 343/2008 (List of Jobs Restrained to
Minors) of Macau

Chief Executive Order No. 344/2008 (List of Jobs Prohibited to
Minors) of Macau

Republic Act No. 9231 of the Philippines

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25
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SOCIAL (Continued)
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group maintains a deep commitment to fostering meaningful
connections with the communities where we operate, understanding
that mutual prosperity forms the foundation for sustainable business
growth. Our community investment strategy focuses on creating
tangible social value through targeted initiatives that address
pressing local needs while empowering vulnerable groups. We
actively encourage employee participation in volunteer activities
by providing flexible volunteering opportunities and organisational
support.

The Group actively fulfills corporate social responsibility through
volunteer work and financial contributions. For the “CSR-Orphanage
of Asilo de San Vicente de Paul” project, we dedicated 2 volunteer
hours and donated PHP 84,600 to enhance the living conditions and
educational resources for the children. Additionally, through the
"Feed Thy Neighbor” program, we contributed 2 volunteer hours and
PHP 35,260 to provide essential supplies for underprivileged families.

The Group continues to explore innovative approaches to
community engagement, seeking to establish long-term
partnerships that generate measurable social impact. Through these
efforts, we aim to build stronger, more resilient communities that
thrive alongside our business operations.

16.

HEE)
HERE
AEBFANERCLEYEARSLRET

SELENER BRBINNEZERAE
imiliiiifg:'fé@ c I RIRE K

BEENBAHHUEASIEEERLESE
B REREMEYFR  THEEBDE
B-RMEGEHEHETI2HELERRG @&
P 1 2 B ) R AR R STIR -

AEFRBBRBETOELSE M REHMH
FRBEIRBRES B IFEMIELEH
12278 § o 7£ [ CSR-Orphanage of Asilo de San
Vicente de Paul | IB B # » PR A2/ &
TR - WBHE 84,600 FEEH R - HBIEK
iﬁﬁiixﬁf&fﬁﬁi%&ﬁ BIR o B FAM
2281 [ Feed Thy Neighbor ] 51 &/ » #2 £ 2 /)N 65
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The Group maintains rigorous oversight of our supply chain
operations through established Purchase Procedures that
mandate compliance with environmental, social and governance
requirements. Our supplier evaluation framework incorporates
comprehensive ESG criteria including labor practices, workplace
safety standards and environmental impact assessments alongside
traditional commercial considerations. The Group diligently access
the business practices and regularly communicates our standards to
all suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, all 572 suppliers successfully met our
qualification standards. The management team performs periodic
reviews of our procurement processes to ensure continuous
improvement in supply chain sustainability performance.

17.1 Supplier Selection

The Group has implemented a comprehensive supplier
management framework to ensure the consistent delivery of
premium quality services that surpass customer expectations.
Our meticulous supplier selection process emphasizes the
development of strategic, long-term partnerships with
thoroughly vetted providers across two specialised categories:
office supplies and hospitality operational materials. Office
suppliers provide standard office supplies like stationery and
toner, while hotel suppliers provide a wide array of items
crucial for hotel operations such as food, beverages, linens,
and cleaning supplies. We maintain a diversified supplier base
as a fundamental risk mitigation strategy, ensuring operational
continuity even during market fluctuations or supply chain
disruptions.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)
17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (Continued)
17.1 Supplier Selection (Continued)

The Group mandates full legal compliance from all
suppliers as a fundamental requirement. Our Purchasing
Department actively references governmental guidelines on
environmentally preferable products, particularly studying
publications from Philippine regulatory bodies including
the Department of Budget and Management, Department
of Trade and Industry, and Department of Environment and
Natural Resources. This multi-agency approach enables us to
develop procurement processes that minimize environmental
impact across product lifecycles. The management team
conducts periodic compliance audits of supplier operations.
Suppliers found violating environmental protection
regulations may be subject to partnership termination
following thorough investigation and due process.

Supplier Screening 1t FER &%

Purchasing Department works with reputable suppliers offering
top-quality products that meet our sustainability criteria and
adhere to the Supply Chain Code of Conduct.

RiR - dHEREBHRSE

C. &E&E %)
HIESEEIE (&)
17.1 HERER (&)

AEEBEETAERL A MHER
MERENR - KB HPIEBRLE BT
RIREmMER  FHMRFERERE
B BHITEBRRHEAARER
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Quality Check EERE
[tems that do not comply with the required specifications will be
rejected and returned to the corresponding suppliers.

T &R BB R RIE B IR D 4R 1B R RO FERS -

HEPREERINUEEAE  RUEFERMATHERRE .
IR B TR EEIT ATRIMEEER © .
""" .'""'_""'"""""""""6""""""""""""""\
A
A )
A )
Risk Assesment BB 574 '

Purchasing Department assesses the environmental and social risks of the
candidate suppliers with a high level of objectivity and impartiality to avoid
cooperating with suppliers that do not fit the Group's long-term vision for
sustainable development.

REBHPIASEEBEMA ENEEGREHERAREME &R
B R@eBEAARRETRERREIBSORERAE -

Communication and Monitoring /&8 [ B 52
The Group will maintain regular communication and engagement with our
suppliers to verify their compliance with laws and regulations.

REBKEHERRFTHEBNED - UXEMMEERERN
ETER
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17.1 Supplier Selection (Continued)

The following table sets out the number of the Group’s key
suppliers by geographical region:

Indicators EE
Number of Key Suppliers TEHERHE
By Geographical Region ZibE

The Philippines JEEE

Hong Kong N

Europe BUM

The Group maintains stringent environmental and social
criteria as essential components of our procurement and
supplier selection framework. These requirements are carefully
designed to support our long-term sustainable development
objectives. We conduct regular supplier evaluations and
maintain open communication channels to ensure consistent
adherence to our established standards throughout the
supply chain network. In cases where suppliers demonstrate
persistent non-compliance with our environmental and
social requirements despite engagement and opportunity for
improvement, the Group reserves the right to reassess and
potentially discontinue the business relationship following a
formal review process.

17.2 Local Procurement

The Group actively implements a local procurement strategy
to foster regional economic growth and community
development. By prioritising suppliers within operational
regions, we simultaneously reduce logistical environmental
impact while creating employment opportunities in local
communities. This approach has resulted in significant local
supply chain integration, with 98.95% of our key suppliers
based in the Philippines during the Reporting Period — the
primary market for our business operations. Our localised
procurement policy demonstrates the Group’s dual
commitment to operational efficiency and socioeconomic
contribution, with ongoing efforts to identify additional
qualified local suppliers across our service areas.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY
18.1 Service Quality

The Group considers service excellence as the cornerstone of
customer relationships and has implemented robust quality
assurance mechanisms across all operations. We maintain

comprehensive Standard Operating Procedures that provide
clear guidance to staff members in delivering services that
consistently meet our high expectations. These protocols
are reinforced by our Code of Discipline, which establishes
transparent accountability measures for any breaches of

service standards.

RIR -8 RERERE

C. &)

18. RFEEE
18.1 REEE
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Listen Empathise and Apologise

R RE & ZEER

Find Solution

BHRBRAR

Follow Through Record Keeping
BRI RIFAER

Be professional and
courteous when dealing
with a complaining guest
EEIBRENE - KR
BEEMBER

When responding to guest,
use a polite tone and a
pleasing demeanour
EEREAE - £AEHE
RSN SRR IE

Actively listen to the guest
while airing his/her
complaint; refrain from
interrupting while the guest

Put ourselves in the guest's
situation and apologise for
the inconvenience he/she
has encountered

speak. HHEMATAZE A
Z‘E@/\ié&uﬁﬂﬁsiﬂﬁ Yt 0B R TMERR
B HHER - ERA nE
B EITH M,

Never refuse to help resolve
the issue

DI7EREBEAME
Get assistance from
concerned departments

ERAREMIRHE

Give an approximate
timeframe to get back to

guest
ATEERANRBESRH
e

We have developed a systematic approach to handling
customer feedback, with particular emphasis on effective
complaint resolution. All guest concerns are thoroughly
documented and analysed by designated duty managers who
follow strict escalation protocols. This process enables us to
not only address individual cases promptly but also implement
preventive measures to avoid recurrence of similar issues.
Our commitment to service quality is further demonstrated
through regular staff training programs and continuous
review of operational procedures to identify improvement

opportunities.

Important to call or meet
the guest merely to know if
he/she is happy of the

Update Guest's profile to
make sure the
concerns/preferences are

solution met on his/her future stay
BERREEANT b,/ BHEANEAER LS -
CAREAR A, iR SR B

METHBRRTREZR
E MRS RIFEEINR

Share the encounter
through complaint log for
everyone's reference
FIBIRE A SO FEE
HEARSZ

BB RZFENE P RELIEES] -
BHBEERFHNERIRR -FIEREP
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18.1 Service Quality (Continued)

On 27 September 2023, the Company'’s subsidiaries — Marina
Square Properties, Inc. (“MSPI") and New Coast Leisure
Inc. (“NCLI") and the Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation ("PAGCOR") entered into a provisional license
agreement pursuant to which PAGCOR has granted the
provisional license to MSPI and NCLI or any one of them to
establish and operate a casino and the development of an
integrated resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines.

Before May 2024, the casino and gaming operations of the
Group was operated by PAGCOR by allowing the Group
to assign senior management personnel to participate in
the management committee of PAGCOR, the Group has
accumulated professional expertise in casino operations to
ensure compliance with regulatory requirements and codes,
which include but not limited to the followings:

Presidential Decree (P.D.) No. 1869, as amended by
Republic Act (R.A.) No. 9487;

Casino Regulatory Manual for Entertainment City
Licenses (January 2016);

Gaming Employment License Manual and Handbook
for Applicants and Employees (April 2016);
Code of Practice on Responsible Gaming;

Anti-Money Laundering Act of the Philippines (Republic
Act No. 9160); and

Obligations and conditions stipulated under the
provisional license agreement.

The Group rigorously screens qualified gaming personnel to
maintain service quality consistent with its hotel operational
standards.

PAGCOR is the regulatory, operating, licensing, and authorising body responsible

18.1 fREEE (&)
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for overseeing games of chance, games of cards and games of numbers,
particularly casino gaming in the Philippines.
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18.1 Service Quality (Continued)

Our casino operations management system comprises Cross-
functional departments, covering casino operations, sales
and marketing, membership services, treasury, and technical
maintenance. Each unit strictly implements standardised
operating procedures (“SOPs”) and ensures effective
operational quality control through systematic monitoring
and continuous optimisation mechanisms.

Additionally, the Group engaged an internal control
consultant to conduct a comprehensive review of the internal
control policies and procedures governing authorised gaming
activities (including anti-money laundering and counter-
terrorist financing processes for casino operations). The
consultant found no instances indicating that the established
policies and procedures were inadequately designed to
achieve internal control objectives in all material respects. The
Management believes the casino has sufficient and effective
policies and procedures to implement internal controls over
its authorized gaming operations and AML processes.

Furthermore, in compliance with PAGCOR requirements,
the Group allocates 2% of monthly casino gaming revenue
(excluding non-junket operations revenue) to fund the
Restoration of Cultural Heritage Foundation (“Foundation”).
The Foundation not only transformed commercial benefits
into social value but also established a sustainable model
balancing economic returns with long-term cultural
preservation.
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18.1 Service Quality (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified
or been made aware of any significant incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations in relation to safety
and health, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided. The relevant laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to, the Trade
Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362) of Hong Kong, Copyright
Ordinance (Cap. 528) of Hong Kong, Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong, Consumer Protection Law
(Law No. 12/88/M) of Macau, Macau Advertising Law (Law No.
7/89/M), Intellectual Property Code (Republic Act No. 8293) of
the Philippines and Data Privacy Act (Republic Act No. 10173)
of the Philippines.

During the Reporting Period, the number of complaints
received by the Group was 0 (2024: 0). If the Group receives
any complaints, the relevant complaints will be handled
promptly with the help of the hotel staff. Follow-up actions
would be conducted where appropriate to handle any
complaints.

18.2 Customer Satisfaction

The Group acknowledges that maintaining high standards in
product and service delivery, coupled with ensuring customer
satisfaction, forms the cornerstone of sustainable business
growth and value generation. We are committed to not only
meeting but consistently exceeding customer expectations in
service quality.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. & &)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. IRFBEE ()
18.2 Customer Satisfaction (Continued) 182 EF mEE (&)
A strategic priority remains the ongoing enhancement of our BB E MR R BRI ERA

hotel teams’ competencies through targeted training and
development initiatives. These programmes are designed
to strengthen both technical skills and service delivery
capabilities. We equip our frontline staff with appropriate
decision-making authority and operational support to resolve
guest matters effectively. While all employees are expected to
deliver premium service in line with established protocols, we

EEBREEE N REPIHRIEET -
ELeEt 8B R bR B BE B IR TS
1777 - BT RIARE TEEAREK
%5&& CEXER UBAMBREERS

BE THAEREMERBIZM
@’Eﬂlﬁ% RERMEERZIHZE
BALIE - 2HETEEAEHE

have instituted multiple operational enhancements to elevate 5
the guest experience throughout their stay:

Comfortable
Accommodations

EERETE

Offer well-designed, comfortable, and well-appointed rooms with amenities such as comfortable beds, quality linens,
adequate storage space, and modern furnishings. Provide essential amenities like toiletries, towels, and in-room
entertainment options.

REBOHRE TFEERBERZNERE  EEFENK - BE
REERAR EMAEENERERHESERRH

ERE  RENRBEFEZENRARAZEFRKE -

Cleanliness and
Maintenance

RN E

\

Maintain high cleanliness standards throughout the hotel, including guest rooms, common areas, and facilities. Regularly
inspect and maintain equipment, fixtures, and amenities to ensure everything is in good working order.
REBERFSBRRE BEERE AHREMRE - THREMEERE  BTEENENRE
R—DEE N RIFH TAEARRE

* DABE

W

Amenities and
Facilities
BRI

Offer a variety of amenities and facilities that cater to guests' needs, such as fitness centers, swimming pools, spa services,
business centers, and meeting rooms. We have a range of venues that can accommodate any type of event or celebration,
and our professional expertise and meticulous planning ensure the success of the occasion.

REZBRENRE RS EANTI SRS H O KE  KERS  BBPLOMNERE - B
BRESH R TRERNEHNENLE  RIFNEXNANABN S RREBHOKD - )

Quality Dining
Options
l_.| AR Fg,«‘\:ﬁk

Provide a range of dining options, including fine dining, casual restaurants, and room service, with a focus on high-quality
food, diverse menus, and accommodating dietary preferences. Ensure prompt service and maintain a pleasant dining
ambiance.

RUSBERER BES
REMH - BRA

REE KEEBNEERS IEcm
RORBIL LR RORERSE -

BEORY  ZHANIXENDEFHRR

e

Personalised Services

AT EAME

Strive to personalise the guest experience by understanding individual preferences and anticipating their needs. Offer
tailored recommendations, surprises, and special touches to make guests feel valued and appreciated. Personalised services
includes babysitting services, event planning, laundry service, guest pickup and delivery, etc.
BHRBTREANBAZHLRAGANTIOREECTANRERE - REESEHOZE  ESHERIH
B8 BEARXIBERNEE - ARCREBERBRYE EBRE - KRR  BEEAF - /
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18.2 Customer Satisfaction (Continued)

The Group is unwavering in its commitment to creating a
secure environment that promotes confidence and wellbeing
for all guests and staff. Our comprehensive security framework
combines advanced technology with human expertise to
ensure robust protection. Throughout our properties, we have
installed a sophisticated network of surveillance cameras that
provide continuous monitoring of all public spaces, entry
points, and sensitive areas. These systems are complemented
by our tiered access control protocols, which utilise both
electronic verification and trained security personnel to
prevent unauthorised access to restricted zones.

To address potential emergencies, we maintain a dedicated
Emergency Response Team that operates under rigorously
developed contingency plans. These protocols cover diverse
scenarios including fire outbreaks, severe weather events,
medical crises, and security situations. Our preparedness
extends to maintaining an on-site medical facility staffed
by two qualified doctors and a team of nurses, ensuring
immediate care is available when needed. This integrated
approach to safety and security reflects our fundamental
responsibility to protect all individuals within our premises.

As the Group is principally involved in gaming operation,
hotel operation and live events, it was not involved in sales of
products during the Reporting Period. The disclosure on the
total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons and recall procedures does not apply to the
Group.

18.3 Advertising and Labelling

The Group is engaged in the promotion of its hospitality
services through various advertising platforms such as the
Group's websites, posters and marketing campaigns. The
Group ensures no misleading or false information is delivered
to the public in the Group’s promotional materials. At the
Group's hotel, marketing campaigns are monitored by the
management in accordance with laws and regulations.

As the Group operates in the hotel industry, its operations do
not involve labelling matters.

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25
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18.4 Intellectual Property Rights

The Group's intellectual property rights encompass all
registered domains, trademarks, copyrights and licensing.
Robust protection mechanisms for both internal and
external intellectual assets are fundamental to maintaining
uninterrupted business operations and preserving brand
integrity. With full awareness of intellectual property
rights’ strategic value, the Group has implemented strict
protocols prohibiting unauthorised software usage across
all workplace systems. All computer programs deployed
within our operations are procured exclusively through
authorized vendors. The Group maintains vigilant oversight of
technological implementations, including software installation
processes, as part of our comprehensive intellectual property
protection framework.

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

The Group maintains rigorous data protection frameworks to
ensure the confidentiality and security of personal information
belonging to employees, customers, and stakeholders. Our
privacy policies clearly outline the lawful purposes for data
collection, processing parameters, transfer protocols, storage
durations, and security measures, along with established
procedures for data subject requests. The privacy statement is
published on the Group's website to ensure user awareness.
Management regularly reviews and updates these policies as
necessary.

Our privacy governance extends to stringent technical
controls covering all digital assets including enterprise
software, communication platforms, and web infrastructure.
Staff conduct training on proper data handling protocols, with
particular emphasis on safeguarding customer information.
During the Reporting Period, we are pleased to report that no
substantiated complaints regarding the leakage of customer
privacy or loss of customer data were reported.

18.4 HMBERE
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data (Continued)

C. &E@®

18. REEE (@)
185 EFBANMEIE (&)

BTMBE THBLMBBRENR

To enhance employees’ understanding of privacy, data
protection, and cybersecurity, the Group communicates its
policies through awareness campaigns and regular training

sessions. Additionally, we provide refresher programs to keep
employees informed of the latest practices and regulatory
updates. A designated Data Protection Officer conducts
compliance inspections of our privacy measures and liaises
with the National Privacy Commission in the Philippines to
ensure we meet all regulatory standards.

Only licensed software

can be installed on the
computers within the workplace
RN A AR R
THESHMER L

J

~N

Password protected
workstations, networks and
applications

T ok - M FERIZT
SEERE
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212

L -
CYBER ¢ 1%
SECURITY

Customers’ data

assess right is granted to

© | employees based on their job
requirements
REETMHITES R KT
YWEF HIE N mER

#HoAEERMBE TEEABLBCR -

ESh -

AEEHRREMEDWAER

AR AR TRHEMBRLEI - K
SECZEBBEREZBHAKEDN
BARERRETAMRE  WHEIF
REERBLZEGRUBE -

~
Anti-virus and anti-spam
solutions are installed and
regularly updated
REY E R RS
AR BRI R

J

N
USB ports
restrictions on computers
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C. OPERATIONS (continued) C. EE&E®)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. [REEF &)
18.6 Cultivating Responsible Gaming Culture 186 ZTEBEFEEE L

The Group places paramount importance on fostering a
sustainable and responsible gaming environment. We strictly
adhere to Presidential Decree (P.D.) No. 1869, as amended by
Republic Act (R.A) No. 9487, as well as the Code of Practice
on Responsible Gaming established by the PAGCOR. To this
end, we have formulated a series of policies, including the
Standard Operating Procedures — Membership Department
and the Standard Operating Procedures — Gaming Events
and Promotions Department, ensuring the compliance and
sustainability of all operational activities.

Furthermore, we strictly enforce age restrictions, prohibiting
individuals under the age of 21 or students enrolled in any
school, college, or university in the Philippines from entering
our gaming venues. To enhance public awareness of
responsible gaming, we also prominently display responsible
gaming slogans within our gaming premises, fostering a
positive gaming culture.

AEESEEREEHERART
MG IRE - MRS ETIERE(E
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aﬂ ) A RIFFREEREHEY
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19.

OPERATIONS (Continued)

ANTI-CORRUPTION & ANTI-MONEY
LAUNDERING

The Group upholds rigorous ethical standards across all levels of
our organisation, requiring every employee to maintain exemplary
professional conduct in accordance with our Code of Discipline.
This comprehensive policy strictly prohibits all forms of corrupt
practices including but not limited to bribery, extortion, and money
laundering. We have implemented robust control mechanisms that
mandate disclosure of any gifts or benefits received, regardless of
monetary value, with only strictly limited exceptions permitted.

To ensure operations compliance, we conduct regular anti-
corruption training programmes that cover both legislative
requirements and practical workplace applications. These
educational initiatives are supplemented by ongoing corporate
governance training designed to reinforce ethical decision-making
capabilities. Our zero-tolerance approach is enforced through
systematic investigation procedures for any reported concerns, with
appropriate disciplinary actions taken when violations occur.

The Group maintains a rigorous Anti-Money Laundering (“AML")
program as a core component of our ESG commitment to ethical
business practices and regulatory compliance. The Anti-Money
Laundering Committee provides governance and oversight, ensuring
effective implementation of our Money Laundering Prevention
Program across all casino operations, and timely report to the Board
of Directors regarding the Casino’s compliance status.

114 Annual Report &% 2024/25
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Our multilayered approach includes:

Customer Due Diligence: Enforced through our Know Your
Customer Procedure and Politically Exposed Persons Procedure
to identify and verify customer identities while screening high-risk
individuals

Due Diligence Tools: Leverages industry-leading verification tools
including WorldCheck, Veridocs, and LexisNexis to ensure accurate
customer identification and risk profiling

Risk-Based Monitoring: Utilising Member Risk Scoring Procedure
to categorise customers based on risk profiles

Transaction Surveillance: Mandatory Suspicious Transaction
Reporting Procedure for timely detection and reporting of unusual
activities

Investigative Protocols: Governed by our Investigation Procedure
and Sanction Procedure to ensure proper escalation and resolution
of potential AML cases

Through continuous monitoring and regular policy reviews, we
reinforce our commitment to transparency, accountability, and
responsible business practices as part of our broader ESG strategy.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified and
been made aware of any significant incidents of non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. The relevant laws and regulations include, but
not limited to, Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) of Hong
Kong, Prevention and Suppression of Bribery in the Private Sector
(Law No. 19/2009) of Macau and Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices
Act (Republic Act No. 3019) of the Philippines and Anti-Money
Laundering Act (Republic Act No. 9160) of the Philippines. During
the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees.
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19.1 Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group has implemented the Whistle-blowing Policy
which enables all employees and third parties such as
customers, suppliers and contractors, to raise any concerns
about improprieties, misconducts, malpractices, wrongdoings,
irregularities, fraud or corruption to the management.
Reports and complaints received will be assessed within a
reasonable timeframe. After which, they will be handled by
the Investigating Panel when necessary. Any violations or
substantiated allegations will be followed up with effective
remedial action commensurate with the severity of the
offense. The Group reserves the right to refer any cases to the
appropriate external regulatory authorities.

The Policy also aims at protecting whistle-blowers from fear of
reprisal, discrimination or adverse consequences, the identity
of the whistle- blowers will be kept strictly confidential. The
Group reserves the right to take appropriate actions against
anyone who initiates or threatens to initiate retaliation against
the whistleblowers. In particular, employees who initiate or
threaten retaliation will be subject to disciplinary actions,
which may include summary dismissal.

To monitor the effectiveness of the whistle-blowing
mechanism, the Group reviews all complaints received
regularly and conducts investigations if any pattern of
improprieties or alleged improprieties exist that need to be
addressed.
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A1l

A1.1

A1.2

A13

ESG Indicators Unit

g B
Environmental Indicators

REER

Emission

3,871

Type of emissions and respective emissions data
SHMBERARENER

Air emissions

BRUNE

Nitrogen oxides Kg
A&y TR
Sulphur oxides Kg
maly T
Particulate matter Kg
R T

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity

B (8E1) ReREE (GE2) BERBHER
EREE

Total greenhouse gas emissions tCOze

BERBHRAS &Lk

Total GHG emissions intensity Tonme/ml\llon HKS revenue
BERBHMEERE B/ BEBTBA
GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCOe
mERBHM(BE—) M_StiREs

GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCOe
BERBHM(BEZ) B_f{RES

Total hazardous waste produced

FELEERENALE

Total hazardous waste produced Tonne
MELBEERERYEE W

Total hazardous waste intensity Tonnes/million HKS revenue
BERRNEERRE i/ BEBTBA

2025 2024

“EChHEE _—T-NEE T

981.01 114584
65.60 75.89
69.01 80.56

14,200.89 7,764.57
25.06 4293
868.60 626.74
13,332.29 713782
6.58 482
0.012 0.027
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2023
=FE

347.21

22.71

2442

6,924.29

3342

29711

6,627.18

11.12

0.054



Al4

A2

A2.1

A2.2

ESG Indicators
g

Total non-hazardous waste produced

FELRERRNAE

Total non-hazardous waste produced

BEBRRNAE

Total non-hazardous waste intensity

BEBRENASER

Total non-hazardous wastewater discharged

BERKES

Total non-hazardous wastewater intensity

BERRNAETE

Use of resource

BRER

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity

RERUSNERR /FHEHRLRERT

E
Total energy consumption
REEE

Total energy consumption intensity

RRERETE
Direct energy consumption

BRRRHRER

Indirect energy consumption

Rk REFEEE

Water consumption in total and intensity

BEKERBE
Water consumption

FkE

Water consumption intensity

RKEERE
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Unit
By

Tonne

]

Tonnes/million HKS revenue
W/ BEBTRA

m3

UK

m*/million HKS revenue

YHR/AEETRA

MWh

KB

MWh/million HKS revenue
KRR/ BEBTRA
MWh

K ELES

MWh

KB

m3
MFK
m?/million HKS revenue

YHK/ BEETHA

2025

“RCIEFE

10.07

0.018

107,530

189.78

22,281.10

39.32

3,055.39

19,225.72

173,882.00

306.89

2024
“EONFE

7.24

0.040

95473

52799

13,791.61

76.27

185443

11,937.18

152,606.00

843.95

2023
—EC=HE

491

0.024

115,862

559.13

1207834

58.29

995.50

11,082.85

160,125.00

772.73



B1

B1.1

Gender

1R

Age group
FieAs

Region

i

B1.2

Gender

(3l

Age group
FieAn

ESG Indicators
g

Social Indicators

HEER

Employment

]

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region
BHR EREL FRANRLEHINE
S

Total number of employees
EERCVN |

Male

St

Female

g

18-30 years old

18 305%

31-49 years old

312 495%

50 years old or above

SOBREA £

Hong Kong and Macau

BB RAM

The Philippines

FRE

Employee turnover rate by gender and age

group
iR FRANESHESRALE

Total employee turnover rate

EB@RKLE
Male employees

SHET
Female employees

BT
18-30 years old

18 305%
31-49 years old

312 495%
50 years old or above

5053k A £

Unit
By

> > > > > > > >

Number and rate (%) of
employee turover
EERKABRRAE
Number and rate (%) of
employee turnover
EERKIASRRAE
Number and rate (%) of
employee turnover
EERKIAE KR AE
Number and rate (%) of
employee turnover
EERKRAZ TR E
Number and rate (%) of
employee turnover
EERKAHRRAE
Number and rate (%) of
employee turnover

BERRABLRAR

2025
3

1,312
716
596
429
795

88
21

1,291

287 (17.39%)

146 (16.42%)

141 (18.53%)

86 (15.55%)

149 (15.44%)

52(39.39%)

2024 2023
T NFE —E-ZFE
1,001 240

562 149

439 91

274 70

650 143

77 27

20 12

981 28

195 (21.55%) 75 (23.01%)
111 (20.33%) 48 (23.65%)
84 (23.40%) 27 (21.95%)
52 (20.08%) 16 (1839%)
124 (21.53%) 55 (26.32%)
19.(27.14%) 4(1333%)
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Region

il

B2

B2.1

B2.2

B3

B3.1

Gender

(3]

Employee
category

EERH

ESG Indicators
g

Hong Kong and Macau

H RRM
The Philippines

FRE

Health and safety
RERZZ

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
RIEBEEMETHABRLLE
Number of work-related fatalities
AIEBEMETHAR

Rate of work-related fatalities

AIEAEMETHARILE

Lost days due to work injury

RIGELATIERE

Development and training

BEREH

Percentage of employees trained by gender and

employee category

BERRESERAINZNEREIL

Percentage of male employees trained

BHEIRIADNL

Percentage of female employees trained

THBIRIAED L

Percentage of management trained

EREXIED I

Percentage of general employees trained

—REIXINAEDHL
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Unit
By

Number and rate (%) of
employee turnover
BERXABIRE
Number and rate (%) of
employee turnover

BERRABRRE

Case

(=]

T~
Percentage

BAK

Day
H

Percentage
BA
Percentage
ERald
Percentage
ERsd
Percentage

BAY

2025
S

7(25.00%)

280 (17.26%)

38

81.31%

80.68%

78.95%

82.39%

2024
“EONFE

0(0.00%)

195 (22.06%)

£60.14%

53.30%

41.40%

69.00%

2023
—EC=HE

4(23.53%)

71(22.98%)

76

10.07%

19.78%

13.38%

14.46%



ESG Indicators Unit 2025 2024 2023
g By “ECREE -—TONEE ZT-=FE

B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category

BURIRESERE S  SREETKIIN

TR
Gender Average training hours of male employees Hour 10.65 3.66 081
1R SHEIRITHRR B
Average training hours of female employees Hour 10.07 339 1.76
TR EIXATHRE INEE
Employee  Average training hours of management Hour 10.65 258 117
category  BREXITHRE K
EEHERI  Average training hours of general employees Hour 9.70 426 116
—REIXHITFHIER /N
B5 Supply chain management
HEEER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
EuEHINHRERRE
The Philippines Suppliers 566 338 422
FaE R
Hong Kong Suppliers 6 12 13
B fHIER
Europe Suppliers Nil 1 1
BN R B
B6 Product responsibility
EmEHE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject  Percentage N/A N/A N/A
to recalls for safety and health reasons
DENDERERENTRR2ARERAT AAM TER ey ki Sl
BEMHE AL
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints ~ Case Nil Nil Nil
received

BRERNERRRE N RFHE

A
B2y
)
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE 20. FAREIEERE ©)
INDICATORS (Continued)

ESG Indicators Unit 2025 2024 2023
EE By SECRFE —ToNEE —ToCFE
B7 Anti-corruption
R&S
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding

corrupt practises brought against the issuer or

its employees during the reporting period

REGHAERTARHEERHICEEN

BERREGNEE

Number of corruption lawsuits Case Nil Nil Nil
BAHARMNEE = = & &

B8 Community investment
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area

EETERFBRER
Donation to underprivileged PHP 119,860 Nil Nil

BESEZAE:2 P FREER & &

122 Annual Report &% 2024/25



21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT

nternational Entertainme

\t Corporation  BIBRIREEHF R A &)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Key Performance Indicators

BREENER

Environmental

BB

A1: Emissions
18R

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—REE

BRBERSORERBEN - KR THOEES - AERBEZEZMNELSEN @)
HRO)BTHETABEAZENHBEIRERRIINER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

AL BERTE SR R AR HE A B -

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and
intensity.

A2BEER (BE—) RERER (BE-) AERBHHRELRTE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

NMIFTELEBEREME

558

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

NMAFMEABERRZMBRENRTE -

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
ALSHPRET BV HE R E B iR RARERE L B R ERIRA 25K -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Al HIBRIBRENEZTEEMN AL - MR SRR B 1R R AEE
B BRI EREREY B o

HERERRE

. BiRXFRESGHR&EHR5 IR R5|

Reporting Section

EEEH

7. EMISSION

7.5

7. EMISSION

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT

7. HE Y

B REREYEIR

7.2 GHG Emissions

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
72 R ERBEBHN

20 ARB IR E
8.1 Hazardous Waste Management
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
81 HEREEMER

20 ARB IR R E
8.2 Non-hazardous Waste
Management

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
B2EEERYER

20. ARBHIEERME
7. EMISSION

7. 5E )

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT

8 EEEYE IR
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nterna

al Entertainment Corporation  BIfRIREEHF R AR

HEREARE

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

A2: Use of Resources
2:ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw

materials. Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,

electronic equipment, etc.

—REE

BRERER(BREEIR
Eh BT BTRE -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in
total and intensity.

A2 IRIRBVEI S B B IS R A

R(NE - Relm) BREERTE -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity

M2BFERKERTE -

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
A23 HE PRET LV RERE A e B IR R RIERIE L B R AT ERIE 5 o
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A2.4 it
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

MSERBITHEEEMENAE N BEEEMGE -
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CKREMBEM ) R - BRAAREE -

L SRERE A 7KR LRI BRI ERE - A RIRTT Ak e st 8 R ATISACR -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
==

21. B FRESGIHREIETIANB RS (4

Reporting Section

BEEMH

9. USE OF RESOURCE

9. &EIRIEM

9.1 Energy Consumption

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
9.1 BEIRE#E

20 ARBEBIEEHE

9.2 Water Consumption

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
92 FAKE

20 FARB IR IR E

9. USE OF RESOURCE

9. &REM

9.2 Water Consumption

92 FA/KE

The disclosure on the total packaging
material used for finished products

does not apply to the Group's
operations.

ERAKRAAEREMHEENE

BTERRARERNES -



21.

nternational Entertainment Corporation (S ey SN

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HBREABRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT . BiRXFRESGHR &5 IRABE5| (&)
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section

BEENER BEEEH

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3  RERRARER

General Disclosure 10. THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impacts on the environment and natural

resources.

— R 10. IR RABIR

WEZETAERERRARERERERTZEHHBR -
A3.1Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural ~ 10. THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
resources and the actions taken to manage them. RESOURCES

AN AR EBHRERAARERNEAZENERNEEEATENTE - 10 RRMRABR

A4: Climate Change
A4: RIR%E b
General Disclosure 11. CLIMATE CHANGE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—REE 1. RIREE

BRI NEHERRAIEGHBITAEEXENERRIKBBEENBER -
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and 11. CLIMATE CHANGE
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

THAERRAREHBETAELYENEARKABEE  LEHTH - 1. RIREE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT . BiRXFRESGHR &5 IRABE5| (&)
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section

BEENER BEEMH

Social

e

B1: Employment

1: &8

General Disclosure 12. Employment
12.2 Retaining Talents

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,

and other benefits and welfare.

— MR ER 12. (&%
122REB AT

BHHMREE BELEST  TERE - RY TERE  Ztk - RSB

AR H A 5B AR N E) (a) UK (b) BT HEITABEAXENEBEZ LRI

BB H -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.  12.1 The Group’s Workforce
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

TERUR - BEEE  FRAKKMESISHESBE - TREEIKE
20. %ﬁﬁki MIE IR &
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 12.2 Retaining Talents

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
BI.2 ¥R MRl FEAMNK RitRE DEERKILE 122REBAT
20 BRBEMIERRE
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International Entertainment Corporation

il E Rl

~
FNE]

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HBREABRE

21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

BEENER

B2: Health and Safety
B2 @EHZZE

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—REE

FHRMZE2TERERREREEMLBELBELEEN () B )
TABEARZENHBEEELROINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

RSl

VEEZF (BRERFE) ATFEARMETHAB L X -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

B2 ATBEALATIERE -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B3 TR MBI R R R R R 2t - U MBI RER A -

Reporting Section

BEEEH

13. Health, Safety and Security

13,625 - 2 FREE

13. Health, Safety and Security
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
1BE - R2MRE

0. AREVIEEHE

13. Health, Safety and Security
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
135 - R2MRE

20. ARB IR IR E

13. Health, Safety and Security

1325 - Z2MRE
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RIE - HERERRE

21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 21. Bi3XFRESGHR&E155IRB 5| (©)
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section
BRANER BREEH

B3: Development and Training

B3 : R R

General Disclosure 14. Development and Training

Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

—REE 14, B EEE

BRHRTEEET LIFRE N MR R R EE - R EINES -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. 14.1 Talent Management
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

B3R REERAEESNZIEEERD TAAER
20. Eﬁ%@i MIEIRHE
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 14.1 Talent Management
category. 20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
B2 IRMAIREEMHAED BEEETHKZINN TR - 141 ANA BB
20 BARRERUEIEME
B4: Labour Standards
B4 : BT %R
General Disclosure 15. Labour Standards

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— MR E 15, 48 T # 8|

BRAHEETHRBHIE TH (0 BRO) ETHETABEAFENEREZR
BRI E R -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced  15. Labour Standards

labour.

B4.1 fE i i A BB I MR pE LA R B T K555 T - 15. 8 T 2R

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 15. Labour Standards
B4.2 fEIMAE B B E MBS H IR A BB P ERER ) P 5% - 15. 485 T AR
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT . BiRXFRESGHR &5 IRABE5| (&)
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section

BEENER BEEEH

B5: Supply Chain Management
5 fLEEERE
General Disclosure 17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

—REE 17 e E 2

EIRHEEANIRE RS ERARBUR -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 17.1 Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
TR EE S HERRE - 171 HEREBE
20. ARBRIE IR E
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where  17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Bs2 L B RS KB IE R - MERTAEBEPINHEERHRE ARG 17 HEEEE
BOIMRITRERRE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the 17.1 Supplier Selection
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. 17.2 Local Procurement
BS3 il AR EE T ERGHIRE LML ERARNED - AREBRT 170 HEFTE
NERFE- 17.2 A HBREE

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and  17.1 Supplier Selection
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. 17.2 Local Procurement
BSAMMAERBEHERRREERZARREMRBRENED  UREBESH 171 HEFBE
HITREERETE - 172 AN R B
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 21. Bt3XFRESGHR&E155IRAB 5] (4

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

BEENER

B6 : Product Responsibility
B6: EmEE
General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

—REE

BRMREHRERMRBNEERZE  BE REMELFERBRITEN ()

BUR b) BTHETABERTENHBERERAOINER -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

B EEXRCDEXEREBTRL 2 BRFEAMBLWNBEDL

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

B6.2 RN Em MRIGHIRF B U R EH T -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights

B6.3 #ii il B 4 i IR AR [E AN R ERE B AV IE B

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

B6.4 f il (A B AR EBIE R EmBEIKIR T ©

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

B6.S H il H B E B ERERFLBEEK - UREBATRERTE -
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Reporting Section

BREZH

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

18. IRIEE (T

The disclosure on the total products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons and recall
procedures does not apply to the
Group's operations.
BRAZEMERREMS A M
MEEXBEERBEIAKRAMD
BFHEENEANAEESE
18.1 Service Quality

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

181 IRFEE

0. BARBERIEEHE

18.5 Intellectual Property Rights

184 G842

18.1 Service Quality

18.2 Customer Satisfaction
181 RBEE
18B2BEPMEE

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

185 B F R AL &%



Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section

BRERER BEEH

B7 : Anti-corruption

B7 : RES

General Disclosure 19. ANTI-CORRUPTION & ANTI-
MONEY LAUNDERING

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

—RIE 19. RE)F R RIEE

BED IR BR - FEFRARENQBROETHETABERTEN
HEERLRPIONER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the ~ 20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
T RERBAHBTASEEERBYEFANESHARMHNEE RF 20 AREBUEERE

a’\%%
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they 19.1 Whistle-blowing Policy
are implemented and monitored.

B7.2 H P it ie R R MAR T - A RMABENITRERE % o 191 BWBE

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 19. ANTI-CORRUPTION & ANTI-
MONEY LAUNDERING

73l MESE R ETRENRESE - 19. RE)F R RIEE

B8 : Community Investment

B8 : HERE
General Disclosure 16. Community Investment

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

—REE 16. L RITE

B R2ERBEEEEMTHEFTENBRREEREH S Z BT

BYBUR o

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs,  16. Community Investment
health, culture, sport).

B8l X ERIEIG (WHE BEFH HIHF K H#E Xt 8A) - 6. tEIKRE
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 16. Community Investment

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Be2 EE X HISFTEAEBIR o 16. L@ IZE
20. BERETIEIEHE
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International
Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) set out on pages 140 to 262, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of the non-current non-financial
assets

We identified the impairment assessment in relation to the non-current
non-financial assets located in the Republic of the Philippines (the
"Philippines”) allocated to the cash generating units of hotel operation
(the "Hotel operation CGU") and two gaming operation (the “Gaming
operation CGUs") as a key audit matter because of the significant
judgements and estimates involved in management’s assessment process.
During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Group's Hotel operation CGU
and Gaming operation CGUs incurred a segment loss of HK$19,613,000
and HK$234,889,000 respectively which management assessed that
impairment indicators for the non-current non-financial assets of these
operations may be impaired. The Group has carrying amount of (i)
property, plant and equipment of HK$129,677,000 and right-of-use assets
of HK$10,141,000 respectively relating to the Hotel operation CGU; and
(i) property, plant and equipment of HK$663,379,000, intangible asset
of HK$2,087,000, prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment of HK$58,111,000 and right-of-use assets of HK$22,660,000
respectively relating to the Gaming operation CGUs, which are significant
operating assets of the Group.

The management assessed the recoverable amounts of the Hotel operation
CGU and Gaming operation CGUs with reference to the valuations
prepared by an independent professional valuer not connected to the
Group (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in Note 15, Note 17 and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, the management has concluded that
there is no impairment loss of property, plant and equipment, intangible
asset and right-of-use assets recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

BPEREFESFMIGRM 2 (BEETE
AD((EBEFERYDETEZ BRARZETE
AEENEEEARSE [XBE L ERE S M5
WERAENE T Mo P E—TEL - REFE
SR AGW[BES A BETR (R
BFBUN BEKE YEETTATHEME
BEE - RMBE RPIMESHEZEERER
REEZEHWR/RMNERITHERE -

FRREZFHEERERFINFTEHE  HAHD
HEVMBHRRNBELRSEENSIH - BLERA
EERMELERG AV BHRRRHABREE
TTRRER - R TSHELFRIEHEFOER

FRBFERMEE ZRMETE

BMESEBRLRIGEEEANE ([ERE]) A
EAREREEERcEFAEM(BEEERS
EEEBN) EMEBYEERcEEASEN (8
KEEBERSEEBEN)) 2IHERDIESHEEZR
B hHER A —EHEREZEE REARBEE
FERER SR ERAB R G - BEZF =R
FARAZTHLEFE  ASEMNAELERSE
BB EERSCEEBEUDEEDIE
819,613,000 7T I 234,889,00078 7T * & 12 & 7T &
ZEEBRIERDIESHEEMNREIBE A 88
BRE AEE)REEEERCELEENVEH
ZWME BEREEUIREAEEE ZREES
Al 129,677,000 7 7T & 10,141,000 78 7T + K (i) £2 18
TEBRCEFEMEBIYE  BEREE
mILEE - BB W REE ZTENRIEN
R (E AL E ZBRMEED B 4 663,379,000/% 7T
2,087,000/ 7T ~ 58,111,0007% 7T & 22,660,000 78 JT ©
ZEHBAEENEREBEEE o

ERELE REASEVEMENBLEEMG
ERD ([fEE ) REGEFHEEEERSEL
BUREYEERSELBEN 2 ]RGS EE o B
WN4R A B #5sR R B aE15 » Bt 7% 17 R Bt sE 20 B 4%
B OTHEECSHERREBMEDE BE KK
B EVEERFEAEEENRARBBNRFRNIE
AP ER o
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Impairment assessment of the non-current non-financial
assets (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
of the Hotel operation CGU and Gaming operation CGUs included:

Discussing the impairment indicators of the Hotel operation CGU
and Gaming operation CGUs with the management and inspecting
the operating results of the Group's hotel operation segment and
gaming operation segment;

Assessing the appropriateness of valuations methodologies with
involvement of our internal valuation specialists;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Assessing and challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
adopted in the valuations with involvement of our internal valuation
specialists, such as the discount rates, capitalisation rate, average
occupancy rate, average daily room rate, gaming revenue growth
rates and forecast periods by comparing them with the budget
approved by the management, available market data and the
historical operating performances.

Contingencies in relation to the income tax and other
tax disputes with the Bureau of Internal Revenue in the
Philippines (the “BIR")

We identified the assessment of the contingencies in relation to the
income tax and other tax disputes with the BIR as a key audit matter due to
significant management judgements involved in assessing the probability
of settling the amount of potential income tax and other tax disputes of
the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

As disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the
potential additional tax liabilities of the Group from the income tax and
other tax disputes with BIR for calendar years of 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015,
2018 and 2019 amounted to approximately Peso 5 billions (equivalent
to HK$S690 millions) in aggregate as at 30 June 2025. As disclosed in note
24, approximately Peso 426 millions (equivalent to HK$59 millions) bank
balances of the Group has been garnished and withdrew by BIR during
2022 in relation to income tax and other tax dispute for calendar year of
2015 and the Group has recognised as tax recoverable. The uncertainties
related to the ultimate outcome and the details of the income tax and
other tax disputes with the BIR are set out in notes 4, 12 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Contingencies in relation to the income tax and other
tax disputes with the Bureau of Internal Revenue in the
Philippines (the “BIR") (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to evaluating the contingencies in relation
to the income tax and other tax disputes with the BIR and the sufficiency of
the relevant disclosures in the consolidated financial statements included:

Obtaining and reviewing all relevant documents and
correspondences in relation to the income tax and other tax disputes
between the Group and the BIR;

Evaluated the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the tax
and legal advisors and obtaining an understanding of their scope of
work and their terms of engagements;

Inspecting the written advices issued by the independent tax and
legal advisers of the Group to assess the appropriateness of the
management’s basis in determining the amount of contingent
liabilities for other tax disputes and the basis in evaluating the
outcome of the income tax disputes;

Enquiring and challenging the basis of written advices of
independent tax and legal advisors of the Group to understand their
assessment of the income tax and other tax disputes; and

Considering the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements as required by relevant HKFRS
Accounting Standards.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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International Entertainment Corporation EIfRIREEBE A7

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZBMBES

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

(Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.
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conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on
the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the work performed for the purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ4EF R A"

Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Tsz Hung
Practising Certificate number P0O6693

Hong Kong, 26 September 2025
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Revenue
Gaming tax and licensing fee
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Otherincome

Other loss, net

Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Change in fair value of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Change in fair value of investment properties

Share of results of associates

Selling and marketing expenses

General and administrative expenses

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax (expense)/credit

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25
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BATEFABRZEREE
N EES
BRHEFABRRZERAE
NV EZE
BREWMERFEE
REL e WNCTE 3

HE RIS HERERNX
—RRITHAX

M ER

B B A0 5 1R
Fris®t (RS0, %

Year ended

30 June

2025

BZE

—E-HF

ANB=+H

LFE

Notes HK$’000
it 5 FTHET
6(b) 566,159
10 (180,731)
(112,183)

273,245

7 44,250
8 (82,638)
21 (533)
32 3,208
16 (23,315)
19 5,686
(74,494)
(326,550)
9 (91,824)
10 (272,965)
12 (9,180)

Year ended
30 June
2024

HE
—TNEF
~A=+8
IEFE
HK$'000
FHET

229,786
(17,792)
(79,564)

132,430
17,895
(15,506)

(723)

(162,246)
30,282



nternational Entertainment Corporation

BFRIRSEB R A A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEzHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2025 2024
BZE BE
—E_HEF —EZOF
ANBA=1+H ~NA=+H
LHEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
st FHET FHET
Loss for the year attributable RATRHEE ANEEFR
to the owners of the Company E518 (282,145) (131,964)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will ~ BT @ EFH DB EIEEZ
not be reclassified to profit or loss: Hib2mE (BE) MW
— Remeasurement of defined benefit — BN ERATEANEMS
obligations 28 (55) 802
— Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied —ETERMEERERE
properties upon transfer to investment S ES Rl
properties, net of related income tax HMBRIEREFT 15 L 14,383 -
— Exchange differences arising on — BN EERELRZEIE
translation from functional currency to MR EAECENZTE
presentation currency 24,124 (59,008)
Total comprehensive loss for the year RABVHE AELFR
attributable to the owners of the Company ZHEGEAE (243,693) (190,170)
HKS Cents HKS Cents
Al (L
Loss per share attributable to RARHE ANEEER
owners of the Company BB
Basic 2R 14 (20.61) (9.64)
Diluted e 14 (20.61) (9.64)
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At 30 June 2025
RZFE-—AFANA=1H

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Loan receivables
Intangible assets
Interests in associates
Right-of-use assets
Restricted bank balances

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Contract assets

Tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Amounts due from associates

Fixed bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges

Amounts due to associates
Promissory notes

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings
Convertible bond

Tax payables

Net current assets

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25
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Notes

i iE

15
16
18
17
19
20
36(a)

23

22

23
25(a)
24

21
18
36(a)
36(a)

26
26
18
30
25(b)
20
31
32

30 June 2025
—E_RHEF
ANB=+H

HK$’000
FET

793,127
336,000
99,992
5,386
43,303
33,046
390,741

71,615

1,773,210

6,382
37,605

78,701
250
59,135

4,423

13,873
562,519

762,888

2,536,098

1,209
137,843
12,478
2,078
7,022
59,933

17,716
238,279

524,609

30 June 2024
—EmF
SNA=+H
HK$'000
FHET

1,069,582
57,602
6,897
36,187
22,139
411,027

104,092
1,707,526
4,716
1,398
35,209
291
57,067
4,481
4,284
91,855
417,471
616,772
2,324,298

4,133
95,464



At 30 June 2025
R-ZFE-—AFNA=1H

30 June 2025 30 June 2024
—E-REF —E O
NAZ=+H ~NA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
HiaE FExT FHE T
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIERE 27 86,355 99,577
Other liabilities HEmaE 28 3,696 1,082
Lease liabilities HEAaE 20 36,552 27,869
Bank borrowings RITEE 37 930,134 578,360
Promissory notes A RE 30 467,986 -
1,524,723 706,388
NET ASSETS EEFE 773,096 1,016,789
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANA R A A FE( S
Share capital & A 29 13,692 13,692
Share premium and reserves R& 17 5% B M & 759,404 1,003,097
TOTAL EQUITY DB 773,096 1,016,789

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 262 were approved ~ # R B 140 E 202 B 2 i 6 M B BEKER =T
by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2025 and were signed onits —HFNA - tNEBEEESH/ME - WH TIIE

behalf by: EREREZ
Mr. HO Wong Meng Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE
HO Wong Meng %t &£ Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE 5t &£
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF EFE
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International Entertainment Corporation

SN YN

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nJ\é%iﬁgiEiﬁﬁ

For the year ended 30 June 2025

B=®

HE—F-_AFNNA=THILFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRRREAELR
Share-based
Share Share Merger Other Exchange  Revaluation compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserves reserves reserves reserve profits Total
HRHBER
Rk RBEE  AMRE  HbEE  EXRE  EREE  CRERE  REEX g
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tikn Tién TR T TiEn Tién TR T Titn
(Notea) (Note b) Note¢)
(fita) (Ftb) (c)
A1 July 203 RZE-=FtA-H 1369,157 170,289 53022 (112683) (339,740) - 5433 61481 1206959
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (131964 (131,964
Remeastrement of defined benefic obligations EtEREEHEL - - - - - - - 80 80
Exchange differences arising on translation from B EERE A2HIENE
functional currency to presentation currency EEVERER - - - - (39,008) - - - (59,008)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ENZERELE - - - - (59,008) - - (131,162 (190170)
Cancellation of share options HiERRE - - - - - - (5433) 5433 -
Capitalreduction (Note 29 RAHlE (Wi 29) (1355.465) - - - - - - 1355465 -
At30 June 2024 KZE-REAA=1H 13692 170,289 53022 (112683) (398,748) - - 1291217 1016789
Loss forthe year FRER - - - - - - - (82145 (282,145)
Rerezsurement of defined benefitobligations ENERERTER - - - - - - - (55) (55)
Gain on revaluation of owneroccupied properties £ T AFNEBRZRENER
upon transfer toinvestment properties Mote 16)  BIEME (i 16) - - - - - 19,178 - - 19,178
Related income tax REAEHR - - - - - (4,795) - - (4,795)
Exchange differences arising on translation from B EERE A2HENE
functional currency to presentation currency EEVERER - - 5 - 2,124 5 - - 2,124
Total comprehensive income/(oss)for the year FR2ELR/(BE) 48 - - - - 2,124 14,383 - (2822000 (43,693)
At 30 June 2025 RZB-REAR=TH 13,692 170,289 53,022 (112,683) (374,624) 14,383 - 1,009,017 773,096
(@  Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the share capital  (a) ANEEAHFEEREABHBEHEER AR (HKH

and share premium of Cyber On-Air Multimedia Limited whose shares were
exchanged for the Company'’s shares and the nominal amount of share capital
issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation. Cyber On-Air
Multimedia Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2008.

The other reserves represent net effect of discount on acquisition of subsidiaries
and premium on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries from a subsidiary
of the then intermediate parent arising during the year ended 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2017 respectively.

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the value of the unexercised
share option granted by the Company and recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 3.17. On 8 August
2023, the unexercised share options were cancelled and the balance of share-
based payments reserve of HK$5,433,000 was transferred to retained profits.

144 Annual Report &% 2024/25

SR A R A ) 2 B AR R B An i B AR AR
BEEEEHEMBTRAZEERER 2 ZHE - 818
R ERAREREE_TTNF=A=+—
HILFEHRE -

H#EEEREE_ET /N \F=ZA=+—8BE=F
—tF =A==+ —HLEFESNMERFFNEQF
Z—RMEBRRUENE A RELE 2R R IREW
BRRBEIMEREAZ KB FTE-

AR BER MERKESEREMEI 7R
DRERNRAMTRMNSTRRERZAARREZ
MARITEBEREZEE - R=ZE=_=FNANE "
RITEEBRAEC T MARD AERZ R
#E8R5433000 8 T E MBS REBAF -



OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expenses

Provision for/(reversal of) credit losses for
trade and other receivables, net

Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Change in fair value of financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Change in fair value of investment properties

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible asset

Share of results of associates

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
Increase in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
Increase in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
(to)/from associates
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
Increase in other payables and accrued charges
Decrease in contract assets
Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash used in operating activities
Income taxes paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REES
BT AT B 1R

s N5 B (R SR

FEHA

MEFX

P Wi Bl T e L b B UURRIR 2
EEBRRE(BE) FHR
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
BZE HE
—EB-hF —EMEF
~NA=1H NAZ=+H
LEFE EFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET AT
(272,965) (162,246)
(32,023) (15,546)
91,824 70,633
6,546 (1,765)
533 723
(3,208) (1,385)
23,315 14,145
90,965 39,899
6,299 3,338
3,744 3,586
(5,686) 4,090
(27,285) 15,506
109,869 =
(8,072) (29,022)
(1,666) (3,740)
(40,964) 15,110
(24,684) (58,160)
16,762 (3,550)
(2,924) 2,372
44,898 46,441
41 -
1,388 -
(15,221) (30,549)
(15,221) (30,549)
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Placement of restricted bank balances

Release of restricted bank balances

Placement of time deposit

Release of time deposit

Interest received

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Additions to intangible assets

Loan to an associate

Repayments of loan receivable from an
associate

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Redemption of convertible bond
Proceed from bank borrowing
Repayment of lease liabilities

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and cash
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Note
HtaE

36(b)

36(a)

Year ended
30 June 2025
BZE
—E-HE
ANA=+H
LLFE
HK$’000
THExT

34,469
(13,591)

79,656

43,902
(276,754)
(2,237)
(40,302)

(174,857)

(60,942)

(53,000)
393,079

(8,660)

270,477

80,399

64,649

417,471

562,519

Year ended
30 June 2024
HE
—EpF
~NA=+H
IEFE
HK$'000
FHET

(411,027)

(91,855)

13,529
(76,472)
(7,195)

2410

(570,610)

(36,018)

604,681
(5,860)

562,803

(38,356)

(36,624)

492451

417,471



International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange’). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong are
disclosed in “Corporate Information” section to this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were principally engaged in
hotel operation (the "Hotel Operation Business”), operating the
gaming business as operator under Provisional License (as defined
in Note 5) and leasing of gaming venues at the Group’s hotel and
casino complex in Metro Manila in the Republic of the Philippines
(the “Philippines”) to tenant for authorised gaming operation
(the “Gaming Operation Business”) and live poker events (the
"Live Events Business”") in Macau. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 37.

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are effective for the current year

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months.

clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer
of cash, goods or services, or the entity's own equity
instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity
instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises
the option separately as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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(a)

Adoption of amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that
only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on
or before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date, even if compliance with the
covenant is assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022
Amendments also specify that covenants with which an entity
must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants)
do not affect the classification of a liability as current or non-
current at the reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period, an entity discloses information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities
becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period. This would include information about the covenants,
the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and
circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have
difficulties complying with the covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification
of liability as current or non-current retrospectively. The
application of the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(a)
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
EoAFNA=THIFFE

HE—

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
and HKFRS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification
and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards —
Volume11?

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
aims to provide greater consistency in presentation of the
income and cash flow statements, and more disaggregated
information. The standard will change how companies present
their results on the face of the income statement and disclose
information in the notes to the financial statements. Certain
‘non-GAAP’ measures — management performance measures
(MPMs) — will now form part of the audited financial
statements. There will be three new categories of income and
expenses, two defined income statement subtotals and one
single note on management-defined performance measures.
The effective date is 1 January 2027 and early adoption is
permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 18 has no impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance in foreseeable future, but
has impact on presentation of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2025 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group's interest in associates.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso
(“Peso”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company’s major subsidiaries operate. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars ("“HK$") as the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider that it is an appropriate
presentation for a company listed in Hong Kong and for the
convenience of the shareholders of the Company.

3.1

3.2
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For the year ended 30 June 2025

HE—

34

3.5

F_AFNA=FHILFE

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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3.6 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amounts are adjusted for the Group's share
of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value
of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

3.6
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and other items in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, including costs of testing whether the related
assets is functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 3.7 M¥ BERRE#E)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining term of the
land leases on which the
buildings are located, or
their estimated useful lives

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
remaining term of the lease
of the land leases on which
the buildings are located, or
their estimated useful lives

Machinery, furniture, 3-15 years

fixtures and equipment

Entertainment equipment 5-15 years
Computer hardware 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IEHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE-_F-_AFNA=1+HIFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.8

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period
and up to the date of completion of construction for the
investment properties. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at its fair value. The Group’s
property interest held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes is classified and accounted
for as investment property and is measured using the fair
value model. Gain or loss arising from change in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If the investment property becomes an owner-occupied
property because its use has been changed as evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation, the fair value
of the investment property at the date of change in use is
considered as the deemed cost for subsequent accounting
under “property, plant and equipment”.

156 Annual Report &% 2024/25

3.

EAGHBUR @)

3.8

REMR
REMEERRDAS R HE KRG
EMFHE2YME - REMENTZK
AF 8 BREMEREGERX IR
EMERRMANEEZERTHK A Y
PELEZBERA - R FHERIE -
BEWMERRAFETE - AKERIE
REMVEFAUARBEEHEANEE
ZWMESBERARINBEEYE - A
BAFEBHGE REWEZRT
EEPHMELRGEIBBRAAELS
B2 Bk o

MREMEAREEE MRS ERY
¥ THEEEBTRERKBEM A
RIME - BFEREEIET  ZRE
MEERZEE BN QTFERER
REBRARMBAERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE_FT_RFNA=THIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXGHEE#®)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.9 Leases 3.9 HE
The Group as a lessee KEBERABA
All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated FBERENARGEEMBRAXRAE
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease MeREREEEREERE -
liabilities.
Right-of-use asset EHEELE

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability);

(i)  any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

(i) anyinitial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv)  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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International Entertainment Corporation EIfRIREEBE A7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IEHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _AaFAHA=1THIFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.9 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying

asset during the lease term that are not paid at the

commencement date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

fixed lease payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liabilities by:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liabilities;

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised
in-substance fixed lease payments.
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nternational Entertainment Corporation  [Ef

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXGHEE#E)

INFORMATION (Continued)
3.9 Leases (Continued)

39 HE#E)

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised as revenue
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the remaining lease
term.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

3.10 Intangible asset

3.11

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain and loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI"), debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
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3.1 €I A (&)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at FVTOCI
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair
value, dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") on trade receivables, contract assets and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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3.1 €I A (&)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In particular, the following information, but not limited to, is
taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.
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3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or contract asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, bank borrowings and promissory note are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process and upon non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities.
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3.1 €I A (&)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both
the debt and conversion option components are classified
separately into their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
variable amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an embedded derivative liability.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the debt component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. Where a contract contains one or
more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may
be designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bond is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group's own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or
loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bond using the
effective interest method.
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3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

When the Group exchanges with an existing lender one
debt instrument into another one with substantially different
terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial
modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. If the modification is not substantial,
the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
immediately before the modification; and (2) the present value
of the cash flows immediately after modification is recognised
in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

3.12 Inventories 3.12 &

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

3.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Room revenue

Room revenues are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer
during the stay in the hotel. The services are charged at a fixed
rate with no significant variable consideration. The Group
recognised revenue in the amount to which the entity has the
right to invoice, which is representative to the value service
being delivered. Invoices are issued upon check out and
payable immediately. No significant financing component
existed.

Food and beverages

The Group provides food and beverages service in the
hotel. The Group recognised revenue at point in time at the
amount to which the entity has the right to invoice, which is
representative to the service being delivered. Invoices for food
and beverage service are issued on upon customer check-out
and payable immediately. No significant financing component
existed.
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3.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other hotel service income

Revenues from other hotel services are recognised at point
in time as the customer obtain controls of the services.
The services are charged at a fixed rate with no significant
variable consideration. The Group recognised revenue in the
amount to which the entity has the right to invoice, which
is representative to the value of services being delivered. No
significant financing component existed.

Live event revenue

The Group generates income from organising live event poker
events. The revenue are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer. The
Group recognised revenue in the amount to which the entity
has the right to invoice, which is representative to the service
being delivered.

Casino revenue

Casino revenue from gaming tables and electronic gaming
machines represents net house takings arising from casino
operations and is recognised in profit or loss at a point in time
when stakes are received by the casino and the amounts are
paid out to the players. Customers paid in advance before
they wager.

Other sources

Rental income from leasing of gaming venues are recognised
on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.

Management fee income is recognised when the services are
provided during the service period.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated

statement of financial position include:

(@)

cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

3.15 Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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3.15 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
investments in associates, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

3.15 FiEH (&)

3.15 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) in the relevant jurisdictions that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount
is when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.
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3.16 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (i.e. foreign currencies) are recorded
in the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserves (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

3.17 Employee benefits 3.17 BEER

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS Accounting Standards requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
Accounting Standards requires or permits their inclusion in
the cost of an asset.

Retirement benefit costs in Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees in Hong Kong who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. Prior to the MPF Scheme being
effective, the Group did not have any pension arrangements
for its employees.
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3.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs in the Philippines

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contribution. Contributions are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
where applicable.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur.

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained profits and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning
of the period to the net defined benefit obligations or assets.
Retirement benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
The Group presents the retirement benefit costs (other than
remeasurement) in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.
The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligations.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

3.18 kERMEERE

3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its investments in subsidiaries, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
and interest in associates to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

3.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of time value of money is
material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with HKAS 37.
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nternational Entertainment Corporation BIRIRZEER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IEHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE-_F-_AFNA=1+HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.20 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

U]

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

U]

(i)

(iif)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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nternational Entertainment Corporation  BIERIRE45 R A 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a party, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates
and assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected
to be utilised by the Group. The Group reviews their estimated
useful lives based on factors that include technological changes,
the existing circumstances, prospective economic utilisation as well
as physical condition of the assets on a regular basis. The results of
the operations of the Group could be affected by changes in these
estimates brought about by the changes in the factors mentioned.
The management of the Group regularly reviews these factors in
determining the estimated useful lives of the assets.

A significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in these assets would result in a
change to the estimated useful lives to reflect the changed pattern. A
reduction in the estimated useful lives of the assets would decrease
the depreciation period of the assets and increase depreciation
provided to write off the cost of assets, while an increase in the
estimated useful lives of the assets, opposite impact on depreciation
period and depreciation would be resulted.
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Impairment of non-current non-financial assets

Non-current non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs of disposal calculations of its cash-
generating unit ("“CGU") or group of CGUs. The calculations require
the use of judgements and estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the CGU
or group of CGUs values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of a CGU or group of CGUs can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use calculations; (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in assessing the recoverable
amount, including cash flow projections, discount rates etc.; and
(iv) appropriate determination of CGUs and allocation of related
expected future cashflows; Changing the assumptions selected
and judgements made by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group's financial position
and results of operations.

A more detailed information in relation to the impairment
assessment of these assets are disclosed in note 15.

Income tax and other tax disputes

A subsidiary of the Company operating in the Philippines currently
has significant tax disputes with Bureau of Internal Revenue in the
Philippines (“BIR"). The ultimate outcome of the income and other
tax disputes cannot be presently determined. The estimate of
potential additional tax liabilities of the Group in respect of those
income and other tax disputes as at 30 June 2025 was set out in note
12.

For the year ended 30 June 2025
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value
of investment properties. Note 16 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of investment properties of
HK$336,000,000 as at 30 June 2025.

On 27 September 2023, the Company’s subsidiaries — Marina
Square Properties, Inc. ("MSPI") and New Coast Leisure Inc. (‘"NCLI")
and Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (‘PAGCOR")
entered into a provisional license agreement pursuant to which
PAGCOR has granted the provisional license (the “Provisional
License”) to MSPI and NCLI or any one of them (“Licensee”) to
establish and operate a casino and the development of an integrated
resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines. PAGCOR shall issue
the regular casino gaming license (the “Regular Casino Gaming
License”) for the project upon (i) completion of the establishment
and operation of the casino and the development of an integrated
resort in the City of Manila; and (i) upon approval by PAGCOR of the
Licensee’s compliance with the implementation plan in relation to
the actual total project cost. The effectivity or term of the Provisional
License and the Regular Casino Gaming License shall be co-terminus
with the franchise of PAGCOR which shall be effective from the date
of the provisional license agreement until 11 July 2033. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group is still course of development of
integrated resort in the City of Manila, further details of the terms
and commitments under the Provisional License are included in
Note 34.

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

BREVENDAFEFE
REBRABEWIFEANATERRN S EE
R AMEREERMREFIREDEND
FE M cletBEEEEREMEN
LT RFNA=+ HB A F{E336000000
BITFTRAMMERN G AERBERERES
FAER -

RZEBEZ=FAA-++tH AR2THEB
/X B Marina Square Properties, Inc. ([ MSP1]) &
New Coast Leisure Inc. ([ NCLI ) £2 JF {3 & 4R 44
K185 A7) ([ PAGCOR ) 5] 37 Fq B h& BR 17
& © ¥t PAGCOR M) MSPI F2 NCLI 8k fF fa] — &
([#HRBAD BTG ERE ((REER]) U
RIEEEFERAMRILEEB S RER
FEEREB - ROFENMTHEL L&
BERESLEREAGERE  RK()PAGCORR
AFEANEBERBIEEKNATEHNITEE
& - PAGCORM B 2 IH B 2 EABEISIH R
R ((EXBEEEEEER]) - BRERK
FREEISER ARG N HI B PAGCORE & 1
— B BEREEBHERHRE_T ==
FHtAT—HIE -RWMEHR AKED
TR MNEGEEERE - BHERE
FERRIE TG R RR R B — P EF B 34 ©



Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to
make strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-maker has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is engaged
in business activities from which the Group may earn revenue
and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the internal
management reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group's directors in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment.

The executive directors have determined that the Group has the
following reportable segments:

—  the "Hotel Operation” segment represents the operation of
hotel business in the Philippines;

— the “Gaming Operation” segment represents operating
the gaming business under provisional license (see Note 5)
operate by the Group and leasing of gaming venues at the
hotel and casino complex of the Group in the Philippines to
a tenant for authorised gaming operation (2024 leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment at the
hotel complex of the Group in the Philippines to PAGCOR up
to takeover of gaming business by the Group); and

—  the "Live Events” segment represents the operation of live
poker events business.

For the year ended 30 June 2025
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(a)

Business segment

Segment information about these reportable segments is

presented below:

Year ended 30 June 2025

Revenue — external

Segment results

Unallocated other income

Exchange gain, net

Change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of financial
liabilities at FVTPL

Share of results of associates

Auditor's remuneration

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Unallocated finance costs

Other unallocated expenses

Loss before taxation for the year
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H R BF %

EABRRAER

Hotel
Operation
BIEEE
HK$'000
TET

56,211

(19,613)

M

BE-Z-AF A NAZ1THLEFE

Gaming
Operation
BREE
HK$'000
TEr

509,948

(234,889)

Live

Events Consolidated

REEE &4&
HK$'000

HK$'000
TR FRER

- 566,159
(147) (254,649)

13,615
32,524

(533)

3,208
5,686
(3,486)
(2,723)
(3,744)
(28,033)
(34,830)

(272,965)



(a) Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2025

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interests in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Promissory notes
Lease liabilities
Amounts due to associates
Others

Consolidated total liabilities

*T&ﬁé
T*’ Bzt AB#HZ
ﬁﬂéﬁ
REFE AT 2 %
H

HAEEEMRE

=L

SEEE
AOMBE
EEER
HEBE
FEH B & A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

(a) ¥KoIE)
R-ZZBE-HFEXNA=+H

Hotel Gaming Live
Events Consolidated
REED )
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT

Operation
BIEEE
HK$’000
THET

Operation
BREE
HK$’000
THET

113,058 2,133,087 1,473 2,247,618

224,696
4,423

43,303
16,058

2,536,098

36,722 1,184,004 2,520 1,223,246
467,986
13,371
12,478

45,921

1,763,002
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(a) Business segment (Continued)
Other information

Year ended 30 June 2025

Depreciation of property, ME - BER

plant and equipment RENE
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FREEENE
assets
Amortisation of intangible asset & & # 34
Additions to property, REWME BE
plant and equipment Rk
Provision for expected credit ~ EHRE B R IE B
losses — trade receivables  — FEURBR TR
(Reversal of)/provision for EHEERE
expected credit losses (BE),/ %
— other receivables — H bR
Change in fair value of REME L
investment properties NTEES
Change in fair value of BATEFABRZ
financial assets at FVTPL SREENTEE
Change in fair value of BATEGFAERZ
financial liabilities at FVIPL S B EEAFES
Share of results of associates 2 1B & A A 45
Interest income FS WA
Finance costs BKEER
Income tax expense PR HiR
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Hotel
Operation

BEEE
HK$'000
TR
16,071

2,899

40,432

(461)

(10)
1,969
377

(a)

Gaming
Operation
BReE
HK$000
TERT

74,851

677
146

236,222

4,757

2,250

23,315

(20,620)
61,822
8,803

RBDE (&)

Ht&EH

BE-ZE-HAFAA=1+HLEE

Live
Events
RigEs
HK$'000
THET

Unallocated Consolidated

L =®e

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TER

43 90,965

2,723 6,299

3,598 3,744

- 276,754

- 4,757

- 1,789

- 23,315

533 533
(3,208) (3,208)
(5,686) (5,686)
(11,393) (32,023)

28,033 91,824

- 9,180



6.

International Entertainment Corporation B[R IR 2475 R /

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025

BE—FT-_nF N NA=1THIFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEPERE &)
(a) Business segment (Continued) (a) %ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ (&)
Year ended 30 June 2024 BE-E_mWEXA=THLEE
Hotel Gaming Live

Operation Operation Events  Consolidated

BIEEE BYEE Bi5E8 e

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000

TAET FAET FHET T

Revenue — external WA — 4R 59,832 169,954 - 229,786

Segment results NEEE (27,710) (59,136) (635) (87481)

Unallocated other income AAOREMBA 13,746

Exchange loss, net ERER T (8,714)
Change in fair value of financial assets & A F Bzt A B 2

at FVTPL EREERTEED (723)
Change in fair value of financial BRATEFABGEZ

liabilities at FVTPL CREELATEED 1385

Share of results of associates AEE R EE (4,090)

Auditor’s remuneration ZEE S (3,100)

Amortisation of intangible asset BV EE#H (3,586)

Unallocated finance costs APEHBER (31439)

Other unallocated expenses HiRH AL (38,244)

Loss before taxation for the year  F BT AT 18 (162,246)

Annual Report ¥ 2024/25 187



nternational Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nFE N NA=1THIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2024

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interests in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory notes
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities
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6. DERIRE (©)

(a)

Hotel
Operation
LB

HK$'000
FHT

221,761

73,797

XKD E(E)
R-ZZBZWEARA=1+H
Gaming Live
Operation Events  Consolidated
B EE BRI5EE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FET
1,736,925 17,097 1,975,783
298,154
4481
36,187
9,693
2,324,298
721,653 2,520 797,970
441,291
56,149
12,099
1,307,509



nternational Entertainment Corporation (S ey SN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2024

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Amortisation of intangible
asset

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

(Reversal of)/provision for
expected credit

losses — trade receivables
Provision for expected credit
losses — other receivables

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of

financial liabilities at FVTPL

Share of results of associates
Interest income

Finance costs

Income tax credit

nE - BER
REME
EREEENE

BREESH

NEMF  BE
By
BHEREER
(Bm),/ B
— AR
BHEEERRR
— At R
REMEZ
AV EZD
BRVEFARRZ
EREEATER
BRFEFARRZ
EREBAYERD
AL WNGIE S
MEKA
PHER
PISHER

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

6. TEREREG(
(@) ¥EBoE(E)
Bt EH
BE-Z_NEXA=THLEE

)

Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events  Unallocated  Consolidated
BELE BRLEE  R5ED ADE e
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET TET FET
22,837 17,042 - 20 39,899
2,986 352 - - 3,338
- — - 3,586 3,586
18,904 36,745 - 123 55,772
(2,026) (268) - = (2,294)
163 308 - 58 529
_ 14,145 - = 14,145
- = = 723 723
- - - (1,385) (1,385)
_ g ” 4090 4,090
(35 (1,803) = (13,708) (15,546)
2316 36,878 = 31,439 70,633
(1422) (28,860) = = (30,282)
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(b) Disaggregation of revenue (b) WAZDH
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary TREIIREFEMETS  TE2EmMm
geographical market, major products and service lines and KR8 B A RIRAEREE D F 2
timing of revenue recognition. The table also includes a WA o TRIFET D FRALEREE
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group's A 2WHEE 2 EER o

reportable segments.

Year ended 30 June 2025 BE-_Z-_HAFEA=1+HLEE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
BEEE WEEE B EH me
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET TERT

Primary geographical market *EHE %
The Philippines JERE 56,211 509,948 = 566,159

Timing of revenue recognition K A B2 R [E
Transferred at a point in time RE— I T8 82 7

Casino operations BigeE - 440,528 - 440,528

Food and beverages B 16,064 - - 16,064

Other hotel service income H )85 BRSO 2,939 - - 2,939
19,003 440,528 - 459,531

Transferred over time B B (R B2 7%

Room revenue =B A 37,208 - - 37,208

Other source of income BMRAKR

Leasing of gaming venues HEEX 5 - 69,420 - 69,420
56,211 509,948 - 566,159
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6.

nternational Entertainment Corporation BIBRIRZ4H R A Al

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2024

Primary geographical market *ZEHEH 1%

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025

HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

6. ﬁ"'B#EI:I
(b) q&)\ﬁ?ﬁ(ﬁ

BE-Z_MFEAA=THLFE

Uﬁ»

Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events  Consolidated
BE & B EE BRZEE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TAET TET TET

The Philippines FREE 59,832 169,954 - 229,786
Timing of revenue recognition W A 52 B &
Transferred at a point in time RE— R sE 1
Casino operations 0I5 28 - 48,964 - 48,964
Food and beverages B 16,153 - - 16,153
Other hotel service income H At JE RS UA 1481 - - 1481
17,634 48,964 - 66,598
Transferred over time & B (R 85
Room revenue B RMA 42,198 - - 42,198
Other source of income Bt A KR
Leasing of investment properties T &R BIREREZ
equipped with entertainment REEHEETT
equipment for gaming BREE
operation = 120,990 = 120,990
59,832 169,954 - 229,786

All room revenue, food and beverages and other hotel services
income are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

FrB BRI - & 8RR HE B E RS
WA R —FHIAT - $EB““5§5%E7I
BWELENEISH|RAERF - DEEER
BITEHNX S ER T IARE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(c) Geographicinformation () HWEEHFR
The following table provides a geographical analysis of the TREHAEERESRITE BT
Group's non-current assets other than financial instruments, MIBEERBBEANEE ([BEFER
deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets BEE]) UINERBIBEE 2R DHT ©

("Specified non-current assets”).

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-ZZB-HE RZT_NF
AA=t+H ANA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FHT
The Philippines JFRE 1,253,474 1,231,887
Others EHAh 15,499 7,010
1,268,973 1,238,897
(d) Information about major customers (d EBEXEREFZER
Included in the revenue generated from gaming 8% 218 7 302 & 2 YA #969,420,000
operation segment of approximately HK$69,420,000 (2024 BT (ZF Z U4 1 120,990,0007% JT)
HK$120,990,000) were contributed by the Group's largest HASRBERAREFPER  MAKEBZE
customer and the aggregate revenue from this customer Pz EAREEBUY AL 12% (=
represented approximately 12% (2024: 53%) of the total TP :53%) c MEEME —FP
revenue of the Group. There is no other single customer RSB BRI AT BB 10% 2 5B
contributing over 10% of the Group's total revenue.
2025 2024
—E_FHHF —EOF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Interest income FEHA 32,023 15,546
Sundry income (Note) MU (BaE) 12,227 2,349
44,250 17,895
Note: HiteE -
Sundry income mainly includes rental income of approximately HK$8,942,000 HEWAEZEFEAEEMIINBATREBHRLA
(2024: HK$747,000) from leasing of insignificant portion of the Group's spare hotel NBLBEBEEMIIEARAZTAMEESKRALY
units as office, currently classified as property, plant and equipment, to external 8,942,000 A 7T (Z T Z PO 4F : 74700078 7T) * B D
parties on a short-term basis. HEAWME  BERH
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International Entertainment Corporation B[R IR 2475 R /

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BHE-_FT-_AF~NA=1THIFE

OTHER LOSS, NET 8. HfthEig 9%
2025 2024
—E-RF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss &5 (Wat), 518558 (27,285) 15,506
Loss on written-off of property, plant and MEEYE - BERZREBE
equipment (note) (K1a) 109,869 -
Others HA 54 -
82,638 15,506
Note: Upon commencement of the renovation work of the Group's hotel Bt - REBOBE RESRENRBEFIE%
and casino during the year, obsolete structure were dismantled and its ERRBRER  HEEFREECRNEZRF
corresponding carrying amount were written-off in profit or loss. g o
FINANCE COSTS 9. M#%ZER
2025 2024
—E_REF ZEZF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Interest on promissory notes A HERFE 26,877 25,553
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEERE 60,942 36,018
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 20) HEBGER B (MiF20) 3,946 3,176
Interest on convertible bond (Note 32) ARG F RS (3t 32) 59 5,886
91,824 70,633
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Loss before taxation has been arrived
at after charging/(crediting):

Directors’ emoluments (Note 11)

Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments):

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs

Depreciation
— Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (included in cost of sales and

general and administrative expenses)
(Note 15)

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses) (Note 20)

Total depreciation

Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 17)
Change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL (Note 21)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities
at FVTPL (Note 32)
Change in fair value of investment properties
(Note 16)
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit service
Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Short-term lease payment
Provision for/(reversal of) expected credit
losses of
— Trade receivables
— Other receivables
Gaming tax and licensing fee
(included in cost of sales)
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— FREEENE
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mREEEE (HiE17)
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ZEE BN &

— BRI

— EEZIRTE
ERARI ZFERA
EHHS MR
Ty &EBEZEHEEES
B, ()

— FEUBRIR

— Bl RIE
BEHKERE
GTASHERA)

2025
—E-HE
HK$’000
THET

5,488

149,739
2,798

158,025

90,965

6,299

97,264
3,744
533
(3,208)
23,315
3,400
455

8,845
1,960

4,757
1,789

180,731

2024
ZEEF
HK$'000
FET

5223

81,322
929

87474

39,899

3,338

43,237

3,586

723

3,510

524
5,544
1,723

(2,294)
529

17,792



Directors' fees
— Executive directors

— Independent non-executive Directors
Basic remuneration, allowances and

benefits in kind

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

B8

—HITES

R

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2024: five)

directors were as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2025

Executive directors
Mr.HO Wong Meng
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. LAU Ka Ho

Mr. CHENG Hong Wai

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (note)

BTEE
HO Wong Meng % 4
Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE 4 &

BUFGTES
EES s

BEEEL
REZRLE (HiL)

Ms. Danica Ramos LUMAWIG (note) Danica Ramos LUMAWIG & £

(Hit)

Fees

he
HK$'000
TER

1,848
360

240
240
107

134

2,929

Note:  On 11 December 2024, Ms. Danica Ramos Lumawig has been appointed

as an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Leung Wai Tai has

resigned as an independent non-executive Director.

— BIFNTEE
AT -
L
BRI B

For the year ended 30 June 2025

HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

2025 2024
—E-EHF —EomF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
2,208 2,208

721 720

2,540 2,279

19 16

5,488 5223

ENHENAEZ(CT_MF  AR)EF

==

£

Basic
remuneration,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
EREH -
EHR
ENFR
HK$’000
TER

1,064
1,476

2,540

et

ZMzaT

ZECRFAAZTHLEFE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
contributions

BIREA
A
HK$'000

TR

19

Discretionary

bonus Total

BEtd
HK$'000
TER

EH
HK$'000
TiER

= 2,921
- 1,846

= 240
= 240
- 107

- 134

- 5,488

RZ=ZF=ZWF+=H+—HB ' Danica Ramos
lumawig X T EBZ X BB L FERITES -
MAERLEEHTBILIENTES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE-_F-_AFNA=1+HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

11. EEMERFTLEESTHTALT @)

Year ended 30 June 2024 BE-Z-_MEAA=THLEE
Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme  Discretionary
Fees inkind  contributions bonus Total
R RNER
e EY Iz A WL w@ar
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEx TEL THET TER TET
Executive directors TES
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng 5& 4 1848 1079 8 - 2,935
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE %¢ & 360 1,200 8 - 1,568
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTES
directors
Mr.LAU Ka Ho AXFEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. CHENG Hong Wiai é RELE 240 - - - 240
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai REREE 240 - - - 240
2928 2,279 16 - 5223
Five highest paid individuals FEBREFAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, rEBREEaFATE MAH(ZTZ
two (2024: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments FWMB)ALTBERRAES - ﬁ@ﬂiﬂa‘l’
was included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the AEXF MRS - Ep =R (ZF =
remaining three (2024: three) individuals, of which one (2024: one) FZH)AT(BER—R(ZZEZWF -
individual was senior management of the Group, were as follows: E)ATEASRESAEEAB)BHEHT
2025 2024
—EB-HF ZEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHT
Basic salaries and allowances HEARH & NIERL 4,935 4,668
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRAEFIFT B K 54 54
4,989 4,722
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 11. EEMERAREETHFALTE)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) TEBREHFALE)
The emoluments were within the following bands: e sELmT -
2025 2024
—E_RHF —EOF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
HK$ 1,000,000 or below 1,000,000 7Tk LA T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T 2 1,500,000 7% 7T 2 2
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T 2 2,000,000 7% 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,000 78 7T 1 1
3 3

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Board of Directors and
Senior management” section of this annual report, were within the
following band:

FEESRERRE (REZBEFBRARA
FRIZEFEGLSMREELE] &) 2HMm
EEEHNAT :

2025 2024

—E_RE —E-OE

Number of Number of

individual individual

AE AEL

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 7T 2 2,500,000 7 7T 1 ]

The discretionary or performance related incentive payments are
determined by reference to the individual performance of the
employees of the Group.

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as inducement
to join or upon joining of the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No director waived any emoluments during the years ended
30 June 2025 and 2024.

B BRI AHARES HE2ELREEE
AEEZRBAETE °

FR AEEVERNEETXRAERIFA
ITHEMALIXTME  ERMBEAEE
IR MBER B AHBBEE-BE_F
“HER-E_MFERNAZTHLFE
BEEERERREMHE
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

The amount of income tax recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents:

Current tax BN EA 5 18
— REFEE

— Current year

Deferred tax credit (Note 27)

Income tax (expense)/credit

Hong Kong profits tax for the qualifying group entity is calculated
at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HKS2 million for
the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024. Hong Kong profits tax for
other group entities is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated profits.
No provision for current income tax in Hong Kong was made in the
consolidated financial statements for both years as the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong had no assessable profits.

Except for group entities engage in gaming business, the businesses
of the Company’s subsidiaries in the Philippines are subject to
the corporate income tax rate of 25% for the year ended 30 June
2025 (2024: 25%). The withholding tax rate in respect of a dividend
distributed by a subsidiary of the Company operating in the
Philippines to its overseas immediate holding company is 15% for
the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024. The group entities engage
in gaming business in the Philippines are exempt from Philippine
corporate income tax, among other taxes, pursuant to the Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation charter (‘PAGCOR charter”)
as a result of payments the 5% gaming tax based on gross gaming
revenue in the Philippines, in lieu of all other taxes.

The Company’s subsidiary in Macau is subject to Macau profits tax
rate of 12% for the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024. No provision
for taxation in Macau was made in the consolidated financial
statements for both years as the Group’s operations in Macau had no
assessable profits.

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

EETRIBER R (Fat27)

st (R, %

KA B ERER ST ERE

2025 2024
—EB-FRE —E - pUF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(17,818) -
8,638 30,282
(9,180) 30,282

 ECECRFER T _MNFENA=TH
EFE AEREBERBEEFNEBRD
LA 8 2,000,000 7 7T {d &1 & 3R B & F) $2 B &
8.25% K% B 48 2,000,000 78 7T 2 {H 5t FERR T &
A E165%5TH - EMEBEBERENED
FEBDIREET B A 165%FHE - B
REINEBZHBARLEERRAT
MW BN EFENGEE P ERR AR
BB EREE -

RIEEFREGHEBEEN BE_Z
THEXNA=ZTBHLEFE  KAARZIERE
EMB AR BRI E25% (Z T ZPUF :
25%) BN EFTER - RRRIRIFEREL
EEBIHBRARARBE-E-_AFE=
ECNFEARA=ZTHIEFEREGINEE
ZRARIR 2 R E D R 2 BN E R
15% ° 4R #& Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation =2 ([PAGCORER |) © 32
EREEREBNEEERERRHMNIE
BECEMSHR (AP BFEEMBIE) - 7
BREEAMFEEENER AW AR S%E
o NREFBEHMAIE -

BE_Z-_hER_-_Z-_MEAA=1+H
WEEE  ARR BB AR AERKX
12% B ARFIFIB T - AR ANSEERNRI 2
¥RV BERTEF - L EXREFE
RARE B SRR AT IR PI R TR B4 -



The Group operates in certain jurisdictions where the Pillar Two Rules
are effective or enacted but not effective. However, as the Group’s
consolidated annual revenue is expected to be less than EUR750
million, the management of the Group considered the Group is not
liable to top-up tax under the Pillar Two Rules.

Loss before taxation

BRELAT B 1R

Taxation at the principal tax rates applicable
to profits in the country concerned

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 7B R Fi A 2 Tl 15 5

EEEBRREARERN
FEPEHE Zmﬁ
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries S EENGIRNER v =2

AR 2 2 BT 5

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

K’Elﬁiﬁ‘%ﬁﬁlJiﬁﬁiEﬁEﬁﬂaﬁﬂi
EMHETRDEEREE - R ARA
%E@%\?\é\igﬂﬁlkfjﬁﬁﬁ?iﬁoﬁéﬁk
T BMAEBEERERRS AEEHAR
BXEZRAS R

Tax effect of net income derived from leasing [ PAGCOR Tﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%i

of properties to PAGCOR not taxable for tax
purpose s &
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible

temporary differences not recognised ERIMGHE
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year FRMGEHAS(EHR)

At 30 June 2025, there are taxes dispute cases for income tax and
other taxes between MSPI, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and BIR in the Philippines for the calendar years of
2008, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2018 and 2019 in aggregate of around Peso
5,009,650,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$695,003,000 (2024:
HK$670,691,000)).

For the alleged deficiency in income tax and other taxes covering
the calendar year of 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015 and 2018, it is pending
for final decisions from BIR or Court of Tax Appeal ("CTA”).

BARTBAFRE 2

*%wu%ﬁIﬁ}gﬁTg &T?Dlm@?ﬂ_f

2025 2024
—S-RHE —ENF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
(272,965) (162,246)
(68,241) (40,560)
7,307 21,692
20,846 11,884
(1,181) (50,726)

= (42,489)

50,449 69,917
9,180 (30,282)

RZE-_RFANA=Z+H ARAEER
=N TMSP@EBlRZF‘ﬁT&EF%*%%
NEFZF—=F . —OFE —F—F
F - ”—)\E&_i ﬂifimmﬁ
455,009,650,000 4 Z (8 & 7 49 695,003,000 7
7T (ZZ Z P04 : 670,691,00078 7T)) K Fr 5
BREMREABRBUDRM -

EAPR_ZENF _T—ZF =%
—NF —E—RAFR_ZE-N\FEFH
EHMEHR R EMBIEZES  HAFBIRK
Court of Tax Appeal ([ CTA ) A& F R ©

Annual Report 5% 2024/25



For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

For the alleged deficiency in income tax and other taxes covering
the calendar year of 2019, MSPI filed administrative protests with
BIR and request for reinvestigation during 2023. The BIR rejected
MSPI's request and MSPI received BIR's final decision on disputed
assessment for the calendar year of 2019 in May 2024. MSPI
filed petition for review with CTA for BIR's assessments for the
calendar year of 2019 on June 2024 and pre-trial conference was
held on March 2025. The case is still under hearing up to date of
authorisation of these consolidation financial statements.

The directors of the Company considered it is not probable BIR
will accept the uncertain income tax treatments related to above
income tax disputes of around Peso 3,485,650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$483,627,000 (2024: HK$466,658,000)) before final
decisions from BIR or CTA. Based on the advices of the independent
tax and legal advisors of MSPI, the directors of the Company
believe that the most likely outcome is MSPI would have valid legal
arguments to defend the above income and other tax disputes with
no deficiency taxes liable, no provision for income tax has been
made for the income tax disputes in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024.

In additions, the tax disputes for other taxes represent possible
obligations (existence of which can only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of MSPI) which may or may not
require an initial outflow of resources, the directors of the Company
estimate that as at 30 June 2025, the contingent liabilities in respect
of the alleged deficiency in other taxes of MSPI covering the calendar
years of 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2018 and 2019, represents the stated
amounts in the disputed assessments received by MSPI in aggregate
of around Peso 1,524,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$211,376,000 (2024: HK$204,033,000)) and possible additional
penalties, surcharge or interest liability that may be assessed by BIR
for the taxable years which existence can only be confirmed based
on developments of the other taxes disputes cases, as a possible
outflow of resources.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2025 (2024: nil).

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

BRSPR-_ZE-—NFEFNSBAERK
ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ MSPIFA =% — = 4 [6] BIR1Z
HATEI I R EFHFE © BIRIE A MSPI
FESK - MMSPIR — = — M4 7 A UEIBIR
%:%*ﬂiﬁiﬁ%% FEE R R AR

CMSPIRZZZHFNAMBRE T
fﬂiﬁim%ﬁmcmﬁigﬁ%%*ﬁ
RZEZRAF=ARTEEEZ -HER
AU REREEA ERERGNESRES -

ARNAIEERE  EBRFCTAEHZK
FORAT - BIREE A b al 7275 AU 45 48 B T 1
TE BT 18 %1 49 3,485,650,000 3% & (8 & R 4
483,627,000 7T (= F Z MY 4F : 466,658,000
BIL)) BIEM A EE MK o iR EMSPIE L
REMZZEENER  ARBESHEE
RAREME R AMPIEEHEERCEERER
LM EREEMBE U minE - BHA
AEFAPREEL WALEBTENEE
—CE AR ZE_NFERA=ZTHILF
EZReUBRERBEMSHRAHNIED
FriS i B o

o R IE 2 B AL 4 A éé?%%%ﬂ%ﬂg
EX(HEGFEEEHRITELRTE
me%ﬁz—Ei5E$XT%ﬁ$ﬁ
ZIERTHERR)  MEBETAETE
SBENHSBEEERRE  MAARES
BYER AR :%:ﬁiﬁﬂ:+5'
R ZBENF  ZE—F *E
Fo-T-hE- ”*AE& -
FEFZE mﬁmmE§£Zi%@L
EMSPIRBIMEFENTIHema =Y
1,524,000,000 # R (F8E 7 #9211,376,000 7 7T
T PO £ 204,033,000 7T)) © BA K BIR
AR ER B T EFL T RN BN
BB EE ZSLEREOHEENR
BEMBBUNRENERIBR T UAER
ERAREEERNIZER -

EXeTEIENBE_Z_HFAA=T
BUEFERNRBRE(ZF M4 : &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. SREE
The basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of the KARHEBAEGEERERNREFEEED
Company are calculated as follows: BETIEEFTE
2025 2024
—E-FRHE —E-mF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FHET
Loss for the year FNEBE (282,145) (131,964)
2025 2024
—E_HEF —EOF
‘000 ‘000
T F &
Number of shares B A
Weighted average number of ordinary RALGTESREAREE
shares for the purposes of basic and B8 2 TR
diluted loss per share hnkEFE 98 1,369,157 1,369,157
2025 2024
—E-RF —EMEF
HKS Cents HKS Cents
AL AL
Loss per share BREE
Basic BN (20.61) (9.64)
Diluted g (20.61) (9.64)

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
30 June 2025 and 2024 does not assume the conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible bond since their assumed
exercise would have anti-dilutive effect.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June
2024 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options as the exercise price of those options was higher than
the average market price for shares for the year.

On 8 August 2023, with the consent of the grantees of the
Company's share options, the board of directors resolved to cancel
all the then outstanding share options.

HEBE-T-RFR-FMEAA
=+ B UL 4R 2 6 B 1 3 R
SRR A M RATE 2 TRIR A - RE A
HRRAT A2 1 M S -

FTERE T _NFASNA=ZTHILEFEZ
BB EE BT ERRITERRRERTT
FrERE RRAZEBBREZITEE
SRFRRMDZFHTE -

RZZE-_=FNANB BERQGBERE
ARABRE BEFSHRTHMEERH
RITEE B RHE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nFE N NA=1THIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 3. BB MKakfi

Furniture,
Leasehold  Construction fixturesand Entertainment Computer Motor
Buildings improvements in progress Machinery equipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
& £E
B HEEE EEIR - PET RERHE ERRE RE EoHY
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET THT FET T THT FEL FEL TAL TEL
Cost: A
At1July 2023 R-E-=F
+tA-H 435,695 8905 - 94,605 91,151 160404 116 1710 792,586
Additions NE - 16,505 - 6,388 1546 31,253 80 - 55,772
Transfer from ERAMEER
investment (Kt i6)
properties (note 16) 953,772 - - - - - - - 953,772
Witten-off HisH - (1,399) - - - (951) - - (2350
Exchange adjustments [ 5 % (57,123) (966) - (5,440) (5,079) (9899) - (100) (78607)
At30 June 2024 RZEZMmE
~A=TH 1,332,344 23,045 - 95,553 87,618 180,807 196 1,610 1,721,173
Additions AE 30,197 1,160 121,015 23,684 7,677 93,008 - 13 276,754
Transfer toinvestment R B EE A
properties (Note 16)  (Hi£16) (354,000) - - - - - - - (354,000)
Witten-off ks (114,348) - - - - - - - (114,348)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 3% 48,165 257 557 3,464 3,173 6,554 - 58 62,228
At30 June 2025 RZZ-1F
~A=TH 942,358 24,462 121,572 122,701 98,468 280,369 196 1,681 1,591,807
Accumulated 2EHER
depreciation and REBE
impairment loss:
At 1 July 2023 R-E-=F
+tA-B 321,044 7475 - 88,395 90,650 141,841 106 1666 651,177
Chargefortheyear  FRHK 23,260 25 - 2627 1,564 12384 17 2 39,899
Witten-off HisH - (1,399) - - - (951) - - (2350
Exchange adjustments [ 5 % (18476) (378) = (4963) (5,054) (8167) - 97) (37135)
At30 June 2024 R-Z-mF
~A=TH 325,828 5,723 - 86,059 87,160 145,107 123 1,591 651,591
Chargefortheyear  FRHEK 64,486 36 - 6,638 1,117 18,621 28 39 90,965
Transfer toinvestment A E B
properties (Note 16)  (A3£16) (19,178) - - - - - - - (19,178)
Wiitten-off s (4,479) - - - = - - - (4,479)
Exchange adjustments [ % 3% 57,037 778 - 3,288 3,185 15,484 - 9 79,781
At30 June 2025 RZZ-1F
~A=1AH 423,694 6,537 - 95,985 91,462 179,212 151 1,639 798,680
Cartying amount: HHfE:
At30 June 2025 RZZ-1F
~A=TH 518,664 17,925 121,572 26,716 7,006 101,157 45 42 793,127
At30 June 2024 RZTZME
~A=1A 1006516 17322 - 9494 458 35,700 73 19 1,069,582
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Impairment tests for Hotel operation CGU

The group of non-current non-financial assets included in Hotel
operation segment ("“Hotel operation CGU") is tested for
impairment as the hotel operation segment recorded a segment
loss during the year. For the purpose of impairment testing, carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment of HK$129,677,000 (2024:
HK$121,909,000), right-of-use assets (included allocated corporate
asset) of HK$10,141,000 (2024: HK$16,582,000) of the Group were
allocated to the Hotel operation CGU. The recoverable amount of the
Hotel operation CGU has been determined by fair value less costs
of disposal ("FVLCOD") with reference to the valuation prepared by
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"),
an independent professional valuer not connected to the Group.
The fair value of the Hotel operation CGU were measured using
income capitalisation approach with use of significant unobservable
inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year. Key
assumptions used in calculating the recoverable amount are as
follows:

Long term growth rate of revenue g A K Hj 1% K =
Discount rate EX

B =X

Capitalisation rate

Based on management’s assessment in impairment test of Hotel
operation CGU, no impairment loss is recognised or reversed in profit
orloss in 2025 and 2024.

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

BEEERSEAENZREDNR
AABEEESNH([BEEERSELES
f]) MIERENFE S B E E A R ETRE R
o THEMAEEED BRFRES D I
EE-RENANE  ANEBWE- F
BN &R EREE129677,0008 7T (ZF =
121,909,000 7T) - @FHT%E,%E_(E%E
DECEEE)R@E0141,008T (ZF
TP 1 16,582,000870) DB BB IEEIER
CTEABM - BEEERSELEBMATIR
El&ERIBEASBEVEBE , BLEE
HEMTERTEETHEREAAERAF
(HEBTREZHERAFERLEE
RA(AFEBREERER]) BT - HEE
BEREEABUNAFEDNERBRAER
{EEETE WERERTAERZH A
HE HEIERATEEBRE=-f -F
WNE =R EEREALEL - 5T E AT UK
B¢ EATFERMBERERDT

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
REZB-HFE RZT-@mOF
NA=1H ~A=1+H
3.5% 3.5%

11.0% 12.0%

7.5% 8.5%

REEEEHAEEERCELEM 2R
BRAANGE R-E_AFk-_FT_N
FA BN IE o R B R EEIR
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Impairment test for Gaming operation CGUs

The group of non-current non-financial assets in various CGUs
included in Gaming operation segment (“Gaming operation
CGUs") is tested for impairment as the gaming operation segment
recorded a segment loss during the year. For the purpose of
impairment testing, carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment of HK$663,379,000, intangible asset of HK$2,087,000,
right-of-use assets (included allocated corporate asset) of
HK$22,660,000, prepayment for acquisition of plant and equipment
of HKS$58,111,000 of the Group were allocated to the Gaming
operation CGUs. The recoverable amount of the Gaming operation
CGUs has been determined by value in use ("VIU") with reference
to the valuation prepared by JLL. That calculation uses expected
cash flow projections based on financial budget approved by the
management covering a five years period, with average annual
revenue growth rate of 15.7%, and cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%. The
growth rate is based on the forecasts of the industry and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the gaming industry.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation included pre-
tax discount rate of 19.3%, budgeted expenses and the expected
cash inflows and outflows patterns, estimated based on the
management's expectation of the market development. Based on
the result of the assessment, VIU exceeded the carrying amount of
the Gaming operation CGUs and no impairment loss is recognised.

In 2024, since takeover of casino operation in the Group’s premises
from PAGCOR completed in May 2024, management review
external and internal source of information for the group of non-
financial assets (including the owner occupied property transferred
from investment properties) included in Gaming operation CGUSs,
considered no indicator of impairment loss, no impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2024.
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BEEERSEAENZREDNR
FABEEAEN((BEEERSELE
11”%@%&?% 14435’]3|5//|u§b§|5i%ﬂ
BEANETRENR  DTHREREE
”%ﬁ$¢ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%oﬁmﬁwﬂ
CAEENYE BELEREEREE
6@&%%%% 17 & B BR T {E 2,087,000
B FRAREE(BRESEGEEE)
B T {8 22,660,000 78 7T R W EE BB K& 1E 2
T8 {<t 2R TE BR [ (B 58,111,000 78 7T Bt 1%
CERCELEN HEUERREELES
AR ESBEN2EMEBTRE 2
BFEAEE(FAEED BT - ZiTH
FAEREREEEANREAFHNGH
EEMBERESREEN  FHFEKRS
BEERAI1S7% MBERAFTFHNESRE
FR3MBTEEREHEE - IBREDHER
ITETER - W BB ERK E T K
o (FAEEFENEMERZBRREE
iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁf 193% - THERY MFEHE SR
FrdEX(RIEEEEHMISEERNTE
Hﬂfaf+) RBFHER  FHEBEBRBE
HEBRSEABEMIREE W ERE
RREEIE o
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

Total
wmst
HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE D¥FE

At 1 July 2023 RZEZ=F+tH—H 989,000
Fair value loss N EEE (14,145)
Exchange adjustment P& 3 B (21,083)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 15) EEEYE - RE RS (FE15) (953,772)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZZBZMFRA=+H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 15)  BEZ=¥ % « B Mk & (Mt 15) 334,822

Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied properties ¥FEAmEEES
upon transfer to investment properties KEMENEHW 19,178
Fair value loss NEEEE (23,315)
Exchange adjustment bE 3 B 5,315
At 30 June 2025 R-ZB-HFEANA=+H 336,000

The above investment properties are located in the Philippines. The
Group's property interest held to earn rentals is measured using the
fair value model and is accounted for as investment property. On
9 May 2024, the entire investment properties represent the casino
and office floors previously leased to PAGCOR were transferred to
“property, plant and equipment” upon the commencement of the
gaming operation by the Group with fair value of HK$953,772,000
at the date of change in use as its deemed cost. During the year, the
Group has leased certain area inside its hotel and casino complex to
an independent tenant for authorised gaming operation, carrying
amount of HK$334,822,000 were transferred from “property, plant
and equipment” when there was evidence of change in use.
Difference between fair value at date of transfer of HK$354,000,000
and the carrying amount transferred from “property, plant and
equipment” of HK$334,822,000, amounting to HK$19,178,000 before
related income tax, is recognised in revaluation reserve through
other comprehensive income.

The fair values at date of transfer and year end date have been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out by JLL, independent
professional valuer not connected with the Group. JLL is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

LTS EMEMRNIERE - AEEFER
RS MERTIEAFEERGTE I
VH%&%%%EIJEE cHRZE-_WMFERAN
2B E W) % (BD % gl 8 & F PAGCOR
Eﬁﬁ%i@&ﬂ#“* B)MNAEBRRE iﬁ
FEBREREYE WERZE] -
E\AﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁE%ﬁﬂ@"ﬂ?@ﬁ%z,ﬁzooo,ﬁ
T EBBRIERET RAFE  AEED
BEBERESRAERANE TEEE
ET 2B IUMHPULEERERLEE
ﬁEﬁ1§33482ZOOO/§EEJﬁAE N
BERRHE(ME - BEREHEE R
52 7 B Hi #Y 2 7 {E 354,000,000 TTEE 5 [4))
¥ BE MR ] B8 8 Y BR [ (8 334,822,000
7T 2 B R 2= 5819,178,00078 7T (F1 B 18 8
Fri5 %ﬁﬁu)ﬁﬂﬁ{miﬁu&mﬂéfafﬁﬁﬁﬁ

=7
s ©

ERARFAENATFEDREERASE
jr,ﬁiEﬁ@Z?%J_%%%TEEWEFEH%??%E??
ZIEEEE - MEBITREEREMMES

&
E/E\O
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

The fair values were determined based on the income approach,
where capitalising the estimated net income derived from the
investment properties with reference to the lease agreements
and taking into account the future growth potential base on latest
market condition. The discount rate was determined by reference
to weighted average cost of capital of the listed companies with
similar business portfolio. Key assumptions used in calculating the
fair values are as follows:

Monthly rent per square metre B¥AEKAME
Long term growth rate of revenue WA R AIE R &
Discount rate TEx
Capitalisation rate B =

The fair values of the investment properties were measured using
valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs and hence
were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no
transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

In addition, significant judgement is required when evaluating the
inputs used in the fair value measurement. Reasonably possible
changes at the reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions
would have resulted decrease in fair value of the investment
properties (vice versa) as presented below:

NEEUBRAZETE  ER2EHE RS
Wt R&FMR THRRKERE D Bk
EMEEENGHAFRABEER - PEX
SEABHEBERBEEZ ET AR ZMNE
FHEAKABT - TEAFEMAEE
EE ¢ UNNE

At 30 June

2025
R-ZE-HF
~NA=+H
Peso 14,000 1 &
3.5%

12%

7.5%

BEMEZ N T EREASATIBERS
ABE Y HERNSE RO EADTE
BRE=H - FNE=HIEAME A
B o

ATEHE DU LR LT BE R B ER
B(REEERRRER) AEE .

o - FHE A FEFEMAEABERF
EEHERHE - RRE B H - EIHEE
RENEERELHEFIRENERAF
BRD (RZIR) - 25080

At 30 June

2025

R-ZE_RF

AA=+H

HK$’000

FET

Discount rate increased by 1% Pr & AL NN 1% (4,000)
Rental growth rate decreased by 1% HEEEERRD 1% (2,000)
Capitalisation rate increased by 1% B ARA{b L EIE A 1% (5,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSET

17. ER.EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025

BE—FT-_nF N NA=1THIFE

Computer
software
BB
HKS$'000
FAT
Cost: B NE
At 1 July 2023 RZE-_=ZFtH—H -
Additions NE 10,495
As at 30 June 2024 RZZEZWFAA=+H 10,495
Additions NE 2,237
As at 30 June 2025 R-ZZE-HFEXA=1+H 12,732
Accumulated amortisation: Rty
At 1 July 2023 RZEZ=FtH—H =
Charge for the year F AR (3,586)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 S (12)
At 30 June 2024 RZEZWFNA=1+H (3,598)
Charge for the year FRR (3,744)
Exchange adjustments b H P B (4)
At 30 June 2025 R-ZEBE-HFEXA=1+AH (7,346)
Carrying amount: ARMEE :
At 30 June 2025 R=-EBE-RFEAXA=1+AH 5,386
At 30 June 2024 RZZFEZWFEA=1+H 6,897

As at 30 June 2025, the management of the Group has conducted
impairment testing on certain right-of-use assets included in the
Hotel and Gaming operation CGUs, with details as set out in Note 15.

a5 -

RZZE-_RAFANA=1+H KAEEEREE
EHFAABERBYEERSELEMA
ETERAREEET

BERH  FEHER
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

As at 30 June 2025 and 2024, the Group's loan receivables represent

three loans to associates as below:

A loan advance with principal amount of Peso 338,000,000
(equivalent to HK$46,892,000 (2024: HK$45,285,000)) was
granted in prior years to Harbor View Properties and Holdings,
Inc. ("HVPHI"), which is an associate of the Company. The loan
is interest bearing at 3.5% per annum and the whole principal
amount is repayable on 3 August 2032.

The loan was secured by a parcel of land owned by HVPHI.
Management considered that the estimated fair value of
the collateral was not less than the carrying amount of the
respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2025 and 2024, no
material expected credit loss is recognised.

The Group also granted another loan with principal
amount of Peso 92,000,000 (equivalent to HK$12,798,000
(2024: HKS$12,317,000)) in prior years to HVPHI. The loan is
interest bearing at 3.5% per annum, repayable on demand
and unsecured. The Group does not intend to request
for repayment within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

A loan facility of Peso 500,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$69,366,000) has granted to Pacific Bayview Properties, Inc.
(“PBBI") during the year, which is the wholly owned subsidiary
of Blue Marine Properties, Inc., an associate of the Company.
The loan is interest bearing at 6% per annum and repayable
from 3 years from date of drawdown. Peso 290,500,000
(equivalent to HK$40,302,000) was drawn down during the
year.

The loan was secured by condominium properties owned by
PBPI. Management considered that the estimated fair value of
these collaterals was not less than the carrying amount of the
loan receivable as at 30 June 2025, no material expected credit
loss is recognised.

Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, repayable on
demand and non-interest bearing.
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—ECRAFR_E-_NFNA=Z1+H"

REE 2 EWEFRE T MRE & QAR MH
Z=ZBER:

(@)

(b)

RATRBEFERARE ZEERT]
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.
([ HVPHI J) ¥ i 7N € %8 /4 338,000,000
WR (FHE 7 46,892,000 7T (=T =M
14528500078 70)) L BERREK © 3%
ERREREIS%TE  B2EAE
BMAEANR_ZTZ_F)/\A=ZHEE-

ZEFAHPHIES 2 THEHE R -
BERERA ZBEWRZAEFTATE
PTOPRZZFEZRAFR T ZMHFRHA
—tHEEEKERZEEE - AY
EBHEREREHEESE-

AN E IR B A FE A HVPHI R B
B — % K% %8 592,000,000 # = (4
B 712,798,0008 7T (ZF — U 4F
12,317,000/ 70)) M E 3 - &% B K I%
FREISNer B - BIEEREERE
B - AEBEEERRESPEATER
F+EARERER -

R F[E + XA & [ Pacific Bayview
Properties, Inc. ([ PBPI ) & 1 E KB4 &
500,000,000 # &= (18 & 7 69,366,000 7
JC) * 3% A 7] A Blue Marine Properties,
Inc.Z2 2 &K B QR RARQR 2 &
DA ZERIEFF Eewst B - I
AR BEBEFAIFRNEE - &K
& [Z B 2 BX 290,500,000 # R (5 & 7
40,302,000 7T) °

X EFRAPBPIEA 2 ABYEIEEMA o
EEERR 2EERRmGERAF
BN PRBEE_T_AFA=TH
EWERZ REE B \EREKR
BHEEESE -

R ENEE R R FIRREER  RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

DIEEEFE

19.

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

MREHE RTB 2R
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-ZE-ZHEF RZTE-_NF
~NA=TH ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
43,303 36,187

Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:

Name of associates

BELT AW

Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.

Blue Marine Properties, Inc.
Blue Marine Properties, Inc.

Principal activities

FEER

Property developer

MERRRE

Investment holdings

REEK

AEBZBERRZFHBFOT

Place of

incorporation Percentage

and operations held by the Group

F it BE SL B rEE

R B B
%

the Philippines 40

FERE

the Philippines 40

FERE
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(a)

Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. (a)
Current assets mEVEE

Non-current assets IERBEE

Current liabilities MEEE

Non-current liabilities E I N=R

Net assets BEFE

Net assets attributable to owners EEBEEAERGNEEFE

of the equity

Group’s share of the net assets
of the associate

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Dividends received from the associate

Annual Report 5 2 2024/25

rEESEBEATNEEFE

WA

FEra i, (ER)

2K (EIR)

SR AN ¥

At 30 June
2025

R-ZZ-HF

AA=tH
HK$’000
FTEx

59,988
175,910
(97,491)
(59,575)

78,832

78,832

31,533

Year ended
30 June
2025

Bz
—E-RHEF
ANA=T1H
HEE
HK$’000
FET

5,774

17,773

17,773

Harbor View Properties and
Holdings, Inc.

At 30 June
2024

RZE-WF

NA=1H
HK$'000
TAET

56,636
170,086
(110,543)

(57,612)

58,567

58,567

23,426

Year ended
30 June
2024

HE
—EmMEF
~NAZ=1+H
IEFE
HK$'000
FHET

1,202

(5,358)

(5,358)



For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

(b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc. (b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc.
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-B-HEF RKR-T-NMF
ANA=1H ~NAZ=Z+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAET
Current assets mEEE 17,750 12,937
Non-current assets IEREEE 106,829 83,152
Current liabilities MEEE (34,542) (44,317)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (60,611) (19,869)
Net assets EEFE 29,426 31,903
Net assets attributable to owners of EEBEEAEGREEFHE
the equity 29,426 31,903
Group'’s share of the net assets of AEBESHEHEATNEEFE
the associate 11,770 12,761
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2025 2024
BZE HZE
—E_-RE —EZOF
ANA=1+H ~NA=+H
IEFE FE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FATT
Revenue WA 5,222 4,605
Loss for the year FNEBE (3,559) (4,866)
Total comprehensive loss FHEBEAE (3,559) (4,866)
Dividends received from the associate S NET) 3 - =
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

The summarised movements of interest in associates during the year

are as below:

At beginning of the year
Share of results of associates
Exchange adjustments

At end of the year

REH)
N = NCIE 3
DEE 3¢ 8 B

RER

2T

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2025 2024
BZE HE
—E-RE —EOF
~NA=1+H ~NA=+H
LFE EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
36,187 42,479
5,686 (4,090)
1,430 (2,202)
43,303 36,187

During the year, the Group leases various offices, land and staff
quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 2 to 36 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net carrying amount of leased properties
recognised as right-of-use assets is as follows:

At 1July 2023 R=-Z2=-=5+A—H

Depreciation for the year FAHE
Exchange adjustments b 5 S

At 30 June 2024 R-FE-_NEARA=TH
Additions NE

Depreciation for the year FAIE

Exchange adjustments b H S8

At 30 June 2025 R-ZE-HZFEASA=1+H

As at 30 June 2025, the management of the Group has conducted
impairment testing on certain right-of-use assets included in the
Hotel and Gaming operation CGUs, with details as set out in Note 15.
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FACAEEHEZEMRAE L RE
ITEEHEEZH -BOREEFH2E36
FRIY - HAOGRKRRENELET 223
— R R R AR - B I R A A
THRENRRRN  AKERBANZ
ERIEBEAOAANITHAE -

EREEE
BRARERAEEECHEMREEFED
FranT
Land Properties Total
T it L/ES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET
11,293 15,549 26,842
(352) (2,986) (3,338)
612) (753) (1,365)
10,329 11,810 22,139
- 16,444 16,444
(345) (5,954) (6,299)
368 394 762
10,352 22,694 33,046

RZZE-_RAFAA=1+H FAEEEHE
EHFABERBYEERCELBMM
METEAEEEETRERNR  F15H

RHIFES -



For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

Lease liabilities HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during FRNEEEEREEREHNOT :
the year are as follows:

Land Properties Total
T it LS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 1July 2023 R-BE-=%tH—H 13,159 22,143 35,302
Lease payments HER (965) (4,895) (5,860)
Interest expenses FBEMAX 860 2316 3,176
Exchange adjustments bE 3 A& (723) (1,132) (1,855)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-WEXA=1+H 12,331 18432 30,763
Additions NE - 16,444 16,444
Lease payments MERNK (946) (7,714) (8,660)
Interest expenses FEFHX 835 3,111 3,946
Exchange adjustments ME W S 445 636 1,081
At 30 June 2025 R=ZB-HAFEXA=1+H 12,665 30,909 43,574
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-ZZBE-HEF R -_NF
ANA=TH NA=1+8

HK$’000 HKS$'000

TE T FAETT

Current Vi) 7,022 2,894
Non-current FERH 36,552 27,869
43,574 30,763
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nternational Entertainment Corporation BIfRIRZEHR A&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e G HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2025

HE—F-_AFNNA=THILFZ

21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the
following:

Unlisted investment fund (Note)

FELEmIRERES (ML)

1. BRFESFABRZEHMEE

BAVEFABGEZEREEREATRE:

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
RZZB-HE R-T_WF
~NB=+H ~NA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

4,423 4,481

Note:

The unlisted investment fund represented approximately 48% (2024: 48%)
interests in Foresight Fund IIl Limited Partnership (the “Foresight Fund” (Formerly
known as Hantal Capital Fund Il Limited Partnership)).

The Foresight Fund was established principally to achieve long-term capital
appreciation primarily through privately-negotiated investments in companies
and/or its affiliates which is/are engaged in the production and distribution of
the sports events and entertainment content and sports media rights market. The
Group is a limited partner in the Foresight Fund and does not have control nor
significant influence in the Foresight Fund’s operational and financing decisions.

The directors of the Company have determined the fair value of its interest held
in the Foresight Fund as at 30 June 2025 with reference to the valuation report
issued by, an independent professional valuer who has professional qualifications
and relevant experience. The fair value of the Foresight Fund is determined by
NAV summation method with fair value of underlying investment determined by
market approach, with references to comparable companies benchmark multiples.
During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Group recognised a fair value loss of
HK$533,000 (2024: HK$723,000) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

214 Annual Report &%k 2024/25

fifat -

JE E Mk E E S 5 M Foresight Fund Ill Limited
Partnership ([ Foresight Fund | ) (51 7 Hantal Capital
Fund Il Limited Partnership ) #) #J48% (==& — 4 4 :
48%) fE 2

AL Foresight Fund 2 F BB AEBRRIEANILE -
FEFBLTEARENEERIER D HERED
IRERNAREEESHEEREEZ QAR S HH
BAT - NEE KForesight Fund 2 BER A B A - 4
Foresight Fund 2 & & K B & R SR I e Hil s B R

B2 488
FES -

RAARESZC2RBAREXEERLEBEERZE
VEEMEMBE L ZHERS - B TEH R Foresight
FundBA RN _E-_RAFENA=THZRAFE -
Foresight Fund 2 A FEFK A EEFEBNEBHEH
REZAFERAMBELBAELEARZEE
BFYEE BHE_ZT-_AF~NAZ+tHLEE XK
SEEREEE2EREE AR A FEEE 5330004
JL(ZZ U4 : 7230008 7T) °



nternational Entertainment Corporation  BIERIRE45 R A 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. FEIRERIE
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-ZE-ZHEF RZTE-_NF
ANA=1H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables JE U BR 1E 42,818 1972
Less: provision for expected credit losses B TEHEEEERE (5,213) (574)

37,605 1,398
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of UTARBRERRAREEZR R ERA
allowance for credit loss at the end of the reporting period presented HE27 2 EKEE (IREEBERE) 2

based on invoice date or recognition date. BREC DT
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-IEBE-ZHEF RZZT-_NF
~NB=1+H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET
0-30 days 0230H 22,211 1,025
31-60 days 31260 H 7,160 =
61-90 days 61 %290 H 5,713 23
Over 90 days i oo H 2,521 350

37,605 1,398
The Group has a policy allowing its customers credit periods AEERBEHRGETEREFR—HBNTF0E
normally ranging from 0 to 90 days. The Group does not hold any WHAZEER AEBWEFEEMAE
collateral as security. R 2B o
The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting REBBREMAINFAAN ST HEER
policy stated in Note 3.11. For detailed assessments, please refer to WMEEBEBE BENGFE F2HWME
Note 41(a). 41(@a) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A

For the year ended 30 June 2025

HE—F-_AFNNA=THILFZ
23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

23. HtfEURFRIA, RERFERIA

PREPAYMENTS
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-FB-HF R_T_MNF
AA=+H NA=1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Deposits Ze 16,144 3,773
Other receivables E {th FE W SR IE 26,720 889
Other tax recoverables H fth AT U B 718 44,422 -
Prepayment — acquisition of plant and TENRIE — BERE R&E
equipment 58,111 81,099
Prepayment — others TEfT K18 — HAth 3,258 40,000
Interest receivables JE W ) 2, 1,661 13,540
150,316 139,301
Represented by: &
Non-current portion EMBNEL D 71,615 104,092
Current portion mENE > 78,701 35,209
150,316 139,301
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On 15 June 2022, the Group received a warrant of distraint and/or
levy ("WDL") from BIR which directed its collection and enforcement
team to distrain and/or levy on MSPI’s properties in relation to
alleged deficiency tax for calendar year of 2015 (Note 12). MSPI filed
an Urgent Motion to Quash WDL (“Motion to Quash”) to CTA on
23 June 2022. In August and September 2022, bank balances of
approximately Peso 426,000,000 have been garnished by the BIR
upon receipt of warrants of garnishment by certain of MSPI's banks.
MSPI filed a Motion for Reconsideration (‘“MR") on 19 January 2023 in
response to rejection from CTA on MSPI's Motion to Quash dated 19
December 2022.

On 11 April 2023, MSPI received the CTA’s resolution which granted
the MSPI's MR and resolved that the WDL is being cancelled and the
warrants of garnishment are lifted. Further collection by BIR or refund
of garnished amount is suspended pending on judicial resolution of
the case which is still pending for final decision of CTA upto date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.

Based on the advice of the independent legal adviser of MSPI, the
directors of the Company believe that MSPI has valid legal arguments
to defend the income tax and other tax disputes (including the
alleged deficiency tax for calendar year of 2015) with right to request
for refund of the garnished amounts when the judicial review
complete. Alternatively, the garnished amounts would be utilised to
settle income tax and other tax payable if MSPI lose in the income
tax and other tax dispute in the highly unlikely situation. The amount
accounted for as tax recoverable.

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

RZEZ—_FA+HB  KEBZEKX
BBRAHIF S &Sl < ([ 8 &k
%)) HFBRB-_ZE—HEEFSHEM
B AR RE WA RN ITNEIE 5
B MSPLZ B E (P 5E12) o MSPIR =&
CCERNAZ+T=HHECARS SR
Bl cNEZ28m (HEaE) - R=F%
ZTZFENARNA  REEMSPIE TIRTT
2L 1% - R1T4 17 49426,000,000 % &R
EWHBRMNIF - R ZE=Z=F— A+ B
MSPIEH ¥ CTABK BIMSPIEB B A - — —
T ATNAZHEDRRIENER
g ((ENER2BE] -

RZZEZ=FWMA+—H8  MSPIEECAZ
RiE - HHEMSPIEN BEHZ 282 MRS
BOEMARBRS UHBBRINES HEZSE
GEMBRERAEBRE  BREEEHE—F
U ER iR BN ZNTE - LR RAE
R MBHDAEFCAEL&REE R -

BIBEMSPIZ B ZRBERMNER A2 F
EEMHE MPIERYEERAFATEN
LEMBRBAD (BE_E—HAFBEF2E
WHIEER) A UBERAVEBEZTK
% BRGRE W IR FUE o A - 8 B MSPI
BT BER TRFTE M R E MR
A BER - MEREARE RN
B R H MR o 5% I8 1 & A U e 5 1E
N
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
EoAFNA=THIFFE

HE—

(a)

Contract assets

Current contract assets relating to
provision of hotel services

In case of room revenue, the guest pays the room charge
based on the payment schedule. If the services rendered by
the Hotel exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised.
If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract
liability is recognised.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses of the contract assets are based on those of
the trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade
receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision
rates of contract assets are based on days past due of trade
receivables appropriately grouped by similar loss pattern.
The calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome,
the time value of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecast of future economic
conditions.

After applying the expected credit loss rate to gross amount
of contract assets, the management considered that the
provision of impairment loss of contract assets is immaterial
and no expected credit loss has recognised.
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IR HOEE RIS B2
MBAENEE

EHEE
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-ZZBE-HF RZT-MOF
NA=+H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
250 291

EBBAME - BFARRNMHRERE
R EEUE - 085 AR H AR TS
ZRNHR AIEREHEE - MR
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BHEEREBYREBENREHERERS
H-ARNEEZBRBERIDENREES

EREXEESBZRERE AN
B8 - BEFERRBE T NELR

f%ﬁﬁﬁ@u&#%iﬁﬁT%ﬁ
BRBEEM - BATARR KR REH
#RﬁﬂZé@&ﬁﬁT@ZéM

HANEERERABRBEERRE
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ4EF R A"

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

25. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 25. BNEBEERGHNEE#E)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Contract liabilities (b) EHAEE
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=ZB-HF RZT_HNF
NA=1+H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET FAET
Contract liabilities relating to provision }IT/ BIERF BB
of hotel service AHEE 628 690
Contract liabilities relating to AW E AR
loyalty programs SHEE 1,450 v
2,078 690

As at 30 June 2025, contract liabilities mainly represents (i)
receipts in advance from customers of the Hotel operation
and (ii) deferred allocation of revenues relating to incentives
earned from the loyalty programs operated by the Group
itself. The balance of the contract liabilities are expected to be
utilised within a year.

RZZE-_RAFAA=+H A6HEE
F 2O TFBELOR S EE P FRIB K (i)
EIZR B 51T E E R R AT B BT EREX
MEBEBNRELEWNFISE - A0E
BEREBBHN —FAFHA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e G HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nFE N NA=1THIFE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 25. ENEERENEE#
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (Continued) (b) EHEEE)
Movements in contract liabilities are as follow: AHaEZEHWNT
Loyalty
Hotel service programs Total
IR IR BHEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FET FET
Balance as at 1 July 2023 RZZZ=F+A—-RAz&EH 1493 - 1493
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FREERTAFNENEEL
recognising revenue during the year that WamslBzatadrd
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (1,462) - (1,462)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year FREHAEEM 690 - 690
Exchange difference EHER (31) - (31)
Balance as at 30 June 2024 RIZ-MERA=TRZER 690 - 690
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRNRBRFAFTNENEREZ
recognising revenue during the year that WeammalBzaaEHd>
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (715) - (715)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year FREHAEEM 628 1,450 2,078
Exchange difference EHER 25 - 25
Balance as at 30 June 2025 RZBE-ZRERAZTAZER 628 1,450 2,078
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

26. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. FE(TRRIE. HEMNRNIBEREE

ACCRUED CHARGES B
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-ZB-RF R-T_MOF
AA=+H ~AZ=TH
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHET FHET
Trade payables FEfTRRIR 1,209 4,133

Other payables and accrued expense Hin eI IBEREERA

— Unredeemed chips (Note) — REOES (W) 12,727 1,967
— Interest payable — A 17,411 17,156
— Provision of Gaming tax — B EE 25,706 9,815
— Provision of Jackpot — 2R RE 19,014 12,796
— Professional services fee — EXERBE 9,783 6,397
— Others — HAth 53,202 47,333
137,843 95,464

Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges comprise JENERTE - B ENRBEREAERSE

amounts outstanding for the purchase and ongoing costs. KERBERAZ K Fe5E -

Note: Unredeemed chips represent the amounts owed in exchange for gaming et - REEREHRALDELP RIEEFNARFE
chips held by customers and gaming promoters which are generally WEREBMARNRIE  —RBEHER —
expected to be recognised as revenues within one year. Decrease in FAERRBRA - SRS —RIEBRA -
balance generally represent the recognition of revenues and increase in Mg MBIEE P RIBERANABENE
the balance represent additional chips held by customers and gaming g .
promoters.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nFE N NA=1THIFE

26. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. FEfTBRIE. EMFEFTNIENFESTE

ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued) (%)
Movements in unredeemed chips are as follow: RERSEWHEBHOT -
Unredeemed chips
REEEH
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=BZ-HE R_T_MOF
ANB=1+H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance at 1 July REHA—RB 28R 1,967 -
Balance at 30 June RNA=t1HZ#&s# 12,727 1,967
Net increase during the year FAFEE 10,760 1,967
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based NTRRREHRAEREREERRZ
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. 2 ERERIBERE 24T o
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. FEERTFHIEESHARWNA -
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=BZ-RF R_T_MOF
A~A=+H ~NAZ=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
0-30 days 0%30H 614 2472
31-60 days 31260 H 230 1,565
61-90 days 61290 H 200 96
Over 90 days oo H 165 -
1,209 4133
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SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. EERIER(E
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movement FABRZELEHRBEEEUAREEFHFE
during the year are listed as follow: HIREAT
Fair value
adjustments Fairvalue  Withholding
Accelerated  onproperty,  adjustments taxon Unrealised
capital plantand oninvestment undistributed foreign
allowance equipment properties earnings exchange gain Total
nE BER
REz REVEZ RIREFZ RER
NEEXEHE ATERR  ATEHRR LRI E % i mct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET FEL FET
At 1 July 2023 A
+H—H 39 4488 90,434 14,134 26,624 135719
Credited to profitorlossfor ~ FRRIBIFFTA
the year - (1,369) (25,642) - (3,271) (30,282)
Reclassify of deferred taxation &R & Y EF
upon transfer of investment ~ EH S BEIE
properties BIE - 61,283 (61,283) - = =
Exchange adjustments B 5 A% - (557) (3,509) - (1,794) (5,860)
At 30 June 2024 RZZ-mE
~NAZTA 39 63,845 - 14,134 21,559 99,577
(Credited)/charged to profitor  F R E
loss for the year (FTA)/ 1k - (6,030) (5,829) - 3,221 (8,638)
Charged to other REM2EKE
comprehensive income £l - 4,795 - - - 4,795
Exchange adjustments EHRAE 1 (10,646) (94) 512 848 (9,379)
At 30 June 2025 R-ZZ%%
~NAZTH 40 51,964 (5,923) 14,646 25,628 86,355
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nFE N NA=1THIFE

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 30 June 2025, the Group had estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$567,279,000 (2024: HK$393,034,000) and
deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$7,199,000
(2024: HK$10,724,000) arising from certain companies within the
Group that are suffering from losses for years available for offset
against future profits. At 30 June 2025 and 2024, no deferred tax
assets was recognised for such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams from these companies within the Group.
Tax losses amounting to approximately HK$103,394,000 (2024:
HK$113,837,000) may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
tax losses will be expired as follows:

27.

IRIETRIBE & (& (4
Bé:::ﬁi/—\HEJrE RS E B EE
A A IBEIB 45672790008 T (=
ZPU4F £ 393,034,000 L) RAARNEFET
LFEHBEEZE T RSBz AT
KRB Z AR E R ETFEL7 990005%
TT(ZZ Z Y4 1 10,7240008 L) - R ==&
—HERZE-_NFNA=1+H" Etaﬁé%ﬁ
LB AEBETZE AR Z A KRB R
R R ERZEEIEERRERIBEEE -
TR B 18 £ 103,394,00058 70 (= Z — PO 4F ¢
113,837,000 7T) 7] R HA 45 88 - i IH &5 18
BREEE R A TR E

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=ZB-HF R-T_NF
ANA=TH ~NAZ=1+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Year 2024 —E = 21,018
Year 2025 :;i@:ﬁi 15,551 15,319
Year 2026 —ERF 2,394 2,359
Year 2027 —E4F 244,145 240,501
Year 2028 —E-NE 201,795 -
463,885 279,197
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SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BHE-_FT-_AF~NA=1THIFE

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 28. BIAEFI A
The retirement benefit costs of the Group recognised in consolidated REEEa2ER R R ERZ RNEBRKERN
statement of comprehensive income are as follows: AT -
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
—E_RHE —EOFE
ANB=1+H ANAZTA
LEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Hong Kong G 348 244
The Philippines JEEE 2,469 701
2,817 945
Pursuant to Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter RIBCGE SR ESFTE 1'*f§ﬂ>(§/a/?i1§ﬂ =)
485, Laws of Hong Kong), the Group participates in a defined 4858)  AEERERBLHE-—BRATLARE
provident fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong. BIRWBAEE -
Under the relevant law in the Philippines, it provides a benefit to BIBIFEEERE LN - HEMEEKEER
qualified employees but it does not require minimum funding of the REEF B SR TS 2 HEBER -
plan. In the absence of any pension plan in the entity, the relevant i E BB E (RIS E - BEEMIR
law requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified employees. EREEREERBENRS -
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund retirement
benefit scheme in Hong Kong. The relevant scheme assets are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of the trustee. Under that scheme, the Group is required
to make contributions pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485, Laws of Hong Kong). No forfeited
contribution under the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

The Group's contributions to the retirement benefit scheme in Hong
Kong charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2025 was approximately

HK$348,000 (2024: HK$244,000).

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines

Net defined benefit obligations AEBAEMFE

The Group operates a funded defined benefit plan for the qualified
employees of its subsidiary in the Philippines.
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BREAEHRKTE
AEERNBFES R -HRHMELABS RN
BT - BRI EENR ARSI Z
EeRA  BAKEZEESIRERRE -
RIEAE - AEBEARBCRBIMERTRE
S EEDD (BRIEDIFE485F) 2 REME
R o BB FUR KR FIEH & T AR MK
PR A AR A AR E R K -

HE TR A=1tRHIFEZHFE
2HWRERNEZAEB R EBSEAKEF
=T8I 2 A A 3480008 7T (—ZZ — P4 ¢
24400078 7C) °

FREAEREFME

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=Z-HF KT _WF
ANB=1+H ~NA=+H8
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET

3,696 1,082

AEERHEFREEMNBRARZAEREER
RA—REREZ RERMETE -



Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

The defined benefit plan is administrated by trustee appointed by
the respective subsidiary of the Company and is legally separated
from the subsidiary. Under the plan, the qualified employees are
entitled to retirement benefits equivalent to final plan salary for
every year of credit service at the normal retirement age. There
are no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement benefit
obligations expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company.
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement
benefit scheme and the retirement fund is not sufficient to settle the
obligation, the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be
due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of the Company to the
retirement fund.

(@) The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligations 5% 7 & | & TR (&

AEEERTE

Fair value of plan assets

Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligations

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

FRESAEEMNTE (E)

REBAEHARREERBERARME
EXFEAEE  BUsr8I0x2 LBz K
BARLTHEE - RIEBEZXFE BERE
BEERRAFRE  ARASREGTER
BFEREDFRANZETEFHE 2 RINGE
Feo RKBHNEEL TGS ARRFHEN
BRABAZITZEREANER - AW -
WRIBR PR AR B 5T B2 48 ) B R R KR
S TERAZNEME  BZBRABNE
EZWMOKEREE  YEHBANAF AR
B RBA FRIAES -

(@ AEEREAERMAEZEMERE
ERREGREMBARRZEENT

REBNEEEEZAEFHE

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-ZEBE-HE RZZZWF
ANA=TH ~AZ=Z+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

3,696 1,082

3,696 1,082
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e G HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE-_F-_AFNA=1+HIFE

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 28. BIABFIAA (2)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued) FERERAEREAE (&)

(b) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit (b)  E - _RFEN T _WNERA
obligations for both years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024 are as = THREMESFE  AEBNEER
follows: BEFHUT :

At 30 June At 30 June

2025 2024

R=-ZB-HF R-T_MF

~NAE=1H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTET T

At beginning of the year REA) 1,082 1,249
Service costs PR 75 A AR 2,351 589
Interest cost FLEA A 118 112
Actuarial loss/(gains) BEEE (W) 55 (802)
Exchange realignment bE 3 & 90 (66)
At end of the year NGRS 3,696 1,082

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the

© BE_ZEZ-_AFEK_ZT_WMF~AH

years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024 are as follows: =t+HIEMEFE FEEEATE
2HMT
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-B-RF R-ZT_MOF
ANA=+H NA=TAH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
At beginning of the year REH - -
Actuarial losses BEERE - -
At end of the year NG S - >

228 Annual Report %k 2024/25



Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit
plans are as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

FRESAEEMNTE (E)
d) REAEXAKRaRERBEBEREIRTE
w|AF Bz 2T

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
—E-RE —EOF
~A=+H NA=+H
LFEE IEFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FHT
Service cost: PR A AR
Service costs AR 7 A A 2,351 589
Net interest expense B HFEE 118 112
Components of defined benefit costs REEER IR
recognised in profit or loss FX AN BB 5> 2,469 701
Remeasurement on the net defined EFTERTRNAEFE
benefit liability:
Actuarial loss/(gains) BHEEE (W) 55 (802)

The defined benefit cost of HK$2,469,000 (2024: HK$701,000)
has been included in the administrative expenses. The
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included
in other comprehensive income.

The Group has also made provision for estimated liabilities for
retirement benefit obligations, in the absence of any pension
plan, covering the qualified employees of its another subsidiary
in the Philippines. There are no unusual or significant risks to
which the retirement benefit obligations expose the relevant
subsidiary of the Company. However in the event a benefit
claim arises, the obligations shall immediately be due and
payable by the relevant subsidiary of the Company.

FERAALA 2,469,000/ (ZFE =W
F 1 701,000 L) FFATHAXS - &
FERATEMNaEFHEAAEME
[l

AEETEREERREFTE2BERT
SRR ENEEZ AR REFELEE
BMERFREHMHMBLARZAER
BE - RARBHNEEALTESALQE
ERMBARAZ TS EHEARR
A HIRHEMER - BT
R WERBARREENERF
At e
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations at 30 June
2025 and 2024 were carried out by E.M. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. and Institutional Synergy, Inc. (members of
the Actuarial Society of the Philippines), the independent
actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligations, and
the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the
actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate TEX

Expected rate of salary increase TEHFHEERE

The discount rate assumption is based on the spot yield curve
calculated from the market yields by striping the coupons
from government bonds to create theoretical zero-coupon
bonds as of the valuation date as at 30 June 2025 and 2024.

The actuarial valuation showed that the fair values of the
above unit investment trust funds are determined based on
mark-to-market valuation.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligations is 13 years (2024: 10 years).
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FFREAEEMNE (2)

(d)

(&)

FEEESRTHBREMERRATER
FMEAR-_Z-_AFR-_T_HF
ANAZTHZREBHBILBERD
E.M. Zalamea Actuarial Services, Inc. &
Institutional Synergy, Inc. (& Actuarial
Society of the Philippines Z ik 8 ) #17 °

ATFRAMNETZ2REREBAIRE RS
R R B AR AS A AN Th R AR TR AT BB AL
FTASEETE ©

IREGEEERZEZRRAOT

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=ZB-HF RKR-T_NF
NA=+H NA=1H

6.14%-6.74%
6.00%

6.18%-6.89%
6.50%

FERBRIDERBMSREFES
HeREWmER - I EBR_-F

“HER-FT-WUFRA=ZTHHIK
BEGERZBRAESF ZRBNAEIE

EwmTEREES -

BEEERT A LBUREETE
T Z A FHEDREBERTEMEZGE
BE-

ATRANEENEFHBEAEI3F (=
TOF 109F) o



For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

Authorised: EE

Balance as at 1 July 2023 RZEBZ=F+H—RA2Z
s
IN=R~N

Share sub-division (Note) ¥4 (F1at)

Balance as at 30 June 2024, RZEZMEA=+H"

1 July 2024 and 30 June 2025 :g_ﬂitﬂ A X

—= —ﬂi/\ )E] + El
ZRERR

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBE:

Balance as at 1 July 2023 RZEBZ=F+tHA—A2Z
iR

Capital reduction (Note) Bt B (K7 aE)

Balance as at 30 June 2024, 1July ~ RZZEZWFA=+H

2024 and 30 June 2025 “E-FELA—BK
—E-RFRA=1H
ZI\‘Dﬁ%

Note: Pursuant to announcements on 2 May 2023 and 11 August 2023, with
effective from 11 August 2023, (i) the capital reduction involving the
reduction of the par value of each issued share of the Company (the
“Share(s)") from HKS$1.00 to HKS$0.01 by cancelling the paid up share
capital to the extent of HK$0.99 per issued Share so that following such
reduction, each issued share with a par value of HK$1.00 in the share
capital of the Company shall become one new share with a par value of
HK$0.01 (the "Capital Reduction”); and (i) the sub-division, immediately
following the Capital Reduction becoming effective, each authorised but
unissued Share will be sub-divided into a hundred (100) unissued new
Shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each (the “Share Sub-division”).

Upon the Capital Reduction becoming effective, the credit arising
from the Capital Reduction was applied towards offsetting the
accumulated losses of the Company as at the effective date of the
Capital Reduction and the balance of any such credit remaining after
offsetting the accumulated losses of the Company was transferred
to retained profit of the Company. This resulted in a transfer of
HKS$1,355,465,000 from share capital to retained profit of the
Company of the same amount on 11 August 2023.

No. of No. of
shares of shares of
HK$1.00 each HK$0.01 each HK$’000
BREE EREE
1.00 8 T2 0018 TZ
RHEE BRHEEE TR
2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000
(2,000,000,000) 200,000,000,000 -
- 200,000,000,000 2,000,000
1,369,157,235 - 1,369,157
(1,369,157,235) 1,369,157,235 (1,355,465)
- 1,369,157,235 13,692

Hat - BE-_T-_=FRA-AR-ZT=_=FNA
+—BAzRAE B_ZT-_=F/\A+—AHi:
ORABIR  ESRBEFHETREFTRG
o.995%ﬁz%ﬂﬂﬂi¢ﬁﬂ%$@ﬁ&aﬁéﬁ
B ([B 43 )) 2 E{E # 1.007 7T Bl 8 = 001
I MR A BEIR®E - AR RRAP ER
HEE100B T ZEBITROEKA—REE
001 B TTE AR (R ANEIR ) « R O)IFA -
SRERANER A IR - BRATE R AR BEITR
B A— B (100) R &R EE001 BT 2
RETHBRMD ([REBIFMA]) -

P BE A Bl A 1% R AR Bl R T E A 2
HEREAREEBRASRAERBRHZ AR
RIRETEE  MKEAARRFBEEET
MEBRBERBZEHREEREARARF]
REBEN HWEBFR-_E-_=ZFNA+—
B B % 2 & 8 1,355,465,000 7 7T £ #8 Rl & 8
ZIREBEAF o

Annual Report 5% 2024/25



For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

On 29 March 2024, Fortune Growth Overseas Limited (“Fortune
Growth"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company issued 6 new
promissory notes (the “2024 PNs") to the holder, an independent
third party ("Holder”), in exchange for the matured promissory
notes issued in prior years. No default for repayment of matured
promissory notes before the exchange of 2024 PNs. The 2024 PNs in
principal amount of HK$73,548,504 each and totalling approximately
HK$441,291,000 represented the principal amount and accrued
interest of the matured promissory notes. The 2024 PNs carry
interest which accrues on the outstanding principal amount of
approximately HK$441,291,000 from its issue date until repayment
in full of the principal amount at the fixed rate of 6% per annum. The
2024 PNs shall become due and payable in full on the business day
immediately preceding the first anniversary of its issue date and is
unsecured and guaranteed by the Company.

On 31 March 2025, Fortune Growth issued 6 new promissory notes
(the “2025 PNs") to the Holder in exchange for the matured debt
under the 2024 PNs. No default for repayment of 2024 PNs before
the exchange of 2025 PNs for 2024 PNs. The 2025 PNs in principal
amount of HK$77,997,684 each and totalling approximately
HK$467,986,000 represented the principal amount and accrued
interest of the 2024 PNs. The 2025 PNs carry interest which
accrues on the outstanding principal amount of approximately
HK$467,986,000 from its issue date until repayment in full of the
principal amount at the fixed rate of 6% per annum. The 2025 PNs
shall become due and payable in full on 31 March 2027 and is
unsecured and guaranteed by the Company. Future Growth has the
right to defer repayment of the 2025 PNs for at least twelve months
after the reporting period and the Group has classified the entire
2025 PNs as non-current liabilities at 30 June 2025.

The above promissory notes are denominated in HKS which is the
foreign currency of the relevant group entity (where functional
currency is Peso).
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RZE-_WE=A=-+hB X2F2E
[ B 2 &) Fortune Growth Overseas Limited
([ Fortune Growth |) @15 B A ([HEE A
BOAOHALEE ((ZE-_WEERA
ZB|) BAAABIYE=H UNBREB
TFEEETHNIHALER TR =T
ZUFEAREER  WEBKEEARE
B _T_NFAHLZBENATES A
73,548,504 5 7T+ #BFAA) 7% 441,291,000 8 7T
EEREAAREENASEREFE
TR _MFARALBRBERREELRASELY
4412910008 T EHBTHHREZEASE
BEREEZBILHMAERTEFENER6ERGF
B o 2R NFARZEBBNREE LT
HEmE —EEFMEXBRBRES
T B AR A ARQ BER o

RZE-_RAFE=H=+—8 - Fortune
Growth@#F B ABT DAL ERE (=
E_RFEARRERE]) BB - ZOF
EAEEMNIHER E_S ZOFEAR
ERAM-CTECRAFALEERN WEE
ZENFEARLER T RFAL
ZRERNARSREE H7799768478 7 HAEEH
#467,986000/8 70 * HHE R ZZF ZMF &K
EENASENETFE - T A F K
HEE TR E B 7N 2 5 4 467,986,0007%8 7T
BEZTHHREE A SRERHEE L
HRREEFANEERFFNE - — T -1
FARHEEBER _Z-_+F=F=+—8
BT E2EIN BAEERBEHAAR
AIEIR © Future Growth B #E#§ — T — 7 F K
HEBMNEEHRERERERERER
L+Z@A MAEBEER_ZT_HAF N
B=+B#2d S _hFEALEEHE
BIEREBEE-

FatAR ERAETTEHE BT VERE
BER(HNEER/RR) 2N -



nternational Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings — secured

RITIEE — HER

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

31. SR{TEE

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=ZB-HF RKR_T_NF
~NAZ=TH NA=1TH

HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
990,067 578,360

Note:

On 25 September 2023, a banking facility had been granted to subsidiaries of
the Company of Peso 4,320,000,000 which has been fully utilised as at 30 June
2025. Interest is charged at variable rate at higher of one year PHP BVAL Reference
Rates+2% per annum or 7.5% per annum in respect to this banking facility.

On 4 July 2024, a bank facility had been granted to a subsidiary of the Company
of United States Dollars (“US$") 50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$392,387,000) which
has been fully utilised as at 30 June 2025. Interest is charged at a rate of 3.75% per
annum in respect to this banking facility.

As at 30 June 2025, the bank loans and the banking facilities were secured by
the Group's properties as classified under properties, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$518,664,000 (2024: HK$1,010,420,000) (Note 15), and investment
properties of approximately HK$336,000,000 (2024: nil) (Note 16), certain bank
balances of approximately HK$403,809,000 (2024: HK$14,688,000) of the Group,
certain land use rights and condominiums of associates of the Group, together
with financial guarantees provided by associates of the Group. The loan is carried
at amortised cost.

The subsidiaries of the Company are required to comply with the following
financial covenants which are tested annually:

— Debt-equity ratio shall not be more than 2.33x; and

— Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.10x

Hfat

R-ZE-_=FNhA-+HAB ADQAETHBERF
FEZIRTTRLE 4320000000 = @ 3L BHRITAER =
T_RAFANAZTHAEBETEIA - ZERTHE
% — 4F HI PHP BVAL Reference Rates +29% 8% 4F FI| % 7.5%
NS EFEE -

R-ZZ-_WELAMAB > ARAETHB R ER
$R1TERE 50,000,000 7T ([ E 7t |) (AF & 7 392,387,000
B ZBERAMENR_E-_REEAA=+HE
BEREBA - ZFRITBMERFNEI75%:TE °

RZZE-_HEXNAZTAH RITEERBRITREN
DEERYE - BB RRE N EBYIEL) 518,664,000
BT (ZZ 4 1 1,010,420,00058 7T) (FFFE15) - LA
A% & ) 2 49 336,000,000 8 7T (T M4 : THIT)
(3E16) « ANEEE T IR1T 45 17 £9403,809,000 7% 7T
(ZZT VU4 : 1468300078 7C) « AEBMEI L QA2
ETEHERERAEEER  BERAEEBZE A
AR IS ER - (BB LA A AR -

ARRETHIERRABST T EF AN R

B
— EBERLRRZR2BE K

—  BEERELXZEIZFL0E
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Note: (Continued)

At 30 June 2025, total non-current bank loans were scheduled to repay as follows:

Wizt : (&)

RZZE-_RAFRA=TH FRDRTEELEE
BETEIAT

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=ZB-AHF R-T-WF
~NB=+H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are RITERWRMEZAEN A THREES
repayable:
Within one year —FR 59,933 -
More than one year but not exceeding two years ZWN—F  BTBBEMF 119,865 86,754
More than two years but not exceeding five years ZME  BTNBBAERSF 810,269 347,016
After five years AFE - 144,590
990,067 578,360
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B RBABETATIR—FR
under current liabilities E|HAHY IR 59,933 -
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FMBEBETATLE 930,134 578,360

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) for
the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 100% interest in Oriental-Invest
Properties Limited entered into by a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Baltic Success Limited (“BSL") on 5 July 2019, BSL issued
a 5 years zero coupon convertible bond with principal amount
of HK$53,000,000 on 5 July 2019 (the "“Bond”). The Bond entitled
the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$1.01 as set out in the Company's
announcement dated 30 April 2019.

Based on the terms of the Agreement, the Bond contain two
components, (i) the host debt and (ii) the conversion derivatives. The
Group recognised both components as liability as the conversion
derivatives of the bond did not meet the “fixed for fixed” test under
HKAS 32. At the issue date, the fair value of both components of the
Bond were determined based on a valuation report issued by JLL.
Subsequently, the host debt component is classified as “financial
liabilities at amortised cost” and measured at amortised cost, the
conversion derivatives is classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss” (“Financial liabilities at FVTPL") and
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.
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BIEARRQ G 22 E W B A a] Baltic Success
Limited ([BSL)) R ZZ— N F+E AR B
1AL RS (W BB = 1E]) Oriental-Invest
Properties Limited 100% # z& < B8 I 17 3% ([ 7%
WD BSLR—ZT—hEFE+ARBET
RN F /530000008 T2 A FEREA K
BEH((EF]D - BHOARFEBEAE=-T
—NFNA=+tHZRAEME EFET
BAEAERZBEEB10BTEESER
Y= i/ R g

RIEZ e G - EFEREMERD - ()
BEBRNEBRTETR - AKEKHE
MoERSEE REARBEFERIIAT
AT EB B G ERIFE2;RA N EE#HR
BEJAH RBETAH  EFMERDZ
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e H R FREBIDES R IZHEE
RAGEZERBE] RIZBEHKRAE
MBHROTET AREDERIRAFERFA
BazeMAE] ((BAFEFARSEZE
BMEHE) REAFEFE MAFEZE
PO NIESTER



The fair value of the host debt of the Bond upon issuance were
calculated at the present value of the estimated coupon interest
payments and principal amount. The discount rate used in the
calculation is 10.01%. The fair value of the conversion derivatives of
the Bond at end of each reporting period is determined using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The key inputs used in the Binomial
Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Stock price (HK$)
Exercise price (HKS)
Expected life

Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield
Risk free rate

B (B7T)
1IEE GET)
B
i‘ﬁi%ﬁﬁimg
BETEE

= 2L ﬂ

The Bond has reached maturity on 5 July 2024. The aggregate
principal amount of HK$53,000,000 have been settled by cash in full.
Movement for the convertible bond during the years are as below:

At 1July 2023
Amortised interest for the year
Fair value adjustments

At 30 June 2024

Amortised interest for the year
Fair value adjustments
Redemption

At 30 June 2025

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

RBETHESFITBEF A FERGE

AAEMARASBEZRENE - TEAT
HAFRERE1001% NEREHRES

EBMTATAZ A FERAZANBETE
BREAUET . —EAREEEEFRER
TEHASBEAT

30 June
2024
—EUF
~NA=+H

1.07
1.01
0F

92.67%

0%
5.66%

E%E#_j_ﬂitHEEU% K&
4258 53,000,000/ L B LA IR & BB - F
WT%ML%“@WT:

Financial Financial

liability at liability
amortised cost at FVTPL Total

2 88 R AN BEAYE

FEZ SFABREZ
ol 8= SRAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TAT
R-ZE-_=%+tH—H 47,055 4593 51,648
FREHET B 5,886 5,886
NEBERAE = (1,385) (1,385)
R-ZE-_WEXA=1+AH 52,941 3,208 56,149
FNEHEF B 59 = 59
NEBERAE - (3,208) (3,208)
fE (o (53,000) - (53,000)

R-FE-HFXA=TH -
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Capital commitments BEREE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet accounted for at the RREREEEHET N RS RRNEEEH
end of the reporting period in the consolidated financial statements BREARZERMAZAT :
is as follows:
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-ZZBE-HE RIZT_NF
NA=+H ~NA=1+H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHETT

Property, plant and equipment Y - WE LG 239,263 11,342

Provisional License R B3 1 AR

Commitments required by PAGCOR and definitions under the RAARBHAZTE_=FLA=-++tAK

Provisional License have detailed in the Company’s announcement NEE MY PAGCOR AT E Ky A 7 X &

dated 27 September 2023 and key commitments are summarized as FIERH TR TERESROT

follows:

(@  tosecure asurety bond in favour of PAGCOR in the amount of @ LAPAGCORAXm AEFLERES
Pes0100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$13,873,000 100,000,000 # 2= (48 & 7 %7 13,873,000
(2024: HK$13,740,000) to ensure prompt and punctual L (ZZE P4 © 13,740,000 7T) -
remittances/payments of all license fees; BRFE AR ERER LR

(b)  to remit license fees on a monthly basis, which shall be an b)) BAEAHXERE SEBEZENTI
amount equivalent to the higher of: ESELF=E- g
() The sum of the following: (0 RIBBEZLA :

@@  10% of gross gaming revenues generated from @ EHEERBEIZMEA/FEZK
high roller tables; = 10% ;

(b)  20% of gross gaming revenues generated from b IFEEEHEIFAESEEY
non-high roller tables; U %5 20% :

(©  20% of gross gaming revenues generated from © BFEEHEMEAEBEIR
electronic gaming machines; and #=20% &

(d)  10% of gross gaming revenues generated from d HEHEREEFESAERK
junket tables, or 2% 10% * 3%
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Provisional License (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
(i) Minimum Guaranteed Share ("MGS")

(@)  Monthly MGS of Php60,000,000 per month
in 2023 to be computed from the date of the
commencement of the casino operations;

(b)  Monthly MGS of Php90,000,000 from January
to December 2024 for a total annual MGS of
Php1,080,000,000; and

(o) From January 2025 onward, the Licensee to remit
a monthly MGS of approximately Php133,333,333
for a total annual MGS of Php1,600,000,000,

(i) Where MGS shall be subject to the following conditions:

(@ The MGS will apply once full control of gaming
operations is transferred from PAGCOR to the
Licensee under the provisional license computing
from the date of commencement of the casino
operations. The Licensee shall pay the required
monthly license fees under the provisional
license; and

(b) In the event, however, that the total monthly
license fees fall below the MGS, the Licensee shall
pay PAGCOR the monthly MGS instead of the
total monthly license fees.

Since full control of gaming operations is transferred
from PAGCOR to the Licensee under the provisional
license from 9 May 2024, no 2023 Monthly MGS of Php
60,000,000 per month was paid.

to secure a performance bond in favour of PAGCOR in the
amount of Peso100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,873,000 (2024: HKS13,740,000) as performance
assurance to guarantee the completion of the Project;

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

e B B PR (48)

(b)

(&)
(i) HERFMDEE(MGS])

@ BEREKSEERD®BR
Z—E - =FEAMGE
H 60,000,000 3% =

b BZZE_WMF—AE+=
A& A MGS 90,000,000 # &
% F A 5 MGS1,080,000,000
BR: X

© B-Z_-_HAF— AH#-
e AEN ST AMGS &K
133333333 E - HFA
5+ MGS 1,600,000,000 4% = -

\

(i)  MGSBFFE THHEM -

@ FHREERBREBE NEYEE
2 TH % % # F PAGCOR 82
BERBARZ BHI5H
& B # 5 - MGSEE B &
F o R R A B 1R R B A AR
HTHREZNEG AR
g R

by Am WEBAERERSE
ERAMGS » B35 2 A ZE (A
PAGCOR X it & A MGS i 3E
B AMRER -

HRE_ZT_WMFHANH
B BYLE2EEHED S
PAGCOR#E 1% & H I & I8 £5 h&
AN AR - -_=FWEIR
B S MGS & A 60,000,000 2 °

LAPAGCOR & X 25 A B IR 2 B 89 1R
& £ % /5100,000,000 = (HE
7 #4713,873,0008 L (ZF = /0 4 :
13,740,000 7T)) - {ERHER T Z A
B 2 BHIRE
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Provisional License (Continued)

(d)

to open an Escrow Account which shall maintaining a balance
of US$50 million (equivalent to approximately HK$391 million)
without taking into account of any interest accrued on the
Escrow Account. All funds for the development of the Project
shall pass through the Escrow Account and all drawdowns
of funds from the Escrow Account must be applied to
the Project, and such drawdowns shall be authorised and
executed by the Licensee;

to make the Total Investment Commitment of no less than
US$1.0 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$7.82 billion)
and up to US$1.2 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$9.38
billion) for the Project. The Total Investment Commitment
comprises land acquisition costs, costs related to securing
development rights, construction, equipment, development
costs, financing costs and all other expenses directly related
to the completion of the Project. Within two years from the
signing of the Provisional License Agreement, the Licensee
shall fully invest and utilise in the development of the Project
at least 40% of its Total Investment Commitment for the
Project.

to submit for PAGCOR's approval for the Implementation
Plan. The Implementation Plan includes, among others, the
spending timetable showing the estimated spending per
Project component, per year. The spending timetable shall
take into consideration the investment/utilisation of 40% of
the Total Investment Commitment within two (2) years from
the signing date of the Provisional License Agreement;

to submit the documents required in the Master Development
Plan proposal;

grounds for revocation of the Provisional License, including
but not limited to: (a) failure to comply with material provisions
of this License without remedy within 90 days; (b) failure to
remit license fees within 30 days from receipt of notice of
default; (c) the holder has become bankrupt or insolvent; and
(d) delay in construction or development without approval
of extension from PAGCOR; (e) if the debt-to-equity ratio is
more than 70:30. As at 30 June 2025 and 2024, the directors of
the Company do not aware of any material non-compliance
which might result revocation of the Provisional License.
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i By bR R (48)

(d)

ARATERE MABEEREFLRB
45 8 78 £ 50,000,000 3% 7T (F & R 4
391,000,000 7C) * FEEBRP ER &5
FEXTEHEREAN - ZIBEER
BESEABRBTER,  MATER
FREZESERNZIEE EHIR
TR B ABE N AFEANIT

LB B EH BRI EFRETLRI0E
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BEWARZEENER -
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(a)

(b)

In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions during the year:

KB EREZMBWA

Interest income from associates

A SRR 2 HERM R

Lease payment to associates

[ — M2 AR Z

Service fee payment to an associate

IR &

Note:

(i) The interest income from associates represented the interest
income from loan receivables with principal amount of Peso
430,000,000 to HVPHI and Peso 290,500,000 to PBPI respectively.

(ii) Lease payment to associates represented the lease agreements
entered with HVPHI and PBPI for the land, staff accommodation
and parking lot situated in the Philippines.

(iii) The service fee payment represented the provision of consultancy

service in the preparation and execution of the integrated resort.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and other members of
key management of the Group are disclosed in Note 11.
The remuneration of the Directors and key management
personnel of the Group is based on the performance and
experience of individuals and is determined with reference to
the Group's performance, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

(a) BRUHEHKEPBMEREMISTHFEE
RN KEBRFEARNEZLATEKR
FEATRS

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2025 2024
BZE HE
—E_-FRHEF —EZOF
~NA=1H ~NA=1+H
IEFE EFE
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
ioEz3 FET FAETT
(i) 3,552 1,753
(ii) (6,043) (6,160)
(iii)
(14,562) (11,927)
Hiet -
0) REBERNE 2T BWAIERE EK
HVPHI % PBPI Z< & 88 9 Bl /& 430,000,000
R }.290,500000 R 2 B R 2 7l &
N
(ii) M & N B 2 B E A 5RIEE HVPHI
RPBPIRT 2 HEHZE  RBA AN
RIERBZ L  BIEBREEE -
(i) INRBBEEEERATEREER
[ B IR L EE R AR TS o
(b) BEREEABSEMH

SERAREEMEIEEREREH
BB B R 11 B - 8 B R E RS
EBABFHEREAEHRERE
SEREERR  TEFHEERR
(TR -
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International Entertainment Corporation B[

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR Y R

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nF N NA=1THIFE

36. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a)

36.

IR RERERZME

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) ReRBLEEYEE
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=-FB-HF R-_T_MF
NA=1H ~NA=Z+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FHEIT
Cash and bank balances (Note ii) B RR1TET (Kati) 562,519 417,471
Restricted bank balances (Note j) SBRHIRITEETT (M5 i) 390,741 411,027
Fixed bank deposits (Note i) TEERSR T 3R (B &) 13,873 91,855
967,133 920,353
Less: — Fixed bank deposit with original ~ J&l : — EE ARFREEI 25 B
maturity of more than three iR =18 A ) E B
months when acquired RITIFNR (13,873) (91,855)
— Restricted bank balances — ZRHIRITEETT (390,741) (411,027)
562,519 417,471
Note: Hat

(ii)

(i)

Restricted bank balance represents fund maintain in an escrow
account in accordance with the Provisional License Agreement for
development of the Project, which can only be used for the Project
and release when the Project complete. As the balance is expected
to release after 12 months from balance sheet date, the balance is
classified as non-current assets;

The balances represent short term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, demand deposits in the banks in
Hong Kong and Philippines carrying prevailing market interest rates
of 4% per annum (2024: 4% per annum), cash on hand and cash
keep in casino for gaming operation.

The balances represent fixed bank deposits with original maturity
of more than three months carrying interest of 6% per annum
(2024: 5.625%-6% per annum). The fixed bank deposit of Peso
100,000,000 (2024: Peso 100,000,000) has been pledged for the
surety bond in favour of PAGCOR.
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(ii)

(i)

ZRERITEFERBEERERGE
ARERZEBNFTERSFANES
HEEBNZHER  YRZERTK
Bk ZEBREFAREEARRA
RER2EARER BREHRIRA
FEMBAE °

HEERIBEA=ZEAKIUTHE
HBTER REASRIERERBRT
MSFERERIB(ZTZWF - 4F) 5
BRRTERER  FEREHRRE
BHETEENRS -

HERRIE A BB =EA TR
TEFR REMNRE (ZT_HF
FRE5625EE6[E)5TE ° LAPAGCOR
X = A K E B8R 17 17 3K 100,000,000
2R (—F —PI4E : 100000000 =) B
ERERESER -



For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEITHMELAEEZHER:
activities:
Lease Convertible Bank  Promissory
liabilities bond  borrowings notes

(Note 20) (Note 32) (Note 31) (Note 30)

HERE THRRES RITEE AEE

(Ktzt20) (ffeE32) (Ktet31) (HtzE30)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FTET

At 1July 2023 R-ZE-=%+tA—H 35302 51,648 - 416312
Addition of borrowings fEE# - - 604,681 =
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAR (5,860) - - =
Interest paid BRFIE - - (36,018) =
Total changes from financing cash flows BER & RELZ B RE (5,860) - 568,663 =
Other changes: Hin#

Interest expenses accrued e FIEHX 3,176 5,886 36,018 25,553

Change in fair value NEEE - (1,385) = =
Exchange difference B ERE (1,855) = (26,321) (574)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZB-WEAA=1H 30,763 56,149 578,360 441,291

Addition of borrowings fEE - - 393,079 -
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEHEBE (8,660) - - -
Redemption of convertible bond ERARRES (53,000) - -
Interest paid BRFIE - - (60,942) =
Total changes from financing cash flows AR & RELZ B RE (8,660) (53,000) 332,137 =
Other changes: Hib#

Interest expenses accrued e F S FX 3,946 59 60,942 26,877

Addition of new leases RETHE 16,444 - - -
Change in fair value NEEEE - (3,208) = =
Exchange difference BN ER 1,081 - 18,628 (182)
At 30 June 2025 R=-ZB-HFKA=tH 43,574 - 990,067 467,986
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2025

were as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAFER

Lucky Genius Limited
Lucky Genius Limited

Success Gold Holdings Limited
Success Gold Holdings Limited

Fortune Growth
Fortune Growth

Maxprofit International Limited
Maxprofit International Limited

Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited
Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited

CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc.
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc.

CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc.
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc.

MSPI
MSPI

NCHI

NCHI

NCLI
NCLI
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Form of
business

ES 3%

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

=E
Corporation

3]

Corporation

L]

Place of
incorporation
and operations
ALK
REE

BV
REARRES

BV
REARRES

BV
REARRES

BV
REARRES

BV
REARRES

Philippines
FRE

Philippines
FRE

Philippines
FRE

Philippines

FEE

Philippines
FEE

BARFBWT :

Issued and fully

paid share capital/

registered capital
ERITRER
R TN

US$1
1%L

US$1
1%L

US$1
1%L

Us$100
100 7T

US$1
E

Pes010,468,600
10,468,600 &

Pes010,468,600
10,468,600 % &

Pes02,722,930,653
2722930653 I ER

Pes0621,444,867

621444867 R

Pes020,000,000
20,000,000 % &

Percentage held by
the Company
ARARFAEAEDL
Directly Indirectly
;3 Bk
% %
100 -
100 -
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

R-FE-_RAFANA=ZTHZARAEZH

Principal activities

FEXH

Investment holding

RERKR

Investment holding

RADR

Investment holding

RADR

Investment holding

RADR

Investment holding

RADR

Investment holding

RERKR

Investment holding

RADR

Property investment

NERE

Hotel owner, operation
of hotel business

BEEEA
BEBERS

Gaming operation
BYEE



nternational Entertainment Corporation B[R 1R 245 R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE_FT_RFNA=THIFFE

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. B ATFE &)

Place of Issued and fully
Form of incorporation paid share capital/ Percentage held by
Name of subsidiary business and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
MR IR EETRAR
WELRAERE ES 37 KewH B/ SRR APAFFREAE  EEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B
% %
Future Growth Limited Corporation Hong Kong HKS2 100 - General administration
for the Group
BRERRA EE B VBT TEE-ROTBER
East Fortune Holdings Limited Corporation Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
REEERRAF EE B 1787 REER
IEC Live Events Macau Limited Corporation Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Live Events
ECRZESRF—ABRAR ZE R 25,000 297 R5EE
IEC Investment Limited Corporation BVI Class B: US$9,500 100 - Investment holding
IEC Investment Limited =B HEEMARES B 950ET REER
Class A: US$500 100 -
AR 500%ETT
Oriental-Invest Properties Limited ~ Corporation BVI Us§2 - 100 Investment holding
Oriental-Invest Properties Limited & EEERARES 2% REER
Future Success International Corporation Samoa US§1 = 100 Investment holding
Holding Limited
Future Success International EE BEED 1€7T REER
Holding Limited
LaVie Leisure Limited Corporation Samoa Us§1 = 100 Investment holding
LaVie Leisure Limited EE BEED (E REER
Luxury Resort Holdings Incorporated - Corporation Philippines US$205,746 = 100 Investment holding
(Peso 12,000,005)
Luxury Resort Holdings Incorporated 3% &l FEE 205,746 57T REZR
(12000005 %)
Truholdings Philippines Corp Corporation Philippines US$107,159 = 100 Investment holding
(Peso 6,250,000)
Truholdings Philippines Corp =E FEE 107,59 T REER
(6250000 %)
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

Name of subsidiary

WRLRER

LaVie Global Group Limited
LaVie Global Group Limited

Strategem Ventures
Management Inc.

Strategem Ventures
Management Inc.

Golden Ticket Management Inc

Golden Ticket Management Inc

LaVie Vantage Holdings Limited

LaVie Vantage Holdings Limited

LaVie Fortune Limited
LaVie Fortune Limited

LaVie Century Limited
LaVie Century Limited

SwiftSync Management Inc.

SwiftSync Management Inc.

Saved as disclosed in Notes 30 and Note 32, none of the subsidiaries
had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

Form of
business

EREA

Corporation

=E
Corporation

3]

Corporation
=E
Corporation
t%

Corporation
t%

Corporation
t%

Corporation

1S

Place of
incorporation
and operations
AR R
REwE

Samoa

BT
Philippines

FEE

Philippines
FEE
Samoa
EET

Samoa

BED

Samoa

BED
Philippines

FRE

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
EERTRAR
B/ GERR A

USS1
17T

US5197,178
(Peso 11,500,300)
1971785 7T
(11500300 % %)

US$197,173
(Peso 11,500,000)
197173% 7T
(11500000 % %)

USS1
E

USS1
E

USS1
E

Peso 12,000,300

12000300 &

Percentage held by
the Company
ARARFAEAEDL
Directly Indirectly
HE B
% %
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

B B 5 30 K& Mt 3 32 AT R BR 25 4b -
FARERERE - SEMNBARAEAKRE

BIEHES

opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year

or formed a substantial portion of assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Principal activities

TEXH

Investment holding

REZKR
General administration
for the Group

AEE-RITHER
Investment holding
REZKR

Investment holding
REZKR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

General administration
for the Group

AEE-RITHER

RF Rk

ERINTEERRUAKREFERERE
FEYIBUAEBEERBBEEANRNS

ZARRBMBAR - EFER AR EAMH

BRAFBERSRIEARITE -



For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AR2TZHBEMRRAE
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-ZZBE-HE RZZWF
NAZ=TH ~NA=+H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FHEx FHET
Non-current assets EMBNE E
Investments in subsidiaries KB R B ZIRE 500,895 471,548
Right of use assets EREAE 12,129 -
Amount due from a subsidiary in fEd — M B A 7
form of promissory note SRIE (DA H ZE &
®x) 494,037 406,212
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU B B A R FUIA - 113,820
1,007,061 991,580
Current assets MBNEE
Other receivables, deposits Hib W EIE - 128
and prepayments RIEN ZIE 3,621 1,522
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGRSl 64,235 -
Bank balances RITAETTE 211,679 287,095
279,535 288,617
Current liabilities mENAE \
Other payables and accrued charges E fth B AT 5RIE K JEET
10,120 5973
Amounts due to associates J’EH A/NEIE/ 70 70
Lease liabilities fﬂ&\@l & 2,873 =
Convertible bond AR ES - 56,149
13,063 62,192
Non-current liabilities EmBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 10,498 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETH B R R FIAE - 224,454
10,498 224,454
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,263,035 993,551
Equity attributable to owners RATEE NEGEZ
of the Company
Share capital A A 29 13,692 13,692
Reserves fE 38(b) 1,249,343 979,859
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,263,035 993,551
The statement of financial position of the Company was RABZHBRRAKRRZZE_HFN
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2025 AZ+N"BEEZEEg8t/FE WH T3
and was signed on its behalf by: ATHREREE:
Mr. HO Wong Meng Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE
HO Wong Meng %t 4% Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE %t &
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF 0
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nternational Entertainment Corporation B IRZ4 G R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e G HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nF N NA=1THIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  38. AN\ FIZMB IR EEES &)
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) AATZHEES
Share- Retained
based profits/
Share Merger Exchange compensation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
DRORER RERF/
B R E AHtRE EiRE ZHERE (RHER) st
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEL TET FAT TAER TET FET
At 1 July 2023 i
+tA-H 170,289 53022 (166,495) 5433 (265319) (203,070)
Exchange difference B EERER

arising on translation from 25| E ¥k
functional currency to EEZEREE

presentation currency - - 281312 - - 281312
Cancellation of share options &+ $HEE Ik 1 - - - (5433) 5433 -
Capital reduction BAHIR - - - - 1,355,465 1,355,465
Total comprehensiveloss ~ FRZ A EEAE

for the year - - - - (453,848) (453,848)
At 30 June 2024 RZT_W4F

~AZTH 170,289 53022 114817 - 641,731 979859
Exchange difference B EERER

arising on translation from 25| E ¥E
functional currency to EfZERESR

presentation currency - - 238,882 - - 238,882
Total comprehensive income £ (9% T Y55 40 58
for the year - - - - 30,602 30,602
At 30 June 2025 R-ZZ_1%
~NA=TH 170,289 53,022 353,699 - 672,333 1,249,343
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nternational Entertainment Corporation (S ey SN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. IEEREID ERBEERERIEEEE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities REEHFAEElemEERSRBER
recognised at the end of reporting period were categorised as HEZEBERE ST -
follows:
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-ZBE-HEFE R -_NF
~NA=1H ~A=+H

HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZEREE 4,423 4,481
Financial assets at amortised costs HHERAY B cREE 1,149,255 998,066
1,153,678 1,002,547
Financial liabilities ot =R
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEFABEZERmAE - 3,208
Financial liabilities at amortised cost KA EzZEBEE 1,574,799 1,162,276
1,574,799 1,165,484
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are cRMEEREREEZAFEEATAR
determined as follows: BE:

—  the fair value of investments held for trading with standard —
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market price; and

—  the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities —
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis, binomial
option pricing model or market comparable multiples as
appropriate.

FER R EGRR MG RN R R B
MERFGZREZRFETIZETS
WEETE - &

HtemEERERBBEZATFEE
RERBSREDN - —HAHEE
BENYAELRNMISER (W@
R)BAREBELUERE -
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIFX iR 44 AR A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
nfvé?ﬂjiﬁg$ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ¢ﬁI

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nF N NA=1THIFE

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. IFHHBID EREENR SRS ENE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (%)

(Continued)

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial instruments that BAVBRMEERE BRR{AEERTIATF

are measured at fair value by level of the following fair value B EERAZERARBRATEFEZERM

measurement hierarchy: TA{EHREE :

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical F—: EFERMEBLEREEXREBEZR
assets or liabilities; B CREEAR)

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 FH: BEEXEGEEENEEZMAE
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly R2BMABR (E-—RBEER
or indirectly; and BN - &

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on FE=H: WHERUBRMBGEEBECEE
observable market data. BB ASIE -
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nternational Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

39. FEERBID EREEREREENE

Y=

TEREHEBRATFEBRZERI NIRRT

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: BIRzEMIEDH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B E= st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHT TBT FH&T FHBT
At 30 June 2025 R=ZFB-HFXA=+H
Financial assets at fair value BROAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss cREE
Unlisted investment fund (Note) FEMBREES (Hit) - - 4,423 4,423
At 30 June 2024 R-EBE-MEXA=1+H
Financial assets at fair value BROAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss CREE
Unlisted investment fund (Note) FEETREES (HiT) - - 4,481 4,481
Financial liabilities at fair value BT EFTAEBEZ
through profit or loss cREeE
Conversion derivative ERHTET A - - 3,208 3,208
Note: Bat -
For the unlisted investment fund, the fair value is arrived at based on a valuation MIELETRERESGME 2 FEDNREEARNEEL

carried out by an independent professional valuer not connected to the Group.
The fair value was determined based on NAV summation method with fair value of
underlying investment determined based on market approach with references to
comparable companies’ benchmark multiples.

BRECBYEXMGEMET 2 HERTE - 2FE
REBEEEFEALMEZBLHEBERE 2 A FERETS
ESRAELRAR EEBHERE -
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nternational Entertainment Corporation  BPRIRZE5 R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e G HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nF N NA=1THIFE

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. IGEREID ERBEEREREEEE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (%)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) Bist - ()
Significant unobservable inputs BEARAEERARE
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=-B-HF R-ZT-WF
SNA=+H ~NA=+H
Market multiples of comparable companies adopted IR e] BB N B 2 5B &
— EV/EBITDA ratio — EEEHRAS  BHE TER
B EH BT & R b 5.64 541
Discount for lack of marketability = mismElE 2z R 12.44% 11.98%
Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable companies adopted increased by 5%, AT M EL R AR 2 EEBEHRAE R
it would increase the fair value of the unlisted investment by approximately T8 - HTE RS AT A R L I AN5% - RIFE EMIRE
HK$483,000 (2024: HK$488,000). Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable 2 (B AN 47 483,000 7T (= = PO 4F : 488,000
companies adopted decreased by 5%, it would decrease the fair value of the BIL) c WA MAIELERAA ZEEEBEBERF
unlisted investment by approximately HK$483,000 (2024: HK$488,000). BBE - - EREHENAAL R 5% BIFELE

HIRE 2 AFER D #483,0008 70 (Z T U 4F -
488,000/ 7T) °

The following table shows the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of TRETHELTREESFE="QATFEF22EEK:
the unlisted investment fund:

At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R=ZB-HEF e ie < 3
~A=1+H ~NA=+AH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
At beginning of the year REH] 4,481 5302
Change in fair value NEEESH (533) (723)
Exchange adjustment [EPTIEE 475 (98)
At end of the year RERXR 4,423 4,481
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial EEZRR VBBRRANREBHKAIEZ2EREE
liabilities carried at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their FemaEzREERANTEMRS -

fair values.
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nternational Entertainment Corporation

BIfRIREEF R AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. There
was no change in capital management policies and objectives from
prior periods.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position
and makes adjustment to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital (not applicable under net
cash position). Net cash or debt is calculated as total borrowings
representing outstanding promissory notes and outstanding bank
borrowing as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as
equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
plus net debt (minus if net cash), as appropriate.

40.

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE_FT_RFNA=THIFFE

BXEREE

AEMEBEAURRAEBEENBE
R AR R A 1 & R B 4R
B RIS« AR M 45 B B AR R DR R K
A BRERFMRE BB EARMMAL

AEEBERER RS NERELEARE
N RREEEKFASRNREBERE
AR E AN T R 4 R R RFE 2
T WHREEBERRFAEEARE -

AEBERBEAABHLEREREEARRE
HITEED B R RREBHFERE
AEEFE(TERARRESFRMR) - R
EFRABEHFRIREERE (BENES
BBRAKRATIAREEARLEBRRRER
RITEE)RAE RRITEFAE - EXHE
BIZGRA W RIOR R R I LB F
(AR EFE - RIHRE) (Em) & -
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nternational Ente

RIEH R AR

rtainment Corporation [ R 152 44

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e G HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE-_F-_AFNA=1+HIFE

40.

41.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

40.

BXEARER @)
R-F-AFR-_F-MEAA=+AZ
AARAMLEMT :

At 30 June At 30 June

2025 2024

R-ZBZHF RZZ-@OF

ANAE=+H NA=1+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Total borrowings BEE®E 1,458,053 1,075,800

Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITTET AR 562,519 417,471

Net debt B FRE 895,534 658,329

Total capital BB 773,096 1,016,789

Gearing ratio BERGELE 115.8% 64.7%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. MRS EEEENREE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from/to associates, restricted bank
balances, fixed bank deposit, bank balance and cash, trade payables,
other payables and accrued charges, promissory notes and bank
borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risk associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
restricted bank balances, fixed bank deposit, bank balance and
cash and loan receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In respect of trade receivables and contract assets from hotel
operation, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Normally,
the Group grant a credit period up to 90 days and does not
obtain collateral from customers. In relation to the customers
from gaming operations, the Group would grant credit
period of 15 days or issues credit in the form of markers to
approved casino customers and promoters following review
of creditworthiness, typically with a credit period of 30
days. Credit lines granted to all approved casino customers
and gaming promoters are subject to monthly review and
settlement procedures.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
To measure ECLs, except for certain debtor possess unique
credit risk characteristics and assess ECL on individual basis,
all trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
by segments based on similar credit risk characteristics and
assessed on a collective basis. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the grouping for trade
receivables and contract assets for the assessment of ECLs is by
customer segments. For contract assets, management applied
the expected credit loss rates calculated using provision matrix
to different customer segments, management considered
the ECLs is immaterial and no provision for lifetime ECLs has
recognised.

For trade receivables in hotel operation segment,
management has categorised debtors into 5 customer groups
for ECLs assessment with Group E represents the customers
with significant risk of default.

(a)

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

FERE
AEBEZEERRIZREEEBUKE
B AHEE R RHEMEETIR
XRBIRTESF  THRITERK R
TREERREEUARERER - ERE
BEGERR ITRIFEBEEEER
KA EEERR

ERREARENEE
IREEELENEREARANE
EME @UMATPETEINEE
AHE - AR AHEEPRERESIS
By 2 38 £ 17 SR AC 8 R R 1T S 1 B
VEREFPZHERPEHREPZ
EFRENBBREERE . —RME
AEERHSEZOBNEES BT
GREPWEERG KB EEE
BHEPME  ARBEAEEZERMR
Mg MEENESER NERER
BHISREERRERAEZB LA
EE FEEHBERBE - MAKH
ERSEP LSV ERRNEERE -
VRBREABRLEERR

AEEZBENFERNEREES
B2 BTERREEARGNEEZ
BEREE RAERMEEERE K
ETEBARGBREERREHR
REREEFGERBEEEHEIN - A
BRYSRANANEECREMAUN
EERREBZES R HHE  LAKE
AEEFG AR AEEBEEEER
KRB RTREF D BERENRE
AR I IRE P 2 &6 R e R A K
BHEERE  UrHETRHBEESE -
RENEEMNS  BEEEB/RBESG
ERESHNEREEBBRXER
RAREBEFDE  BEEERSEHIE
EFBYAEXR BYEBRRATEN
MIEHEEEIRRE -

SREELEDMEREKEAENS - €12
EEKBRABRERAAEFPEMA
AMETR I E B BB AT E - A
ERERENRRZEFR -
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(a) Creditrisk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables in hotel
operation segment as at 30 June 2025 and 2024:

At 30 June 2025 R-ZZE-HEF Group A

NA=1+H R4

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEREIER 2.66%
Gross carrying amount ARmE#E(F#ET)

(HKS'000) -

Loss allowance (HK$'000) EERE (T8 -

At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-MF Group A

NA=1H R

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEREIER 2.89%
Gross carrying amount FREAE (FET)

(HKS'000) -

Loss allowance (HK$'000) EiE R (TA8T) -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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FERRE @)

BEREAREHNEE (&)

TR ERAKER T _AFR
—ENEANAZTHHEEGREER
i BB TR & o BRI W BRTE 2 SEHIE
BEEEZER

GroupB GroupC GroupD GroupE

o# (k! T4 |

2.54% 2.54% 7.26% 100%

48 142 95 335
1 4 7 335

Group B GroupC  Group D Group E

2 k! T4 D!

2.78% 2.79% 3.08% 100%
850 553 34 535
23 15 1 535

EHBEXDREERERLRSEE -
ZFLREFH AR URREREE
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International Entertainment Corporation BIBERZ4ER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR EE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—ZE-_aFNA=1THIFEZ

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. MERAMEERERKE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ =ERK#E)
The below table reconciled the movement in the allowance TERAFHNERKRBEEBSERE
for credit losses of trade receivables for the year: BE)EIER -
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024

R-ZZB-HF R-_T_MF
AHA=+H ~A=T+H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
At beginning of year REFA) 574 2,953
Provision for/(reversal of) expected credit ~ FAHAZ & F5 18 88,
losses, net (#[E) F88 4,757 (2,294)
Exchange adjustments ME H T8 B (118) (85)
Atend of year RER 5,213 574
Deposits and other receivables B REMERE
As at 30 June 2025, deposits and other receivables mainly RZEZRAFASNA=TH EekH
represent receivables from the hotel operation and gaming HENREEFZEOEEERERE
operation segment. i# o
For hotel and gaming operation segment, as at 30 June 2025, MEEREREES - R_F_Hh
lifetime ECLs of approximately HK$1,789,000 on deposits FRA=ZTH Ze KHMERKIE
and other receivables was recognised (2024: Provision of ZIFEHA 2 TEAME B B8 491,789,000
HK$529,000). BTEOERA(ZZE_MF : &E

529,000 JT,) ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Restricted bank balances, fixed bank deposit, bank
balances and cash

Management considered the credit risk is limited as the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
reputation.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables represent loans and funding to associates
(Note 18). Management assess that the effect of applying the
expected credit risk model on loan receivables was immaterial
base on the effect of the credit enhancement of the pledged
assets.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management of the Group to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group of remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
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(a)

(b)

FERRE @)

BREMITAEF  ERRITEHS R
THREFREZ

ERERR BAREFHIARGEER
HZRIThEREE  REERRA
B o

R &

RN ERIEREE AR ERREHE
& (KfsE18) o ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁéﬁﬁ
EigmmyE FEERAENEER
BRERHERE R FEBATERK -
REE SRR

EERBESARE  AEEERY
E%$EI%EFE%E%ZE$&
ReFEWKF UALEEZER
HESMRERSRERNBZFE -
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TEHHR - TRBEBEASEAIRE
KMz &xFEHY REBABZKR
WEREREBLE - FITETHAR
ZEHMBEREHEZEERR - T
KBEMNERAEHRERE -



For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE T _nFNA="1THIEFE

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELREE &)
The Group rEH
Total Morethan  More than
contractual Within 1year 2years
Carrying undiscounted 1year or but less butless  More than
amount cashflow ondemand than2years than5 years 5 years

ENARFE —FRE  BB-F BEMF
REE ReRBAE BRER EBORWME EBIREF BBIF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

At30 June 2025 R-Z-HEF
~A=1H
Non-derivatives: FOTH
Trade payables JE1TERIA 1,209 1,209 1,209 = = =
Other payables and accrued E-fth & < 2738
charges B ER 103,059 103,059 103,059 = = =
Amounts due to associates  FE1 B &1\ B] T8 12,478 12,478 12,478 = = =
Promissory notes ERER 467,986 523,837 34926 488,911 = =
Bank borrowings RITEE 990,067 1,020,456 74599 134535 811,322 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 43,574 68,088 10,596 10,263 21,561 25,668
1,618,373 1,729,127 236,867 633,709 832,883 25,668
At 30 June 2024 R-B-ME
ANBZTH
Non-derivatives: FEOTHE
Trade payables JET BRI 4133 4133 4133 = = =
Other payables and accrued E A FE 4 208 K
charges ezt &R 85,551 85,551 85,551 = = -
Promissory notes AL ER 441,291 467,986 467,986 - - -
Convertible bond AARES 52941 53,000 53,000 = = -
Bank borrowing RITIEE 578,360 886,027 49,189 135943 494718 206,177
Lease liabilities HEAE 30763 54,774 5,657 5,657 16970 26490
1,193,039 1551471 665516 141,600 511,688 232,667
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For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE_FE_pFENA=THILFE

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from its financial assets at
variable-rate bank balances (Note 36(a)) and financial liabilities
for promissory notes (Note 30) and bank borrowings (Note
31). Promissory notes and bank borrowings are carried at fixed
interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Bank balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider appropriate hedging policy
when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances including bank balances
deposits in the banks in Hong Kong and the Philippines. The
sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate time deposits at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
these bank balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period are outstanding for the whole year/period. A 50 basis
points (2024: 50 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in
the banks in the Philippines is used in estimating the potential
change in interest rate and represents the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates made by the
management of the Group. If interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$205,000 (2024: HK$381,000).
A 30 basis points (2024: 30 basis points) in variable-rate time
deposits in the banks in Hong Kong is used in estimating
the potential change in interest rate and represents the
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates
made by the management of the Group. If the interest rates
had been 30 basis points higher/lower (2024: 30 basis points
higher/lower) and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post tax profit for the year would increase/decrease
by approximately to HK$3,000 (2024: HK$1,000).
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(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its long-term bank borrowings. At 30 June 2025, it was
estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2024: 50 basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s profit
after income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$4,950,000 (2024: HK$2,996,000). Other components of
equity would not be changed.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 50
basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Other price risk

At 30 June 2025, the Group is exposed to price risk through
its financial assets at FVTPL in respect of the investment in
Foresight Fund (2024: Foresight Fund). The management of
the Group has performed analysis of the nature of market risk
associated with the investments, including discussion with
the investment advisors, and concluded that the price risk is
more prominent in evaluating the market risk of this kind of
investments. The management of the Group monitors this
exposure and will consider appropriate hedging policy when
necessary.

(c)

(d)

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE
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For the year ended 30 June 2025

HE—

F_AFNA=FHILFE

(e) Currency risk (e) E¥ A
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through the REBEITEMHNEEXEBE@E 2
financial assets at FVTPL, other receivables, bank balances and BEEMINEREFECEZ AT ERA
cash, and other payables that are denominated in a currency BmzemEE  HMEKFIE R
other than the functional currency of the operations to which ﬁ HEiEEBR2 &Eﬁﬂfﬁ KIE P EE £
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily BEER EFURERCEEFES
United States dollars ("USD”) and HKS. En([ER]) KRBT
The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary fﬁgéﬁ)} S B ECREBERRE
liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant HHAEERREBASE TS (At
group entities whose functional currency is Peso at the end of BE¥AER) 2INEFTERT :
the reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=N BE
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024 2025 2024

R-ZEBE-ZHF RI2E-NF RIZZE-HFE R-T_EOF
~NA=1+H NA=1+H NAZ=TH NA=1+H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHER FET FEx FHEIT

usD ETT 390,741 - 783,560 625,468
HKS BT 489,017 460,194 17,552 121,077
EUR BT - - 4,423 4,481
The Group currently does not have foreign currency hedging NEEE B RTINS SRR o
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors ZFE EE fﬁﬁfixiﬁk“* %’i%‘%ﬂ\ﬁg
foreign currency exposure for each business segment and il Enite 2FE  TRE
reviews the needs of individual geographical area, and will BEREREE %T/‘:F‘ftﬁlﬁ

consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.
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(e)

For the year ended 30 June 2025
HE—_T-_AF~NA=1THIFE

Currency risk (Continued) (e) EXREB &)
Sensitivity analysis HEETH
As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any RS T EE LB - AN E B TE
significant foreign currency exposure arising from the A.%ﬁ}ifﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁZE
fluctuation of the USD/HKS and HK$/USD exchange rates. As KRB MELEFMWERIINERR °
a result, the management of the Group considers that the It AEEERERRBAE .aéT%TE
sensitivity of the Group's exposure towards the change in HBTRBITH FETL 2 B2 HNE[E =
foreign exchange rates between USD/HK$ and HKS$/USD is FENEE Y BREBR o
minimal.
The currency risk is mainly arising from exchange rate of Peso BEERERBREIZREFRAEZTLRET
against USD and HKS. ZEE
The following table details the Group’ sensitivity to a 10% TRANWAEEHBRRAEZTRAET
(2024: 10%) increase and decrease in Peso against USD and AN RE A 10% (ZZEZMF :10%)
HKS. 10% (2024: 10%) represents the assessment of the ZHREE 2 10% (ZE ZHF 10%)
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates made DASEEEIEEHINEEEXA AR
by the management of the Group. The sensitivity analysis BE) 2T PRESNEREER
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated HEEZINEBIEEEIE E THRER
monetary items. The table below indicates the impact on MR INERZE 10% (ZF _@¢
post-tax profit for the year where the Peso weaken 10% (2024 10%) I F AR iBBT 2 2 &Z
10%) against foreign currencies, and vice versa. For a 10% TR o IR R L INEFE10% (ZF
(2024: 10%) strengthening of Peso against foreign currencies, TP 1 10%) - FRBREIERFEZ
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax HeBEBERMMRER 2L -
profit for the year.
HKS$ impact USD impact
BrTEE EPA-2-
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024 2025 2024
R-B-REF R-ZT-_NF R-FB-HF RN-T-_OF
~A=1+H ~NA=TH ~NA=1H ~NA=TH
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT FEx FHEIT
(Decrease)/increase in post-tax 4 R B i 1% & F
profit for the year CR ),/ 38 hn (47,147) (33912) 39,282 62,547
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nternational Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIRZEF R AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e G HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2025
BE-ZE-_nF N NA=1THIFE

(e)

financial year.

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. M#EEREEEERERK @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued) (e) BRI &)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRBEDH(E)
The following table details the Group’ sensitivity to a 10% TREFIIAEEEREOTE A TNk
(2024: 10%) increase and decrease in EUR against HKS. 10% A 10% (ZFEZHF 1 10%) 2 BUR
represents the assessment of the reasonably possible change [ ° 10% Jh 2N 5 B 5 12 2 O B =
in foreign exchange rates made by the management of the AREEEEE Tl  URESITE
Group. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding BEMARGEEZINEIEEEIER -
foreign currency denominated monetary items. The table TRETERTHABTEE10%(ZF
below indicates the impact on post-tax profit for the year ZPUE - 10%) BHEANBRBERN 25
where the EUR weaken 10% (2024: 10%) against HKS. For a B o WL ATTHEI0%(ZE =
10% (2024: 10%) strengthening of EUR against HKS, there F10%) FARMERAFKEZE
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit BHEREMMRER 2FE -
for the year.
EUR impact
Br®eE
At 30 June At 30 June
2025 2024
R-FB-HF R_T_MF
ANA=+H ~NA=+H
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHEIT
Increase in post-tax profit for the year — F PBR & 14 Z2 )12 A0 442 448
42. MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN 42. BENKH. RHAEHZEKE
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENTS OR =
CONTRACTS
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which MEBRAQAAFVEARARRESHEES
the Company was a party and in which the directors of the Company FHECEREEZSHERAFHEEERXR
or an entity connected with the directors had a material interest, R EMERRS  THRENRH K
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the FEANXMBFELERTE -
APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  43. HU#GSHBRR

43.

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were reviewed by the Audit
Committee and approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 September 2025.
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nternational Entertainment Corporation B[R 4R 6%

Financial Summary

=

RESULTS £
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended yearended  year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
B ZT-Z —EZ=F TN ZB-HE
ANA=ZTHE R~A=tA AR~A=+A ~A=+H RAB=t+H
EFE EFE EFE EFE LEE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000

TAT TAT TAT TAET TR

Revenue WA 64,900 85,525 207,219 229,786 566,159

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),H5H (242,040) (256,391) 18,282 (131,964) (282,145)

(Loss)/profit attributable to: AT A &L

(B1]),/ &7 -
Owners of the Company KRFHEEA (242,040) (256,391) 18282 (131,964) (282,145)
NET ASSETS FREE
As at As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
T ZZT-Z —E-=fF —E-NE ZEBE-_R&E
~A=tH RKA=tH A~A=tH ~A=+tH A~A=t+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FET FTET
Total assets BEE 2,301,154 1,874,776 1,898,227 2,324,298 2,536,098
Total liabilities #waE (709,545) (678,878) (691,268) (1,307,509) 1,763,002
1,591,609 1,195,898 1,206,959 1,016,789 773,096
Equity attributable to: AT AT eI
Owners of the Company ZAN/NCIE ZS N 1,591,609 1,195,898 1,206,959 1,016,789 773,096
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'Intgrnational Entertainment Corporation BRIRZEF IR N A

1 4
Particulars of Principal Properties

EEBYENE

Location Existing use Lease term
b3k REAR HEFH
1588 M.H. Del Pilar Hotel and casino operations and leasing of properties Medium-term lease

cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila
The Philippines
1588 MH. Del Pilar 1B R R BB 5 A KR H AR M % T EAFE A
cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila
The Philippines
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